
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Friday, 28 August 2020.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 
Tuesday, 8 September 2020 at 2.00 pm 

Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely 
using Skype for Business 

 
 

Cabinet 
Members: 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Barry Dobson, The Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 
 

 

Agenda 

 Accessing the Meeting 
 

Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

Cabinet - 8 September 2020 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, e-mail democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

 

Cabinet 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/6HDW0VQG?sl=1
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 
1.   Register of attendance and apologies for absence  

   
2.   Minutes of the previous meeting 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 18 August 2020. 
(Pages 3 - 10) 

   
3.   Disclosure of Interests (if any)  

   
 Items for recommendation to Council 

 
4.   South Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan 

Report of the Leader proposing the Corporate Plan for the period 2020 to 2023. 
(Pages 11 - 41) 

   
5.   Amended Budget 2020/21 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources setting out amended 

Budget proposals for 2020/21 as a result of the COVID-19 crisis to reflect the 

changes in the income and expenditure budgets set by Council on 2 March 

2020. 

(Pages 43 - 62) 

   
 Items for Cabinet Decision: Key 

 
6.   Cultural Strategy 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy on the Cultural 

Strategy for South Kesteven. 

(Pages 63 - 101) 

   
7.   Area Offices Customer Consultation 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Communities considering the outcomes of 

the two consultations relating to proposed changes to the Market Deeping and 

Stamford Area Office provision. 

(Pages 103 - 189) 

   
 Items for information 

 
8.   Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees 
(Pages 191 - 192) 

   
9.   Key and Non Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers (Pages 193 - 216) 

   
10.   Representations and questions from Non Cabinet Members  

   
11.   Cabinet Forward Plan 1 October 2020 to 30 September 2021 (Pages 217 - 224) 

   
 Urgent Items 

 

Items which the Leader is of the opinion should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency 

pursuant to Section 100 (b)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 by reason of special 

circumstances.  

 
 Exempt Items 

 

Under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public may be excluded 

from the meeting during any listed items of business, on the grounds that if they were present, 

exempt information could be disclosed to them as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Schedule 

12A of the Act. 

 



 

 

Minutes 
Cabinet 
Tuesday, 18 August 2020 

 
 

 

 
The Leader: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council (Chairman) 
The Deputy Leader: Councillor Barry Dobson, The Deputy Leader of the Council 
(Vice-Chairman) 
  

Cabinet Members present  
  

Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for Communities 
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
 

Non-Cabinet Members present 
 

Councillor Bob Adams 
Councillor Louise Clack 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Judy Stevens 
Councillor Linda Wootten 
Councillor Ray Wootten 
 

Officers  
 

Chief Executive (Karen Bradford) 
Strategic Director, Growth (Paul Thomas) 
Strategic Director, Commercial and Operations (Gary Smith) 
Strategic Director, Transformation and Change (Lee Sirdifield) 
Interim Director of Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Head of Leisure (Karen Whitfield) 
Head of Governance (Jo Toomey) 
Legal Executive (Shelley Hardy) 
 

 
118. Register of attendance and apologies for absence 
 
All Cabinet Members were present, with the exception, of Councillor Dr Peter 
Moseley who had given his apologies. 
 
119. Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 July 2020 were agreed as a correct record of 
the decisions taken. 

3

Agenda Item 2



 

 

 
120. Disclosure of Interests (if any) 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 
121. Procurement of Aids and Adaptations and Domestic Lifts 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning presented his report on the 
procurement of aids and adaptations and domestic lifts contracts. He stated that 
South Kesteven District Council had an ongoing requirement to carry out significant 
repair, dilapidations and improvement works to its dwellings. Aids and adaptations 
works allowed the Council to adapt its properties in line with the physical needs of its 
tenants. The budgets for all property improvement, including aids and adaptations, 
were agreed annually by Council and accorded with the principles in the 5-year plan 
of the 30-year HRA Business Plan. A new contract was required as the previous 
contracts had ended. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning stated that the contract specification 
had been designed to ensure the Council met its statutory responsibilities, achieved 
high levels of customer satisfaction and provided value for money. He also 
summarised the main terms of both the aids and adaptations and domestic lifts 
contracts. Reference was also made to the process for completing such works in 
consultation with applicants and an occupational therapist.  
 
The contracts were procured through the Efficiency East Midlands (EEM) framework 
and had been assessed in terms of value for money, financial status and 
performance under the framework’s competition process carried out under the OJEU 
procurement rules and procedures.  
 
In response to a question, Members were assured that the Council had a robust 
contract management procedure in place, but it continually worked to improve its 
contract management practices. 
 
Clarification was provided that the contract for aids and adaptations was to be 
awarded to T. and S. Heating Limited and not T&S Heating (Nottingham) Limited as 
indicated in the recommendations to the report.  
 
On being put to the vote, it was AGREED that the Cabinet approves the award of 
contracts for carrying out:  
 

1) Aids and adaptations works on behalf of South Kesteven District Council 
throughout the district to T. and S. Heating Limited for a period of three (3) 
years with the option to extend for a period of up to one (1) year. A start date 
for the contract is to be agreed once the correct approvals are in place. The 
estimated contract value is £1,289,395.40 over the three year contract term. 

2) The installation and maintenance of domestic lifts on behalf of South Kesteven 
District Council throughout the district to Premier Mobility Limited for the 
installation and maintenance of domestic lifts (which includes but is not limited 
to stair lifts and through floor lifts) for a period of two (2) years, with an option 
to extend for a further two (2) years at the end of the initial period. A start date 

4



 

 

for the contract is to be agreed once the correct approvals are in place. The 
estimated contract value is £76,382.13 per annum. 

 
122. Local Plan Review Issues and Options 
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning presented his report on the Local 
Plan Review Issues and Options. When the Council approved its Local Plan in 
January 2020, it agreed to proceed with an early review, which was a requirement 
from the Inspector’s final report following the public examination of the document.  
 
The Local Plan review would set out the planning framework for the district to 2041, 
covering issues including: housing provision, the economy, retail and town centres, 
infrastructure provision and the environment. It would also set out the policies by 
which planning applications would be determined, in addition to allocating land for 
housing, employment and retail uses.  
 
The process of producing a Local Plan involves different stages, many of which 
require the Council to consult with stakeholders and residents. The timetable for the 
preparation of the Local Plan was set out in the revised Local Development Scheme 
for South Kesteven Local Plan (Appendix 2 to the report).  
 
The Issues and Options paper set out in Appendix 1 represented the initial stage of 
consultation on the Local Plan Review, setting out the scope of the review and key 
issues and options to be considered within the review. At this stage, the Issues and 
Options consultation was not a statement of the Council’s proposed planning policies 
but a statement of intention as to what planning policies may need to be reviewed or 
updated. The consultation period would run between early September to mid-October 
2020.  
 
The Local Plan Review, however, does need to take account of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) introduced in 2019, as the current adopted Local Plan was 
examined against the previous NPPF. 
 
Significant consultation will be undertaken throughout all the stages of preparing and 
producing the Local Plan Review. In undertaking this consultation, the Council will 
follow its adopted Statement of Community Involvement where possible and 
practicable in line with temporary Regulations made by the Government in response 
to COVID-19.  

 
On 6 August 2020 the Government published the Planning White Paper which 
proposed increased digitalisation, giving planning authorities new powers to improve 
design and sustainability standards. The proposals also included a new single 
infrastructure levy, which would replace the system for Section 106 contributions and 
Community Infrastructure Levy. Other proposals included binding housing 
requirement that local planning authorities would have to deliver through their local 
plans, splitting large sites between developers to accelerate delivery and streamlining 
community consultation at planning application stage. The Council would be 
preparing a response to the consultation engaging members of the Planning 
Committee and professional officers. The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 

5



 

 

stated he would circulate his summary of the Planning White Paper to Cabinet 
Members (Action). 
 
During discussion reference was made to the role of Neighbourhood Plans. There 
was recognition that there was no body in Grantham that would be the focal point for 
the development of any Neighbourhood Plan. A non-Cabinet Member put forward the 
Earlesfield Ward to pilot the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan within the town, 
which could then be used as a model for other areas.   
 
The Planning Policy Team was thanked for its hard work and efforts. 
 
On being put to the vote, it was AGREED:  
 

1) That Cabinet approves the Local Plan Review Issues and Options report, as 
set out in Appendix 1 to the report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning, for public consultation.  

2) That Cabinet approves the revised Local Development Scheme, as set out in 
Appendix 2 to the report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, 
providing the proposed timetable for the Local Plan Review. 

 
123. Refurbishment of Property - Elm Street, Stamford 
 
The Leader of the Council presented his report on the refurbishment of the Council-
owned asset known as the former St Johns Ambulance Station, on Elm Street in 
Stamford which has been vacant for in excess of 5 years. Planning permission for the 
proposed works has been obtained and feasibility works undertaken in preparation 
for commencement. 
 
It was proposed that the conversion of the building will be funded from a budget 
carried forward from the previous financial year. 
 
It was recommended that Lindum, which had previously been appointed to undertake 
pre-commencement construction activities, should be appointed as a direct award 
through the SCAPE Framework. The risks of going to market were highlighted, which 
included not finding a contractor and/or high costs because of the impact of COVID-
19 on the availability of materials and labour. The tender exercise would also take 
longer than a direct award and there was market demand for office space in 
Stamford, which needed to be acted on. 
 
On being put to the vote, it was AGREED that the Cabinet approves the award of a 
contract of works to the value of £229,789 for the refurbishment of the former St. 
John’s Ambulance in Stamford to Lindum, utilising the SCAPE framework. 
 
124. Local Government Re-organisation Budget 
 
The Leader of the Council presented his report on the allocation of budgetary 
provision to support work in respect of local government reorganisation. The 
allocation of £50,000 would be a one-off contribution funded from the Council’s local 
priorities reserve. The Leader stated that the Council wished to be an active 

6



 

 

contributor to discussions taking place regarding the future options for local 
government in Lincolnshire. 
 
Members noted that it was not clear whether South Kesteven would be included in 
first round or second round, so the Council must be ready.  
 
The initial work would cost £15,000. The allocation for £50,000 would provide 
sufficient to fund any necessary follow up works`. Any funding that was not required 
would be returned to the local priorities reserve.  
 
On being put to the vote, it was AGREED that the Cabinet approves the allocation of 
£50,000 to be funded from the Local Priorities Reserve to support the development of 
the business case for local government reorganisation in Lincolnshire.  
 
125. Appointment of Directors to Gravitas 
 
This item was withdrawn from the agenda and would be presented to the next 
meeting of the Companies Committee in the first instance. 
 
126. Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview & Scrutiny 

Committees 
 
The Leader of the Council presented his report which highlighted matters referred to 
the Cabinet from the Council and overview and scrutiny committees. Since the 
Cabinet had met on 7 July 2020, only the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee had made recommendations to Cabinet. 
 
It was AGREED to adopt the following recommendations referred from the 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 21 July 2020: 
 

a) That the following seven areas should be used as environmental indicators:  

 Energy consumption and cost (for the Council) 

 Water consumption and cost (for the Council) 

 Overall domestic waste arisings (for the district) 

 Percentage domestic waste recycled (for the district) 

 Percentage domestic waste diverted from landfill/incineration (to include 
food waste and green waste) 

 Percentage contamination of silver bins 

 Number of fixed-penalty notices issued by enforcement teams 
b) That the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations develops a phased 

carbon reduction plan and initiates feasibility assessments for priority carbon 
reduction projects outlined in the Carbon Trust’s Carbon Footprint and 
Reduction Opportunities Report, with the prioritisation of the following 
initiatives: solar panel installation on Council assets, improvements to 
Stamford Arts Centre and the Guildhall Arts Centre, LED street lighting and 
improvements to office space including the fitting of LED lighting. 

c) That the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations undertakes public 
consultation in respect of the extension of the existing Public Space Protection 
Orders and proposed new Public Space Protection Order (The Spinney, 

7



 

 

Market Deeping Cemetery) subject to the maps being updated to reflect 
current Ward boundaries.  

 
127. Items raised by Cabinet Members including reports on Key and Non Key 

Decisions taken under Delegated Powers 
 
The Leader of the Council introduced his report which set out details of non-key 
decisions that had been taken by Cabinet Members under their delegated authority 
since the last meeting of the Cabinet on 7 July 2020. The report also provided 
information on a decision that the Chief Executive had made using her emergency 
powers. The contents of the report were noted.  
 
128. Representations and questions from Non Cabinet Members 
 
One question was raised by a non-Cabinet Member, which related to the outgoing 
Chief Executive of InvestSK, whether any non-disclosure agreement had been 
signed in respect of his departure, and if so, the financial implications of that. The 
Chief Executive and Leader responded, stating that they were unable to comment on 
the contractual position of an officer of a company in a public meeting. The Leader 
added that the Chief Executive would contact Councillor Dilks outside the meeting to 
discuss the matter (Action). 
 
129. Cabinet Forward Plan 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 
 
Cabinet Members noted the Forward Plan for 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 
which was appended to the agenda. The Forward Plan gave an indication of items to 
be presented to the Cabinet in the next 12 months. 
 

Exclusion of the press and public 
 
It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item of business because of the likelihood that 
information which is exempt under section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, would be disclosed to them. 
 
130. Leisure Service 
 
The minutes of this item contain exempt information under section 100(a)(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 
On being put to the vote, it was AGREED: 
 
To approve the recommendations as set out in the exempt report of the Deputy 
Leader of the Council.   
 
131. Close of meeting 
 
The meeting was closed at 15:26. 
 
 

8



Document is Restricted

9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cabinet 
8 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Corporate Plan 2020-23 

The report proposes the Corporate Plan for the period 2020 to 2023. 

 

 

Report Author 

Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive  

 
 01476 40 60 80 

  Ken.Lyon@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework 

All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 24 August 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive  26 August 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 28 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Cabinet is asked to recommend that Council approves the Corporate Plan as 
attached in Appendix A.   

2. Notes that key performance indicators and success criteria for each action will be 
developed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the Cabinet. 

11

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Ken.Lyon@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 Background  

1.1 The Corporate Plan sets out the strategic vision and key priorities of the Council.  The 

Corporate Plan underpins the delivery of all of the Council’s strategic activity and provides 

the performance framework for managing the delivery of the actions and priorities in the 

Plan.  It is good practice for a public sector organisation seeking to deliver a wide set of 

aims and objectives to set out a Corporate Plan and regularly review the activity and 

achievements against it. 

1.2 The South Kesteven District Council Corporate Strategy was adopted in May 2018, which 

sets the values of the Council.  The Corporate Plan is focused on what the Council will 

deliver. 

Approach – Setting the Priorities and Actions 

1.3 An evidence-based approach has been undertaken to developing the priorities and actions 

within the Corporate Plan.  A range of data sources were utilised to undertake an 

assessment of performance and benchmarking to form an analysis of strengths, 

weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT) for the District.  The SWOT also 

incorporated the likely impact on the District of Covid-19. 

1.4 The SWOT was then analysed and used to inform three key areas of the Corporate Plan: 

• Vision – an encompassing statement setting out succinctly the high-level aim for the 
District 

• Priorities – specific key areas of focus for the Council 

• Actions – the things that will, in combination seek to achieve the targets of the Council 
(primarily to address things found in the SWOT) 

 

1.5 Each of these areas were cross-checked to ensure consistency. The underlying analysis 

and emerging vision, priorities and actions were developed through an iterative process, 

involving Members and Officers (see Consultation section below for more details). 

Performance Management 

1.6 Alongside the development of the Corporate Plan document attached in Appendix A, is the 

identification of key performance indicators (KPIs) and success criteria for each of the 

actions that will form the basis of the performance management of the Corporate Plan.  Draft 

KPIs and success criteria have been proposed and will be developed and agreed via the 

appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the Cabinet. 

1.7 Performance against the success criteria will be managed via ongoing, active performance 

management, which will include quarterly reports to Overview and Scrutiny Committees and 

Cabinet.  In addition, there will be an annual performance report, which will be further 

considered by Cabinet. 

1.8 A ‘golden thread’ approach to the delivery of the Corporate Plan will be embedded – 

ensuring there is a clear link between activity at all levels and the Corporate Plan.  To 

support this the following will be developed: 

• Service Plans – setting out how each service will contribute to the delivery of SKDC’s 
vision and priorities.  These will also include KPIs and success criteria and be 
monitored by Senior Officers and Cabinet Members. 

• Individual Performance Appraisals – setting out how each individual contributes to 
the achievement of SKDC’s vision and priorities.  These will be monitored by Heads of 
Service. 

12



 

 
 

 

Annual Performance Review and Refresh 

1.9 An annual performance review will take place in May every year which will encompass a full 

review of SKDCs performance against the Corporate Plan.  As part of the annual 

performance review the Corporate Plan and SWOT will be reviewed and refreshed in light 

of activities and changes to the external environment.  Therefore, the review may lead to 

changes in priorities, actions, KPIs and success criteria.  It should be noted that any changes 

will require approval by the Cabinet. 

1.10 The ‘golden thread’ approach, showing the interaction between the performance 

management of the Corporate Plan, SWOT and annual performance review is shown in the 

diagram below. 

 

Diagram 1: Showing the golden thread through the Corporate Plan 

 

 

Development of the Vision and Priorities 

1.11 Following consultation with the Leader, Cabinet Members and wider Council members a 
draft vision was developed for South Kesteven to “Be the best district in which to live, work 
and visit.” Analysis of the SWOT led to the development of a number of priority areas, which 
following further consultation with Cabinet Members were developed into the following 5 key 
priorities: 

• Growth and our Economy 

• Housing that Meets the Needs of all Residents 

• Healthy and Strong Communities 

• A Clean and Sustainable Environment 

• A High Performing Council 
  

13



 

 
 

 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The initial SWOT analysis was developed in April 2020 and several iterations were 

circulated through the Corporate Management Team and the Cabinet for feedback, 

additions and refinement of the elements contained.  Alongside this the Covid-19 action plan 

was developed and these documents were integrated to provide an overall assessment of 

the District. 

2.2 Once priorities and actions had been initially developed, these were refined through a 

number of workshops, which all Members were invited to attend, in early July 2020.  The 

feedback from Members led to changes in the action plan and also confirmed the priority 

areas and vision. 

2.3 For Members that were not able to attend the workshops, copies of the presentation and 

draft documentation was circulated to all Members on 9 July 2020. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 Alternative options considered and rejected are as follows: 

• Do nothing – continue without a Corporate Plan – allocations within the annual budget 

would effectively set the strategy; there would be limited links to objectives, success 

criteria and performance targets. 

• Do minimum – develop an annual plan / business plan – this was rejected as it would 

inhibit long-term planning and focus more on deliverable activity in a single year, rather 

than any strategic goals. 

• Develop a single integrated Corporate Plan and Medium Term Financial Strategy – this 

was rejected due to the need for a revised budget mid-year due to Covid-19.  

Additionally, these documents are generally created separately in local authorities, the 

Corporate Plan sets the framework in which subsequent budgets are set. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is to adopt the Corporate Plan as set out at Appendix A, with targets 

reviewed and reset as part of an annual review process.  More operational targets will be 

measured on an ongoing basis throughout the duration of the Plan.   

5 Reasons for the Recommendation(s) 

5.1 The Corporate Plan will give a strategic framework for operational and medium term 

financial planning and provide a clear direction for the Council.  This provides a clear view 

of what the Council is delivering for the public, residents, businesses, key stakeholders and 

for our own staff. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 If supported by the Cabinet, the Corporate Plan will be presented to full Council on 1 October 

2020 for approval and, if supported, will be published thereafter.  Targets will be measured 

on an ongoing basis and subject to annual review. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The Corporate Plan sets out the strategic framework in which the medium term financial 

planning will directly support.  Budget setting will focus primarily on ensuring that the actions 

14



 

 
 

set out in the Plan are adequately resourced in order to ensure they can be delivered.  The 

adoption of the Plan will enable the Council to retain its focus on agreed actions and finite 

resources can be deployed accordingly providing a clear alignment between the Corporate 

Plan and the Medium Term Financial Plan.  It is accepted that available resources are likely 

to be more challenging in the medium term and in that scenario a revision of specific targets 

may be necessary. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 A Corporate Plan which sets out the delivery ambitions of the Council is to be welcomed in 

terms of good corporate governance and accountability to the public, who will be able to 

see how the Council intends to deliver services and can be held to account for its 

performance against the Corporate Plan. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 An equality assessment has been carried out and is presented in Appendix B.   

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Due to the strategic nature of the Corporate Plan, the core risks should align with the 

Corporate Risk Register.  The periodic review of these documents should ensure that they 

remain aligned. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 There are no direct community safety implications in this report.   

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The approach recommended retains ‘A Clean and Sustainable Environment’ as one of five 

key themes through the draft Corporate Plan.  This is to ensure that the environmental 

impact or carbon reduction and general sustainability is fully considered in all decisions. 

Carbon implications reviewed by: Serena Brown, Sustainability & Climate Change 

Officer 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 All significant implications are highlighted above. 

14 Appendices 

Appendix A – Draft Corporate Plan 

Appendix B – Equality Impact Assessment 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

11 August 2020 

Previously Considered by: Not applicable 

Final Decision date   1 October 2020 

 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Be the best District to live, work and visit

Corporate Plan 
2020-2023

Be the best district in which to  
live, work and visit

Easton Walled Gardens
17

Appendix A



Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

2

Contents

Our vision for South Kesteven 3

About our district 4

Finance 5

Growth and our Economy 6-7

Housing that Meets the Needs of all Residents 8-9

Healthy and Strong Communities 10-11

Clean and Sustainable Environment 12-13

High Performing Council 14-15

Managing performance  16

Covid-19 response 17

Equalities 18

Core values at heart of SKDC 19

Links to key documents 19

Contact details 20

18



3

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Our vision for South Kesteven
The events of the past few months have turned our
world upside down and left us with a legacy we could
not have predicted. But South Kesteven is a district
full of promise and potential. It is home to innovative
entrepreneurs and savvy start-ups; a base for global
enterprise; and an inviting landscape perfectly situated
in the heart of England. We have much to be proud of,
and much to offer.

Our Corporate Plan clearly sets out how South
Kesteven District Council intends to meet that
promise and potential. Our vision is to “be the best
district in which to live, work, and visit.”

We will continue to support  businesses and work with
partners in all sectors to create the right conditions
for sustainable and dynamic growth so that our local
economy not only recovers from the Coronavirus
pandemic, but recovers stronger than ever.

We will continue to develop a clean and green future, 
working with others to ensure that how we live and 
how we work respects and protects our environment 
and reduces our carbon footprint.

We will develop the immense goodwill and community
spirit that already exists so that our communities 
thrive, are strong and healthy, and we commit to 
building and maintaining housing that meets the 
needs of all residents.

Underpinning all of this is how we work as a council.
Our Corporate Plan is our promise to you, the
residents and businesses of South Kesteven, but
it is also our blueprint for ensuring we are the high 
performing council you deserve; one that attracts and
retains the best staff to deliver high-quality services.

Our values and our commitment to diversity and 
inclusion will help shape how we deliver our services 
and how we meet our priorities. Within our council and 
our communities we want everyone to feel welcome 
and valued. 

As a district council, we work hand-in-hand with other 
public sector partners across Lincolnshire and the 
wider region so that individually and collectively we 
deliver for our residents and businesses. 

Working in partnership with others is a journey we are 
on, and it is a road we continue to follow to realise our 
ambition for South Kesteven.

So as we deliver our priorities over the next three 
years, you should expect to see continued growth that
respects our countryside and our heritage; a reduction
in our carbon footprint to protect our environment for
present and future generations; a focus on harnessing
the community spirit so prevalent in recent months;
housing to meet all needs; and an efficient, high 
performing council that puts local residents and local
businesses first, always.

Cllr Kelham Cooke
Leader of the Council  
South Kesteven District Council

Karen Bradford 
Chief Executive 
South Kesteven District Council

 @southkesteven
  @southkdc
  linkedin.com/company/south-kesteven-council

19



4

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Snapshot
Of South Kesteven

LONDON
1hr

LEEDS 
1hr 10min

East 
Midlands Airport

Robin 
Hood/

Doncaster 
Airport Humberside 

Airport
Manchester

Airport

Birmingham 
International Airport

Stansted 
AirportHeathrow

Airport

Lincolnshire

GRANTHAM

1,400

5,935

Just over

In 2019, there were

households (1,422)  
were on the council’s  

housing register in 2019

businesses in South 
Kesteven, of which the vast 
majority (89.9%) were micro 

businesses – employing 
between one and ten 

people.

143,347
Population figures 2020

Forecast to grow by around 
4.5% over the next ten years, 

and by 7.7% between now 
and 2040

23.6%
Proportion of those aged

65 or over in South Kesteven is

in 2020

STAMFORD

BOURNE

South Lincolnshire

MARKET DEEPING

365sq 
miles

GRANTHAM

Luton 
Airport

20



5

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Finance
As an organisation, South Kesteven District Council 
continues to work hard to generate new income 
channels and deliver savings and efficiencies. There 
is a clear focus on becoming financially self-sufficient 
by 2025 by being more efficient in how services are 
delivered and identifying new income streams by using 
assets and reserves with a commercial focus. This 
approach has already delivered savings of over £1.1 
million in the last two years. This change in approach 
has been vital given the reduction in funding from 
central Government. 

However, this is not the time to be complacent. The 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic – the costs of which 
are estimated to be just over £4 million for the council 
– combined with a reduction in government grant of 
£1.8 million over the next three years and net operating 
costs for the General Fund of around £19 million a year, 
means that there is still much to be achieved.
 
The latest estimates forecast that SKDC needs to save 
£2.3 million over the next three years, to be in a position 
where we will still have a balanced budget. The council 
is fully committed to achieving this target and is leaving 
no stone unturned in its approach to ensure this goal 
is reached. Measures adopted include streamlining 
the organisation so that it is ready for the challenges 
ahead, modernising processes and procedures, making 
the most of commercial opportunities and rationalising 
assets and operating costs where possible. 

The delivery of the council’s priorities set out in the 
Corporate Plan remains its key focus. Underpinning 
this is a pledge to provide quality services, a strong 
commitment to investing in sustainable growth, 
improving leisure facilities and delivery of an ambitious 
housing programme that meets the needs of the social 
housing sector.

Financed from a combination of reserves and grants, 
the council has committed over £52 million to fund the 
delivery of new build social and affordable housing 
and stock acquisition programmes over the next three 
years. Over the same time period it will also continue 
to maintain its existing housing stock, by investing over 
£17 million in a range of programmes including re-
roofing, external wall insultation and the replacement of 
kitchens and bathrooms.

The environment in which the council set out its 
medium term financial plan remains challenging and 
uncertain given the financial impact of the ongoing 
Covid-19 pandemic and the wider funding review 
of local government. However, the council remains 
committed to providing quality services to its residents 
and delivering the actions set out in the Corporate Plan.  

Annual net operating costs 
General Fund

£19 million

£52 million
to fund new build 

social and affordable 
housing

Investing

£2.3 million 
needed over the next 
three years to have a 

balanced budget

£4.2 million
Estimated negative impact 
of the Covid-19 pandemic

Investing over 

to maintain existing  
council homes 

£17 million

21



6

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Delivering growth of the economy is fundamental to the success of the district, 
its businesses and residents. We are, therefore, prioritising:

� Protecting and creating jobs within the district.
� Developing the centres and high streets of our four towns.
� Securing investment for infrastructure to support ongoing and  

sustainable growth.

� Growth and our Economy

Market Deeping town centre

Stamford Georgian Costume Ball Grantham Southern Relief Road

22



7

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

� Delivery of the St Martin’s Park development 
scheme in Stamford.

� Regeneration of Grantham town centre, 
supported by the Future High Streets bid 
and delivery of the Heritage Action Zone 
programme.

� Identify funding and other opportunities to 
support development of the town centres of 
Bourne, Market Deeping and Stamford, and 
apply lessons learned from the Future High 
Streets Fund and other initiatives.

� Develop a package of measures to support 
recovery of the local economy and safeguard 
local jobs wherever possible.

� Review the scope and focus of InvestSK to 
maximise the support to local businesses and 
attract inward investment.

� Continue to attract investment, encourage 
diverse businesses to the district and ensure 
appropriate land and property is available.

� Work with education providers to increase 
opportunities for local learning and 
apprenticeships in the district.

� In partnership with LCC bring forward housing 
and employment opportunities linked to the 
delivery of the Grantham Southern Relief Road.

� Work with partners and attractions to promote 
visitor economy and increase visitor spend in 
the district, including the adoption of a Tourism 
Strategic Framework.

� Support the roll-out of improved broadband 
and other key infrastructure to support local 
businesses and rural areas.

� Work closely with markets across South 
Kesteven and seek to maintain their viability.

Key Actions

Key Achievements
�  Securing £900k of Heritage Action Zone funding to restore the culture heritage of  

buildings in Grantham town centre.
�  Securing Single Local Growth funding to support the partnership with Lincolnshire  

County Council to deliver the Grantham Southern Relief Road.
�  Gravity Fields and Stamford Georgian festivals provide more than £700,000 in economic 

benefit to the district each year.

✓
✓
✓

Grantham town centre French Market, Grantham

23



8

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

High quality housing is essential for all and the council is committed to  
working with partners to provide this by:

� Offering the new homes that people need, at a price they can afford.
� Ensuring new developments are in keeping with the character of South 

Kesteven and benefit the people who already live here.
� Providing high quality homes and services to those who rent property from 

the council.

� Housing that Meets the
 Needs of all Residents

Modular homes

Council house repairs Trent Road, Grantham

24



9

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

� Work in partnership with the housing market to 
stimulate housing growth.

� Work to reduce and prevent homelessness in 
our district.

� Increase the supply of high quality, sustainable 
council housing.

� Undertake a planning review to improve 
performance and support local sustainable, 
high quality growth.

� Undertake a housing review to provide the 
highest quality service possible to our tenants.

� Work with housing associations and developers 
to ensure quality affordable housing is 
delivered.

� Ensure the ambitions of the adopted Local Plan 
are met and a review framework is developed 
to deliver sustainable growth in the district.

� Work with Homes England, the Ministry of 
Defence and other partners to develop holistic 
masterplans for the delivery of Grantham’s 
Southern Urban Extension.

� Ensure that major developments in South 
Kesteven are high quality, with sustainable, 
good design.

� Prioritise bringing private sector empty 
properties back into use.

Key Actions

Key Achievements
�  Adoption of the South Kesteven Local Plan to enable delivery of sustainable housing and 

business growth in the district.
�  Beginning our programme of building high quality new homes of different tenures, including
 the completion of Wherry’s Lane Phase 2 and modular housing in Grantham.
�  Developing a leading approach, with Government, to improve the repairs process for 

rented properties (private and council housing).

✓

✓
✓

Bathroom fitting Wherry’s Lane, Bourne

25



10

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Supporting communities to be healthy is particularly important, especially  
in light of the Covid-19 crisis, which is why SKDC is:

� Investing in the health of our district by improving leisure provision.
� Working effectively with partners in the voluntary, private and public  

sectors for the benefit of communities.
� Building on, and celebrating, the rich heritage and culture of the district.

� Healthy and Strong  
 Communities

LotterySK supports  
Three Counties Dog Rescue

Grimsthorpe CastleTackling health issues

26



11

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

� Invest in sustainable, high quality leisure 
facilities across the district.

� Embed the work of the SK Community Hub 
to support volunteering and the voluntary and 
community sectors.

� Work with partners from all sectors to tackle 
health, unemployment and other inequalities in 
areas of highest need.

� Continue to work in partnership with the 
police and the community in tackling crime by 
investing in the CCTV service.

� Celebrate and enhance the rich history of  
the district.

� Adopt a new cultural strategy covering the local 
arts, events and festivals programme.

� Develop and adopt a sport and physical activity 
strategy. 

� Embrace the national mental health challenge, 
ensuring the council places mental wellbeing at 
the heart of decision-making.

� Make best use of different funding sources to 
support the voluntary and cultural sector within 
the district.

� Protect our most vulnerable residents with 
robust safeguarding processes.

� Improve and invest in local arts and 
 cultural venues.
� Promote and make progress against the 

council’s equality objectives.

Key Actions

Key Achievements
�  Creation of the SK Community Hub, working with the community sector to meet the 

essential needs of over 2,000 vulnerable people as part of the Covid-19 response.
�  Development of LotterySK, directing over £120,000 of funding into 110 good causes in 

our local communities.
�  Helped attract over £2.5 million of additional funds for community and voluntary groups 

in South Kesteven via the SK Community Fund (representing a 750% return on the 
council’s investment). 

✓

✓
✓

Guildhall Arts Centre, Grantham Stamford Georgian Festival

27



12

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Protecting and improving the environment is vitally important both now and  
for generations to come. Our work includes:

� Tackling climate change by reducing the council’s carbon footprint.
� Ensuring that the district is a clean and pleasant place to live.
� Improving our parks and open spaces.

� Clean and Sustainable  
 Environment

Garden waste collection

Wyndham Park, GranthamElectric vehicle charging

28



13

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

� Reduce the council’s carbon footprint by at 
least 30% by 2030 and endeavour to become 
net-zero carbon as soon as viable before 2050.

� Deliver the Big Clean programme and maintain 
a higher street standard.

� Continue to innovate our approach to waste 
management to build on our strengths and 
maximise commercial and other opportunities.

� Maintain and enhance our green areas across 
the district, aiming to secure Green Flag status 
for Queen Elizabeth Park, Dysart Park and 
other relevant areas.

� Work proactively with EnvironmentSK to deliver 
high quality services and maximise commercial 
opportunities.

� Work with the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership 
to reduce waste and further improve recycling.

� Recognise the changes in environmentally 
friendly modes of transport and seek to work 
with others to adapt required infrastructure.

� Explore opportunities to build on the success 
of the food waste collection trial scheme and 
ensure the service is sustainable.

� Build a new, modern depot that is fit for  
the future.

Key Actions

Key Achievements
� Declaration of climate emergency, with the establishment and publication of the council’s 

carbon footprint for the first time and creation of an action plan to improve.
� Big Clean team established to achieve and maintain a higher street standard.
� Wyndham Park project to refurbish the site completed during 2018 and Green Flag 

secured for the 8th successive year. Queen Elizabeth Park project to refurbish the site 
completed during 2019 and Management Plan developed to support application for 
Green Flag status during 2021.

✓
✓
✓

Queen Elizabeth Park, Grantham Wyndham Park Visitor Centre

29



14

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Local residents in South Kesteven are entitled to have high expectations and, 
therefore, we will prioritise:

� Supporting the district in recovering from Covid-19.
� Managing our finances and assets effectively.
� Embedding an approach that seeks to continuously improve our service 

delivery, including good governance and staff and customer experience.

� High Performing Council

Customer Services Savoy multiplex cinema, Grantham

30



15

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

� Implement the Covid-19 Recovery Plan.
� Deliver a balanced, sustainable financial plan 

over the medium term.
� Undertake a constitution review and implement 

outcomes.
� Implement findings of the governance 

review across the council’s assets (including 
companies).

� Develop a people strategy (including a pay 
review) to support the retention and attraction 
of high quality staff.

� Develop and implement commercial and 
transformation strategies to deliver additional 
net revenue benefit.

� Undertake a fundamental review of the 
organisation to meet current and future needs.

� Support the implementation of an IT investment 
roadmap to align future solutions with the 
council’s ambitions.

� Embed an agile approach to working by 
building on cultural and technological changes.

� Deliver the ambitions of the Customer 
Experience Strategy.

� Maximise the value of the council’s own 
spending by using local suppliers  
wherever practical.

� Undertake an asset management review.

Key Actions

Key Achievements
�  Opening of a new multiplex cinema in the centre of Grantham.
� Growth of the council’s high quality collection services, with an increase of 4% for garden  

waste and 51% for commercial waste since March 2019.
�  Development of a more agile approach, with over 400 staff enabled to work from home 

during Covid-19 crisis.

✓
✓

✓

Garden waste IT solutions supporting working from home

31



16

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Priority Area Example Action Example KPI

Growth and our 
economy

Develop a package of measures 
to support the recovery of the local 
economy to safeguard local jobs 
wherever possible.

Number of businesses supported by SKDC

Number of jobs safeguarded/created via 
SKDC support

Housing that 
meets the 
needs of all 
residents

Undertake a housing review to 
provide the highest quality service 
possible to our tenants.

Percentage of responsive repairs completed 
within target time

Number of properties fitted with new 
kitchens and bathrooms

Healthy 
and strong 
communities

Make best use of different funding 
sources to support the voluntary and 
cultural sectors.

Amount of external funding brought into 
the district levered with support from SKDC 
funding streams

Clean and 
sustainable 
environment

Deliver the Big Clean programme 
and maintain a higher street 
standard.

Percentage of streets that meet Clean 
Streets Standard

High performing 
council

Develop and implement commercial 
and transformation strategies to 
deliver additional net revenue 
benefit.

Percentage increase in net income from 
commercial funding streams

Amount saved through efficiency 
improvements

Managing performance 
SKDC will be taking a ‘golden thread’ approach to managing performance and delivering priorities 
– meaning that every colleague should be able to understand the impact they are having on SKDC 
achieving our vision, delivering our priorities and realising the key actions. 

A key part of managing performance is to develop an agreed set of Key Performance Indicators, these 
will be agreed via scrutiny committees and reviewed on an annual basis. The table below sets out some 
examples of Actions and KPIs for each priority

Vision
“Be the best district in which to live, work and visit”

Service performance
� Service Plans, actions and KPIs approved by 

Director and Corporate Management Team.
� Monitored by Director and Corporate  

Management Team.

Individual performance
� Individual objectives agreed and linked to  

Corporate Plan.
� Monitored as part of performance appraisal  

by line manager.

Council performance
� Council Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) agreed  

by Scrutiny Committee.
� Three-monthly reports to Corporate Management Team, 

scrutiny committees and Cabinet.
� Yearly review as part of annual performance report  

to Cabinet.

32



17

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Covid-19 response

NEARLY 

18,000
VULNERABLE 

PEOPLE PERSONALLY 
CONTACTED TO 

OFFER SUPPORT

BINS COLLECTED A WEEK 
(BLACK, GREEN AND SILVER)

80,000

CUSTOMER 
ENQUIRIES HANDLED

 

54,048

ELIGIBLE FOR 
COUNCIL TAX 

HARDSHIP FUND 
PAYMENT

BUSINESSES HAVE 
BEEN AWARDED £1.2M 

OF DISCRETIONARY 
GRANTS

4,966

221

VIEWS ON OUR  
CORONAVIRUS  

WEB PAGE

NEARLY  

28,158

EMERGENCY REPAIRS 
HANDLED

2,643

IN GRANTS AWARDED TO 
2,284 BUSINESSES

£27.7 
million

HOMELESS PEOPLE 
PROVIDED WITH 

HOUSING

149
OUR SK COMMUNITY HUB 

HAS RECEIVED MORE THAN

CALLS

2,200 

VOLUNTEERS 
REGISTERED WITH 

THE SK COMMUNITY 
HUB

1,500 

STAFF WORKING TO  
MAINTAIN SERVICES

467

CALLS MADE TO VULNERABLE 
PEOPLE BY OUR 

BEFRIENDING TEAM 

1,500

GAS SAFETY CHECKS 
CARRIED OUT

1,837

OUT-OF-HOURS 
CALLS DEALT WITH

600

HOSTED MEDICAL TESTING 
STATIONS AT GRANTHAM 
MERES LEISURE CENTRE

FACILITATED HIGH 
STREET RE-OPENING 

IN ALL OF OUR TOWNS, 
INCLUDING PROVISION 
OF SOCIAL DISTANCING 

CHAMPIONS

STREET MARKETS 
CONTINUED THROUGHOUT 

AT THE HEART OF OUR 
COMMUNITIES

PROHIBITION NOTICES 
SERVED FOR BREACHES 
OF COVID-19 BUSINESS 

CLOSURE REGULATIONS

4

In March 2020 the world faced a global pandemic which has had a huge impact on South Kesteven.  
The council set out three key priorities: 

� To protect the health of staff, members and residents.
� To maintain critical services.
� To support local businesses.
 
Here are some of the ways in which SKDC delivered against those priorities:  

33



18

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Objective How will we achieve this?

Strengthen our knowledge 
and understanding of our 
communities.

Ensure that the council’s services are responsive to different needs 
and treat service users equitably, with dignity and respect.
Listen, involve and respond to our communities effectively.
Build a database of voluntary and community groups that serve 
our communities at grass roots level and work with them to ensure 
sustainability of provision and service.

Build a culture of equality and 
inclusion into all the services, 
functions and projects we 
deliver.

Incorporate the need to assess and address equality issues into the 
council’s project methodology and democratic processes to ensure 
consideration of the needs of our customers is at the heart of what 
we do, from the earliest stage of development through to 
decision-making and implementation.

Prove our ongoing commitment 
to equal opportunity by 
developing a diverse and 
empowered workforce and by 
reducing our gender pay gap.

Utilise workforce data to help identify areas for improvement 
in the diversity and skills of our workforce to seek equality of 
representation at all levels across the organisation.
Develop and deliver against an action plan to specifically address 
the council’s gender pay gap to form part of the work programme of 
the Employment Committee.
Demonstrate a positive culture with strong leadership and 
organisational commitment to improving equality outcomes.

Equalities
Our commitment to equalities is about long-term, continuous improvement. It is the responsibility of all 
officers and elected members to implement the principles of equality and diversity. We aim to ensure that 
these principles inform decision-making at every level within the council reflecting our ongoing commitment 
to the elimination of discrimination, the advancement of equality of opportunity for all, and to foster good 
relations between different communities. 

English to Speakers of Other  
Languages (ESOL) classCooking in the Community

34



19

Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

Links to key documents
The South Kesteven Local Plan 2011-2036: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=14904

South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy 2016-2021: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=12187

South Kesteven Housing Strategy 2020-2024: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=12186

South Kesteven Medium Term Financial Strategy 2016/2017 – 2020/2021: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=20056

South Kesteven Budget 2020-2023:
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s25022/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf

South Kesteven Carbon Footprint and Reduction Opportunities June 2020: 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=26489

Core values at heart of SKDC 
The values of the council determine how we behave and deliver services to 
our residents and businesses and how we interact with each other.

They focus attention on seven areas:

� Accountability, which means ensuring that 
everyone at every level is responsible of what 
they do and takes ownership for their actions and 
decisions.

� Flexibility, which means working in different 
ways, at different times and in different places to 
meet the needs of our residents and businesses.

� Agility, which means working together to get the 
job done, using our skills to get the best outcome 
for our residents and businesses. 

� Equity, which means ensuring that we treat each 
other with respect, irrespective of rank, position 
or status. This echoes our commitment to provide 
consistently good services to both our internal 
and external customers.

� Networking, which means that as a council 
we recognise that ours is not the only voice or 
opinion. We embrace the views of others and 
use formal and informal networks to improve 
performance and ensure the solutions we deliver 
meet the needs of our customers.

� Always learning means sharing knowledge, 
skills and expertise to enable the council to 
go from strength to strength and learn from 
everything we do. 

� Talent means harnessing the incredible ability 
that is within the council and valuing the 
contribution that everyone can make.

35



Growth and our 
Economy

Housing that Meets the 
Needs of all Residents

Healthy and  
Strong Communities

Clean and Sustainable 
Environment

High Performing 
Council

South Kesteven  
District Council
You can contact the council about benefits, rent or other issues 
 01476 406080  
Out of hours 01476 590044
 customerservices@southkesteven.gov.uk
	www.southkesteven.gov.uk

Alternative formats are available on request: 
audio, large print and Braille

03
15

5R
T_

8.
20

Stamford 

36



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

Corporate Plan 2020 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
All 
 

Lead officer: 
Karen Bradford  

Date of Meeting  
 
20/08/20 Assessors: 

Paul Clarke 
Ken Lyon 

Neutral Assessor: 
Carol Drury 

  

37

Appendix B



 

 

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

This is the over-arching policy setting out the Council’s overall purpose, vision and 
priorities 

 
 

Is this a new or existing policy?  New  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 
 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strategy 
have a positive or negative 
impact on any of the equality 
groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or negative. 
If you consider this policy etc 
is not relevant to a specific 
characteristic please explain 
why   

Age 
 
 

Potential positive (see comments) Across all areas, the Corporate 
Plan gives an evidence-based 
approach to defining actions and 
grouping these into priority areas. 
 
For example, data on the 
Council’s pay audit is used to find 
areas of Strength and Weakness 
and the gender pay gap become 
an area of ongoing measurement. 
 
The first action in several areas 
(such as the Governance review, 
People Strategy and project 
methodology) is to develop a 
strategy for those areas.  These 
areas will themselves require an 
Equality Impact – this overarching 
policy sets out the need for 
sustainability, fairness and 
transparency to be at the heart of 
those subsequent decisions. 
 
It is felt that through a continued 
evidence-based approach, 
embedding equalities into other 
strategies and engaging the 
voluntary and community sector 
more this will provide the 

Disability 
 

 

Potential positive (see comments) 

Race 
 

Potential positive (see comments) 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

Potential positive (see comments) 

Religion or Belief   Potential positive (see comments) 

Sex 
 
 
   

Potential positive (see comments) 

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

Potential positive (see comments) 

38



 

 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Potential positive (see comments) opportunity to improve the impact 
on all equality groups. 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

Potential positive (see comments) 

Carers Potential positive (see comments) 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices of 
multiple 
deprivation) 
 

Potential positive (see comments) 

General 
comments 

This is a strategic document.  Projects, policy and functions that 
emerge as outcomes of the Corporate Plan will be assessed on an 
individual basis to ensure equitability across all our services. 

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 
A review of all available data was undertaken to define the Strengths, Weaknesses, 
Opportunities and Threats facing the district.  This included data on diversity, 
employment, IMD (down to the sub-domain level), crime and education statistics.  
This then formed the evidence base to develop priorities from. 
 
Consultation was undertaken through the CMT group over the period April to June 
2020 and shared with Members for a series of workshops in July 2020. 
 
As this is intended to be an evolving document, subject to at least annual review, 
this is intended as a starting point to add extra information as it becomes available.  
For example, there is the stated intention to build a database of community and 
voluntary groups and work with them to ensure sustainability of provision and 
service. 

 

39



 

 

If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

An annual refresh will be undertaken, where any new data can be added.  Various 
other strategies and reviews will be developed using this as the basis (such as a 
Governance Review), so further specific targets and measures can be developed 
from this. 
 
Alongside the development of this Corporate Plan, there will be ongoing 
Performance Management; this gives the opportunity to highlight and track any new 
measures find to be missing. 

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 
a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any potential 

for discrimination or for negative impact and all opportunities to promote 
equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead Officer 
and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality analysis or to 
better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality analysis 
has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 
b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 

changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

 

 

40



 

 

 
If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 

analysis 
 

c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 
justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Karen Bradford 
(Name and title)   Chief Executive 
  

Date completed:  20/08/20  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 
(Name and title)   Community Engagement and Policy Officer 
 

Date signed off:     20/08/20  
 

41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cabinet 

8 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

           

 

Amended Budget Proposals 2020/21 

As a result of the Covid-19 crisis there is a requirement to amend the budget framework to reflect 
the changes in the income and expenditure budgets set by Council on 2 March 2020. 

 

 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

 
01476 406210 

 r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework 

All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 25 August 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive  26 August 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

27 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council an increase to the salary and member 
allowances budgets of an additional 0.75% in order to meet the national pay 
agreement for 2020/21 of 2.75%. 

2. Cabinet is asked to consider and recommend to Council the draft proposed budget 
amendments for the 2020/21 budget framework. 

 

43

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The budget framework for 2020/21 was approved by Council on 2 March 2020 and was built 

on allocating resources to drive forward the Council’s ambitions focussing on supporting the 

economy, competitiveness and providing quality services to its residents.  Within a few 

weeks of the budget being approved, the country was facing the worst health crisis in a 

lifetime and the Council, like every organisation, has been impacted upon. 

1.2 This report captures all of the financial implications of the pandemic that have impacted 

upon the 2020/21 budget and seeks changes to the current year’s budget framework in 

order that amendment recommendations can be presented to Council on 17 September 

2020.  The report builds on the information that has been presented throughout the financial 

year to the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, Cabinet and the Budget Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Due to the 

timing of the publication of this report, any observations or proposed amendments following 

the Joint Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be provided to Cabinet at the 

meeting. 

1.3 All of the finance reports have provided Members with the most relevant financial information 

and given the projected forecasts of financial impact from both an income and cost 

perspective.  This continuous monitoring and forecasting has placed the Council in a 

positive position to make budgetary amendments with a higher degree of confidence. 

1.4 The scope of the amended budget proposals are specifically General Fund revenue budgets 

as this is the area that has been impacted upon directly.  Therefore there is no requirement 

at this time to propose any amendments to the revenue budgets for the Housing Revenue 

Account.  

1.5 On 16 July 2020, a funding allocation of the £500m was announced to help authorities meet 

the costs that have arisen as a result of the pandemic and it was confirmed that the Council 

will receive £194k as a contribution towards its spending pressures.  The allocation 

methodology has been confirmed as primarily population and levels of deprivation.  The split 

has allocated 93% to upper tier authorities and 7% to lower tier authorities.  

1.6 As well as the increased spending during the pandemic, there has also been a significant 

impact on income. Again, this has been regularly reported with actual income received and 

forecasting predictions based on assumed levels of economic recovery.  To help mitigate 

this, the Government is introducing a co-payment scheme to compensate local authorities 

for relevant, irrecoverable losses in 2020-21. Under this scheme, councils bear the first 5% 

of losses compared to their budgeted income – reflecting the fact these income sources are 

by their nature volatile from one year to the next – but the Government will support those 

worst affected by covering 75p in every pound of losses beyond this.  An analysis of the 

projected income losses based on the guidance has been undertaken and an indicative 

funding level of £1.4m has been calculated. Reimbursement payments will be made in 

October 2020, January 2021 and May 2021 covering specific periods during the financial 

year.  Therefore during this period the projected total reimbursement is likely to vary based 

on actual rather than projected losses. 

1.7 The details of the scheme have now been released with the following guiding principles: 

• The income is transactional income from customer and client receipts (excluding rents 
and investment income), which is generated from the delivery of goods and services and 
which was budgeted for in 2020/21.  

44



 

 
 

• As a result of Covid-19, and consequent reductions in economic activity, this income has 
been unavoidably lost and will not be recovered in this financial year. 

• Compensation will be based on net losses. Where a local authority has been able to 
reduce expenditure, or has received other compensation, compensation will only be 
provided for the residual loss. 

• Areas of income that are not eligible for compensation are: 

− Investment income 

− Rental income 

− Compensation paid to third parties for loss of revenue 

− Income which was not included in the authority’s General Fund budget for 2020/21 

− Income that can be reasonably recovered later in the financial year 

− Income losses that can be mitigated by reductions in expenditure or which have 
already been compensated for by other government funding 

1.8 In summary the Council has received the following Covid-19 direct funding support: 

Table 1 – Covid-19 funding 

Funding Amount (£) Allocation Details 

Tranche 1 64,622 Mixture of Adult Social Care Relative 
Needs Formula (87%) and Settlement 
Funding Assessment (13%) 

Tranche 2 1,416,290 Allocation based on a per capita basis, 
and a 65:35 split between county and 
district authorities 

Tranche 3 194,639 Allocation 93% upper tier and 7% 
lower tier authorities based on 
population and deprivation  

Re-opening High 
Streets Safely fund 

126,000 Contribution towards direct costs and 
support resourcing  

Co-payment 
scheme 
(provisional) 

1,400,000 75% of income losses beyond 5% of 
planned income 

Total 3,201,551 This is shown at table 3 

 

Fees and Charges 

1.9 The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on behalf of Cabinet has been monitoring the key fees and charges income since 

the beginning of the financial year in order to assess the financial impact of the lockdown 

restrictions.  On 26 August 2020, the Joint Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee met 

to consider the budgetary amendment proposals that are detailed in the report and 

supporting appendices.  Members reviewed the proposed amendments in detail and no 

changes to the proposals were recommended. 

45



 

 
 

1.10 The first quarter of the financial year has now been completed and the actual income is 

shown below (and shown in greater detail at Appendix A).  The adverse variance when 

compared to approved budgets for the same period is £914,675.   The recovery modelling 

is constantly reviewed as the Council, like the majority of districts, relies on fees and charges 

as a key component of its financial structure as it plays a key role in enabling the Council to 

continue to provide quality services to its residents and support the delivery of the Council’s 

priorities. The impact of specific key areas that were identified from the outset of the 

pandemic continue to be impacted upon and the latest position is outlined below.  Appendix 

A provides full details of the analysis of the income received and the assumed recovery over 

the remainder of the year.  Therefore, it is accepted that the longer-term full impact will not 

be known for many months.  Based on the table analysis below, the ‘at risk’ income budgets 

will be reduced by £3.1m for the current year. 

Table 2 – Proposed Amended Income Budgets 

Service Area Income 
Budgets 

Gross 
Income 
Current 

Budget (£) 

 

Profiled 
Original 
Budget 1 
April – 30 
June (£) 

Actual 
Income for 

the period 1 
April – 30 
June (£) 

Proposed 
Amended 

Gross 
Income 

Budget (£) 

Arts Centres 1,149,250 287,312 20,200 221,319 

Building Control 657,900 164,475 125,300 470,698 

Car Parking Fees 1,293,000 323,250 11,100 366,675 

Planning and Land Charges  1,370,600 342,650 235,800 955,365 

Markets 252,700 63,175 18,000 100,128 

Licensing 282,500 70,625 91,200 260,700 

Property Commercial Income 1,107,850 276,962 187,100 851,810 

Trade Waste 366,500 91,625 39,200 249,938 

Treasury Investment Interest 236,000 59,000 36,500 107,300 

Totals 6,716,300 1,679,074 764,400 3,583,933 

 

1.11 Given the volatility that has been experienced since the commencement of the financial 

year, it is inevitable that the budget framework is no longer reflective or accurate of the 

current operational issues and demands. This is taking the form of income no longer 

performing at budgeted levels but also new cost pressures being experienced.  There are 

46



 

 
 

also positive cost avoidances and lower than originally budgeted expenditure activities.  In 

total 37% of the budget framework requires amendment which reflects the scale of the 

changes that are required. 

1.12 The budget set by Council on 2 March 2020 was £19.157m.  Subsequent amendments to 

the budget framework have been approved by the Council and there have been a number 

of budgets carried over that were approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 

13th August 2020.  This has had the effect of increasing the budgets for the General Fund 

to £20.195m at net cost level. 

1.13 The table presented below shows at summary level the General Fund and provides an 

update on the proposed budgets at each Directorate Level.  It can be seen that, at net cost 

level, there has been a net £4.4m increase which is a combination of income losses, 

expenditure reductions and anticipated cost increases.  This analysis has been based on 

actual activity since the beginning of the financial year and forecasting for the remainder of 

the year.  It is therefore inevitable that there remains a degree of volatility and uncertainty 

in the forecasting assumptions for the financial year.  

1.14 The Local Government Service Pay Agreement 2020/21 has recently concluded at a pay 

increase settlement of 2.75% for the period 1 April 2020 – 31 March 2021.  The budget 

framework approved on 2 March 2020 included a 2% pay award and so the proposals 

detailed in this report and shown in detail at Appendix B reflect the additional 0.75%.    

Table 3 – General Fund Proposed Budget Framework  

Description 

2020/21 
Current 

Budget + 
Approved 

Carry 
Forwards 

2020/21 
Proposed 

Budget  

Proposed 
Amendment 

Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Commercial & Operations 7,408 8,634 1,226 

Finance, Legal & Democratic 4,847 5,886 1,039 

Growth 6,536 8,643 2,107 

Transformation & Change 3,962 3,985 23 

HRA Recharge (2,558) (2,566) (8) 

Net Cost of Service 20,195 24,582 4,387 

Interest Payable and Receivable (236) (107) 129 

Minimum Revenue Provision 302 148 (154) 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 72 72 0 

Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) 0 

Net Budget Requirement 16,219 20,581 4,362 

General Funding (15,860) (15,860) 0 

Covid-19 specific funding 0 (1,801) (1,801) 

47



 

 
 

Co- payment losses contribution* 0 (1,400) (1,400) 

Total Funding (15,860) (19,061) (1,161) 

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves (359) (298) 61 

Net Budget Deficit 0 1,222 1,222 

*the figure shown is provisional and will depend on the actual net income losses declared in accordance with 

the Government scheme criteria. 

The detail for the proposed budget amendments are contained in the supporting appendices 

under each Directorate heading but the following is a summary: 

 

Table 4 – Budget Movement summary 

Heading Financial Impact  

£’000 

Commentary  

Income Changes – high risk 
areas 

3,132 This is detailed at column 
K at Appendix A 

Other Income Changes 277 Lower than budgeted 
benefits overpayments 

Cost Pressures 1,421 Covid-specific costs and 
realignment and reduced 
budget for transformation, 
procurement and process 
automation  

Leisure Provider support 
payments  

800 Approval by Council 16th 
July 2020 

Forecast expenditure 
reductions  

(1,243) Reduced expenditure as 
detailed at supporting 
Appendix B 

Change to net cost of 
service 

4,387 This is shown at table 3 
above – net cost of 
service 

 

1.15 After applying the confirmed and expected funding contributions from Government, the 

funding deficit is reduced to £1.2m.  However, the actual funding shortfall will be exposed 

to ongoing uncertainty and volatility in the forecasting assumptions of income recovery and 

further exposure to unforeseen costs.         

It is a statutory requirement to approve a balanced budget and in order to do this further 

measures will need to be introduced to ensure a balanced position is achieved by the end 

of the financial year.    

Members will recall that Council approved the formation of a budget stabilisation reserve as 

part of the 2020/21 budget framework, the primary objective of which is to respond to budget 

volatility and ensure a balanced position is maintained without any detrimental impact on 

services.  The scenario currently facing the Council aligns to the objective and should be 

utilised as necessary.  The balance of the reserve is currently £2.843m.   

48



 

 
 

The use of the budget stabilisation reserve is positioned as ‘as last resort’ and will only be 

considered after other proactive cost avoidance and reduction initiatives have been 

considered.  These include the continual review of expenditure to identify reductions 

(including the deferral or removal of non-urgent expenditure), review of staffing vacancies 

and the prioritisation of key staffing recruitment and the acceleration of savings, 

transformation and invest to save proposals.  As the implementation of these initiatives 

continue, the positive impact on the deficit reduction will be reported to members during the 

remainder of the financial year. 

Therefore, the proposal can be stated as: 

Heading £’m 

Net Budget Deficit 1.222 

1. Other intervention measures (cost 
reductions, further savings) 

2. Budget Stabilisation reserve use (to meet 
remaining deficit) 

 
(1.222) 

Net Budget Deficit 0 

 

1.16 The proposed amended 2020/21 budget framework is shown at Appendix D alongside the 

indicative budget proposals for the following two years (2021/22 and 2022/23).  These years 

remain unchanged from those presented to Council on 2 March 2020.  It is highly anticipated 

there will be an ongoing impact on the future years’ budgets, specifically from an income 

perspective.  However it is too soon to accurately predict what this may be at the present 

time but the budget preparatory work will consider this in the coming weeks. 

1.17 Other areas that will require a review for 2021/22 are contained at lines 12 – 17 at Appendix 

D: 

Line 12 – Council Tax.  The highest risks contained in this line relate to the increase in 

Council Tax support scheme claimants, slower than modelled tax base (housing) growth 

and future Council Tax increases. 

Line 13 – Government grants.  The figures shown are based on pre-Covid-19 

announcements and the Spending Review will undoubtedly result in a change to the figures 

presented. 

Line 14 – Retained business rates.  The figures shown are based on previously provided 

funding levels following the business rates reset that was due for implementation from April 

2021.  It has been confirmed that the business rates review and reset will now be delayed 

by a year and therefore will take effect from April 2022.  This line will be updated once further 

information is provided. 

Line 15 – New Homes Bonus.  It has been announced that the scheme will cease from April 

2023 but there are no details of any scheme that may replace it. 

Line 16 – Collection Fund.  This Fund is a statutory requirement of the Council and all the 

income from Business Rates and Council Tax is contained in this account as well as the 

payments to the major precepting authorities.  The primary risks are in respect of the 

ongoing collection from residents and businesses and the impact on the Council Tax base.  

 

49



 

 
 

2 General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Capital Programmes 

2020/21 

2.1 The capital programmes have been updated to reflect the anticipated forecast position as 

at 31 March 2021 and these are shown in detail at Appendix E.  The following table provides 

a summary position: 

 

Heading Current Budget (inc. carry 
forwards) 2020/21 

£’m 

Forecast updated Budget 
2020/21 

£’m 

General Fund 4.077 3.622 

Housing Revenue Account 27.736 17.616 

Total 31.813 21.238 

 

Each of the projects set out in each capital programme have been reviewed and where 

necessary, proposed deferrals or re-profiling of expenditure has been included for 2021/22.  

This will continue to be reviewed during the remainder of the financial year. 

3 Looking Ahead 

3.1 The focus of the report is primarily reviewing, updating and proposing amendments to the 

2020/21 budget framework in response to the Covid-19 impact.  The budget setting 

proposals for 2021/22 will commence in the coming weeks and will align and drive forward 

the actions arising from the Corporate Plan.  It is clear there will be financial challenges 

ahead arising from the ongoing impact, specifically income recovery levels and emerging 

expenditure pressures.  Therefore, the medium term outlook will remain uncertain for the 

foreseeable period.     

4 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

4.1 The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee has been kept up to date throughout the financial year. 

4.2 In respect of the pay settlement award, the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Employment 

Committee have been consulted and have given their approval for the recommendation to 

be presented to Cabinet directly rather than Employment Committee in the first instance in 

order to expedite the matter. 

5 Available Options Considered 

5.1 There is no option but to review and amend the current budget framework due to the ongoing 

impact from both an income and expenditure perspective. 

6 Preferred Option 

6.1 The preferred option is set out in this report.  

7 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

7.1 The current approved budget framework is no longer reflective of the actual position and 

requires amendments in specific areas. 

50



 

 
 

8 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

Following the Joint Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting, the proposals will 

be presented to Cabinet on 8 September and then Council on 17 September 2020.  In 

respect of the proposed pay award of 2.75%, the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Employment 

Committee were consulted on the proposal and have agreed that the matter can be 

considered by Council without recourse to the Employment Committee.  This is in the 

interests of expediency. 

9 Financial Implications  

9.1 These are included and considered throughout the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance  

10 Legal and Governance Implications  

10.1 The arrangements for making in-year amendments to the budget framework are set out at 

Article 4.21 of the Constitution.  The responsibility for agreeing the budget framework lies 

with the Council. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy, Legal Executive 

11 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

11.1 There are no equality or safeguarding implications arising as a result of this report. 

12 Risk and Mitigation 

12.1 An updated Risk Register is provided at Appendix C. 

13 Community Safety Implications  

13.1 There are no community safety implications arising as a result of this report  

14 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

14.1 This report does not have a carbon impact. 

15 Background Papers 

15.1 Council Budget Report: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=

4 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee Reports: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3897&Ver=

4 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3907&Ver=

4 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3908&Ver=

4 

 

51

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=3827&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3897&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3897&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3907&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3907&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3908&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=3908&Ver=4


 

 
 

Budget – Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=640&MId=3990&Ver=

4 

16 Appendices 

16.1 Appendix A – Income Budget Projections 

16.2 Appendix B – Details of proposed budget amendments 

16.3 Appendix C – Financial Risk Register  

16.4 Appendix D – Medium Term Financial Plan Summary 

16.5 Appendix E – Forecast Capital Programmes  

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

8 June 2020 

Previously Considered by: Not applicable 

Final Decision date   17 September 2020 

 

52

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=640&MId=3990&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=640&MId=3990&Ver=4


COLUMN HEADING A B C D E F G H I J K L

High Risk Area

20-21 

Original 

Approved 

Budget (£)

Expected 

Loss (£) for 

Apr-June

Actual £ 

income 

received 

April - June

Actual Loss 

(£) April - 

June

Expected % 

Impact 0-3 

months 

(April-June)

Actual % 

income lost 

0-3 months 

(April - June)

Realistic 

%age of 

income lost 

for July-Sept

Realistic 

Impact for 

July-Sept

Realistic 

%age of 

income lost 

for Oct-Apirl

Realistic 

Forecast for 

Oct-Apr

Realistic Forecast 

Reduction 20/21 

Columns D+H+J

Amended 

Budget 

Proposed 20-

21 (£)

Arts Centres 1,149,250 287,313 20,200 267,113 100% 93% 90% 258,581 70% 402,238 927,931 221,319

Building Control 657,900 98,685 125,300 39,175 60% 24% 30% 49,343 30% 98,685 187,203 470,698

Car Parks 1,293,000 323,250 11,100 312,150 100% 97% 70% 226,275 60% 387,900 926,325 366,675

Planning and Land Charges 1,370,600 195,311 235,800 106,850 57% 31% 30% 102,795 30% 205,590 415,235 955,365

Markets 252,700 50,540 18,000 45,175 80% 72% 70% 44,223 50% 63,175 152,573 100,128

Licencing 282,500 24,719 91,200 -20,575 35% -29% 20% 14,125 20% 28,250 21,800 260,700

Property Commercial Income 1,107,850 77,550 187,100 89,863 28% 32% 20% 55,393 20% 110,785 256,040 851,810

Commercial Waste 366,500 41,231 39,200 52,425 45% 57% 30% 27,488 20% 36,650 116,563 249,938

Treasury Investment Income 236,000 23,600 36,500 22,500 40% 38% 40% 23,600 70% 82,600 128,700 107,300

TOTAL HIGH RISK INCOME 6,716,300 1,122,198    764,400        914,675        67% 54% 48% 801,821        42% 1,415,873       3,132,369                  3,583,931    

Potential of Impact on Income Budgets - 

53

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Summary of Changes to Budgets  

 

 

Commercial & Operations £000’s 

Income loss car-parking 926 

Car parking additional maintenance 3 

Car parking income collection savings (8) 

Building control income loss 187 

Building control – reduced contribution from other local authorities 27 

Building control – furloughing of staff (34) 

Building control – other staffing savings (23) 

Building control – partnership local authorities’ contribution to trading account loss (103) 

Markets – income loss 153 

Markets – savings due to reduced offer (31) 

Trade Waste – income loss 117 

Trade Waste – waste disposal savings (41) 

Trade Waste – additional staff costs offset by reduction in equipment 14 

Refuse & Recycling – fuel savings (reduced prices) (18) 

Street scene – vacancy rate cannot be fully achieved for operational reasons 35 

Additional green waste income – greater than budgeted uptake (101) 

Food Waste Pilot Costs in year (funded from monies allocated from previous year) 49 

Licensing – income loss 57 

Environmental protection & commercial forecast savings (26) 

Enforcement fine income loss (following suspension of car parking charges) 33 

Enforcement vacancy savings (14) 

Expenditure savings from postponed / cancelled fairs and festivals (141) 

Income loss from fairs / festivals 35 

Borne Corn Exchange savings through closure during Covid-19 (9) 

Borne Corn Exchange income loss 25 

The Reopening High Street Safely fund expenditure (offset by specific grant) 126 

Additional rent following letting of Grantham Offices (45) 

Minor Changes to forecasts (e.g. reduction in park letting fees, small vacancy savings) (15) 

Increase in pay award to 2.75% 48 

Forecast changes – Commercial & Operations 1,226 

 

Finance, Legal & Democratic £000’s 

Covid-19 Specific Costs (changes to buildings, PPE, software) 408 

Benefits overpayments recovery lower than forecast (revised debt recovery policy) 230 

Management review delay (no full year effect) 225 

Reduced procurement savings (procurement exercises on hold during first 3 months) 98 

Vacancy rates lower than modelled 79 

Increase to Members’ ward budgets 26 

Partnership savings (15) 

Increased Council Tax Subsidy Grant (48) 

Increase in pay award to 2.75% 36 

Forecast changes – Finance, Legal & Democratic 1,039 

 

 

55

Appendix B



 Summary of Changes to Budgets  

Growth £000’s 

Income loss – Arts Centres 928 

Arts Centres – furlough of staff (to date) (60) 

Arts Centres – other savings through closure (396) 

Income loss – Planning and Land Charges 415 

Land charges – reduced costs of searches  (37) 

Income loss – Property 300 

Income loss – Cinema complex 50 

Leisure Centres – Contractual Claim for income loss 800 

Leisure Centres – arbitration for income loss  19 

Leisure Centres – business rates savings during closure (93) 

Leisure Centres – water filtration savings during closure (65) 

Leisure Centres – loss of recoverable income at Grantham Meres Leisure Centre 25 

Homelessness – cost of emergency housing through Covid-19 202 

Minor other forecast changes – primarily vacancy related (37) 

Increase in pay award to 2.75% 56 

Forecast changes – Growth 2,107 

 

Transformation & Change £000’s 

Customer experience savings potential for savings delayed due to Covid-19 26 

Vacancies greater than modelled (57) 

Increase in pay award to 2.75% 54 

Forecast changes – Transformation & Change 23 

 

56



Finance Risk Register 

 
 

     
 

 

Risk 
ref 

Risk description 
Existing 
controls/plans/mitigations 

Action to be taken to enhance or expand 
existing controls 

Likelihood Impact Rating Priority 
L/M/H/VH 

Risk 
category 

1 

Income 
recovery 
forecasting 
amounts differ 
from actuals   

Monthly modelling of actual 
income received compared with 
forecasts assumptions 

Existing controls are appropriate and will 
continue to be reviewed  

2 3 6 Medium Financial 

2 

Forecast 
expenditure 
reductions vary 
over the coming 
months   

Monthly budget monitoring is in 
place across all service areas to 
review expenditure forecasts  

Monthly monitoring is in place so no further 
controls are required at this time  

2 4 8 Medium Financial 

3 

No further 
tranches of 
Govt funding is 
received   

There are no existing controls in 
place as this risk is external to the 
organisation  

The Council is actively involved in lobbying for 
further Government financial support 
although there is no confirmation of further 
funding being available  3 4 12 High Financial 

4 

Ongoing  
reduction of 
collection rates 
for Council tax 
and Business 
Rates 

Collection rates are monitored on 
a monthly basis 

Collection rates are monitored on a monthly  
basis and benchmarked against neighbouring 
authorities to share best practice  
 
Reinstatement of Recovery policy  

3 3 9 Medium Financial 

57

A
ppendix C



5 

Reinstatement 
of lockdown 
restrictions that 
have a negative 
impact on 
economic 
recovery  

There is an ongoing risk that the 
easing of restrictions either from 
a national or local perspective has 
a detrimental impact on the 
economic recovery of the District. 
This is an external risk and 
therefore no internal controls 
exist  

Ongoing monitoring is in place to review the 
situation as it evolves 

2 4 8 Medium  Financial 

 

 

58



2020/21 - 2022/23 General Fund Revenue Summary

Description

2020/21 

Current 

Budget 

£000

2020/21 

Amended 

Budget 

£000

2021/22 

Indicative 

Budget 

£000

2022/23 

Indicative 

Budget 

£000

1 Commercial & Operations 7,408 8,634 7,860 7,980

2 Finance, Legal & Democratic 4,847 5,886 4,355 4,584

3 Growth 6,536 8,643 5,274 5,262

4 Transformation & Change 3,962 3,985 3,671 3,717

5 HRA recharge (2,558) (2,566) (2,601) (2,678)

6 Net Cost of Services 20,195 24,582 18,559 18,865

7 Interest Payable & Investment Income (236) (107) (252) (236)

8 Minimum Revenue Provision 302 148 296 291

9 Revenue Contribution to Capital 72 72 189 231

10 Depreciation (4,114) (4,114) (4,586) (4,722)

11 Net Budget Requirement 16,219 20,581 14,206 14,429

Funding & Resources:

12 Council Tax (Excluding Parishes) (7,840) (7,840) (8,199) (8,569)

13 Government Grants (295) (295) (563) (204)

14 Retained Business Rates (4,954) (4,954) (3,757) (3,831)

15 New Homes Bonus (1,814) (1,814) (832) (524)

16 Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (957) (957) 0 0

17 Covid-19 Specific Grants 0 (1,801) 0 0

18 Co-payment losses contribution 0 (1,400) 0 0

19 Total Funding (15,860) (19,061) (13,351) (13,128)

Transfer to/from reserves:

20 Building Control Reserve 0 (51) 0 0

21 Busines Rates Volatility Reserve 0 0 0 0

22 Community Fund 0 0 0 0

23 Crowdfunding (64) (64) 0 0

24 Events and Festivals 0 0 0 0

25 Grants (191) (240) (12) (12)

26 ICT Reserve (217) (217) (70) (212)

27 Individual Electoral Registration 0 0 0 0

28 Invest to Save (262) (216) (150) 0

29 Local Priorities Reserve (136) (136) 0 0

30 Member Training and Development 0 0 0 0

31 NHB Transfer to Reserves 1,814 1,814 832 524

32 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees (56) (56) (56) (56)

33 Pensions Reserve - Current Employees (58) (58) 0 0

34 Property Maintenance Reserve (155) (90) (77) (77)

35 Regeneration Reserve (671) (621) (310) (160)

36 Special Expenses 17 17 29 29

37 Workshop Reserve (24) (24) (29) (32)

38 District Local Plan (54) (54) 0 0

39 Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (57) 4 157 4

40 Budget Carry Forwards from 19/20 Underspends (302) (302) 0 0

41 NET BUDGET DEFICIT 0 1,222 1,012 1,305

42 Proposed Actions: Budget stablisation reserve and use (1,222) 0 0

43 of expected further Government funding 20/21

44 NET BUDGET POSITION 0 1,012 1,305

59

Appendix D



This page is intentionally left blank



2020/21 - 2022/23 General Fund Capital Programme

Scheme Description

Current Budget + 

Carry Forwards 

2020/21

Forecast 

Spend 

2020/21

2021/22 2022/23 Requirement

Commercial & Operations

1 CCTV Matrix 12 12 12 12

2 Disabled Facilities Grant 860 860 0 0

3 Pool Vehicles 26 0 26 0 Deferral to 21/22

4 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 170 145 162 484
Partial deferral to 21/22 - 

Budget Carry Forward

5 Trade Waste Bins 24 24 24 24

6 Uffington Rd - Washdown Facilities 12 12 0 0

7 Vehicle Replacement Programme 655 655 660 825

8 Wheelie Bin Replacements 100 100 100 100

9 Vehicle Electric Charging Points 39 39 0 0

Finance, Legal & Democratic

10 Financial System Upgrade 50 0 50 0 Deferral to 21/22

11 Digital Services Compliance 55 55 0 0

Growth

12 Bourne Corn Exchange- Renovations 168 168 0 0 £70k to Stamford Arts Centre 

13 Car Park Barriers 50 0 50 0 Deferral to 21/22

14 Welham Car Park - Resurfacing 340 340 0 0

15 Welham Car Park - Security 24 9 15 0 Deferral to 21/22

16 Welham Car Park - Lift 50 50 0 0

17 Deepings LC - All Weather Pitch 200 200 0 0

18 Heritage Action Zone - Grantham 120 120 260 220

19 GAC - Renovations 175 175 0 0

20 GAC - Digital Boards 15 0 15 0 Deferral to 21/22

21 Meres LC - Lighting 10 10 0 0

22 SK Stadium Hammer Cage 12 12 0 0

23 Stamford Arts Centre - Roof repairs 195 195 0 0
£70k from Bourne Corn 

Exchange project

24 Shop Front Scheme 181 56 125 0 Partial deferral

25 Tourism Signage 100 0 100 0 Deferral to 21/22

26 Market Stall Covers 29 1 28 0 Deferral to 21/22

27 Public Realm 0 15 0 0

28 Meres Leisure Centre - Boiler 65 29 36 0 Partial deferral

29

Invest & Regeneration (Elm Street 

Stamford & Stonebridge Road Grantham 

demolition )

290 290 0 0 Budget Carry Forward

30 Cycle Shelter & Changing 50 50 0 0 Budget Carry Forward

4,077 3,622 1,663 1,665

61

Appendix E



2020/21 - 2022/23 HRA Capital Programme

Scheme Description

Current 

Budget + 

Carry 

Forwards

Forecast 

Spend 

2020/21

2021/22 2022/23 Requirement

Energy Efficiency Initiatives

1 Heating And Ventilation 2,300          1,900        3,285     2,853     Partial deferral

ICT

2 CCTV 30               30             -         

3 Housing System Enhancements 500             -            500        -         Deferral to 21/22

Purchase of Vehicles

4 Repairs Vehicles 286             146           273        186        Partial Deferral to 21/22

Refurbishment & improvement

5 Alarms - Tunstall System Upgrade 125             125           125        125        

6 Communal Rooms 70               10             70          130        Partial Deferral to 21/22

7 Doors & windows 100             80             120        100        Partial Deferral to 21/22

8 Housing Growth 21,500        12,800      25,835   14,000   Partial Deferral to 21/22

9 Kitchens& Bathrooms Programmes 1,200          1,000        1,400     1,200     Partial Deferral to 21/22

10 Roofing 1,200          1,200        1,200     1,200     Partial Deferral to 21/22

11 Electrical Rewires 300             225           375        300        Partial Deferral to 21/22

12 Septic Tank refurbishment 125             100           -         -         Partial Deferral to 21/22

27,736        17,616      33,183   20,094   

62



 

 

 

Cabinet 
8 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Rosemary Trollope-
Bellew 

  Cabinet Member for Culture and 
Visitor Economy 

           

 

Cultural Strategy 

This report outlines the process followed in creating a new Cultural Strategy for South Kesteven 
District Council and the considerations leading to the proposed final draft of the Strategy 
document.  

 

Report Author 

Michael Cross, Head of Arts 

 
01476 406129 

 michael.cross@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Growth Key All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Karen Whitfield, Head of Leisure 24 July 2020 

Approved by: Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth 20 August 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet 
Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 

21 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 

1. Approves the adoption of the Cultural Strategy as set out at Appendix 1 to this 
report. 

2. Recognises that the adoption of a Cultural Strategy is a key action within the 
emerging Corporate Plan, which also supports improvement and investment in 
local arts and cultural venues across the district. 

3. Notes the conclusions highlighted in the Cultural Strategy and advocates 
integrating these points into the Corporate Plan Action Plan, supporting the 
Authority’s goal to become one of the best places to live, work and visit in the UK.     

63

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Work to create a new Cultural Strategy began in 2017 as the Culture and Tourism Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee (renamed as the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee from July 2018) was engaged in a workshop programme which 

explored the vision for, and purpose of, the proposed Strategy. 

1.2 The workshops identified a clear set of overarching aims. It was agreed that the Strategy 

should seek to: 

- Enhance and support economic growth 

- Ensure an entertaining cultural offer 

- Encourage learning and participation 

- Enrich the lives of residents 

1.3 Through the workshop process, four strands were identified as the foundations for the final 

document:  

- Heritage 

- The Arts  

- Sport (This later became Sport and Physical Activity in order to recognise the wider 

benefits and opportunities for engaging in a more active lifestyle)  

- The Sciences 

1.4 Consideration was also given to where the Council could potentially add value to the 

activities within local communities and where it could support a district-wide improvement in 

the cultural offer.  

1.5 A series of cross-cutting themes were identified: 

- Support the delivery of festivals 

- Promotion of cultural offer 

- Promotion of suitable buildings and facilities  

- Dissemination of data and information 

- Support to enable access to funding and resources 

- Provision of logistical support, equipment and infrastructure 

- Provision of expert advice 

1.6 It was felt that specialist support should be procured to work alongside Members and 

Officers in this area. At a meeting in November 2017, the Culture and Tourism Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee recommended to Cabinet that an expert resource was 

commissioned, together with additional internal resources, to help develop the Cultural 

Strategy.  

1.7 A Head of Arts was appointed and took up the post in May 2018 who was tasked with the 

development of a strategy document. 

1.8 During the autumn of 2018, following a verbal update and initial consultation with the Culture 

and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the process for consultation with 

South Kesteven residents, cultural stakeholders and practitioners was approved. 

64



 
 

1.9 In January 2019 a series of ‘Cultural Conversations’ were introduced, with meetings held in 

Stamford, Grantham, Bourne and The Deepings. These sessions concentrated activity 

specifically around Arts and Heritage and welcomed over 200 attendees. 

1.10 Between March and May 2019, a wider online survey was conducted with 1073 responses 

(see background papers in Section 14). 

1.11 Following the appointment of a Sports and Physical Development Officer in January 2019, 

work also began on establishing a network of sports providers, user groups and other leisure 

sector stakeholders. 

1.12 Throughout the summer of 2019, a complementary series of stakeholder meetings were 

held across the four market towns, focusing on sports-related activity. These sessions 

promoted the wider physical activity engagement that would form part of the final Cultural 

Strategy document and contributed to the development of a specific future Sports Strategy 

for the district. 

1.13 A series of targeted activities were held through the spring/summer of 2019 to ensure the 

maximum reach of the consultation process. Examples of these varied events include 

workshop programmes, exhibitions, face-to-face meetings, stands at Stamford Arts Around 

Town Day, Denton Street Market, Deepings Raft Race and engagement across the 

Deepings Literary Festival programme. A special workshop tour to schools, engaging with 

staff, pupils and parents reached over 400 attendees during visits to Colsterworth, Allington, 

Ropsley, Deeping St. James, Barkston and Stamford. Further engagement included 

sessions with South Lincs Blind Society (20 attendees), Grantham Writers Guild (10 

attendees), Secondary Schools’ Consultations in Bourne, The Deepings and Grantham (10 

attendees at each), attendance at the South Lincolnshire and Rutland Local Access Forum 

(20 attendees) and the Rutland and Stamford Branch of The Embroiderers' Guild (25 

attendees). Linking activity to other events generated additional contact with residents 

across a range of demographics. Conversations were often informal and supported 

gathering more nuanced responses beyond those captured in the online survey.   

1.14 Work began on drafting the final document in the autumn of 2019. A review of the online 

survey report was then supplemented by collating responses from across the subsequent 

consultation activity. This process identified the key priorities for the draft document. These 

were discussed and confirmed with the Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its meeting on 5 November 2019 (see background papers in Section 14). 

Work on the text continued with an initial first draft shared with Members of the Culture and 

Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee in January 2020. Their comments 

informed the development of a revised draft. This text was discussed further at the Culture 

and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 11 February 2020 (see 

background papers in Section 14) and was then incorporated into the subsequent graphic 

design stage. The design process was delayed by the introduction of lockdown during March 

and officers responding to other priorities. On resumption of the work, several iterations of 

the design stage were refined, including the final selection of imagery.  

1.15 It was clear from the findings of the survey and through face-to-face engagement with 

residents that many of the barriers to accessing cultural activity were beyond the control of 

any single body or organisation. These barriers include:  

- Work or study commitments 

- No free time 

- Location/venue 

65



 
 

- Attending alone 

- Lack of transport 

 

1.16 The consultation work did, however, highlight five specific areas where the Cultural Strategy 

could support its original brief (as set out in para 1.2): Partnership, Accessibility, Cost, Event 

Timings and Communication.  

1.17 South Kesteven District Council will be able to provide a unique role as the conduit for 

ensuring these priorities are encompassed within all ‘in-house’ events and raise broader 

awareness of these priorities, promoting and sharing them with providers of activities offered 

within the district.  

1.18 The priorities have been considered in more detail within the strategy document and 

articulated in its conclusions. 

1.19 These conclusions will form the overarching focus for delivery of future activity creating a 

more consistent approach to the formation of specific action plans within service areas. 

1.20 Providing an interconnected policy for activity will support greater efficiency and improved 

communications, and will further develop the opportunities for greater partnership working 

and shared visions. 

1.21 On 3 July 2020 an ‘Edited Highlights’ document was designed and distributed to 153 

stakeholder groups and individuals for feedback as part of completing the circle of 

consultation and review.               

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Consultation has been at the heart of developing the Cultural Strategy document.  

2.2 The consultation process took place over a sustained period between January 2019 and 

October 2019 and sought to engage with the widest possible demographic. 

2.3 Public meetings and an online survey provided baseline responses from residents. 

2.4 Further, targeted discussions, focus groups and interactions with residents formed part of 

an ongoing conversation with residents, cultural providers and practitioners. 

2.5 These events included: Rural Schools’ Arts Tour, Village Hall ‘Drop-In’ Sessions, High 

Street pop-up stands and promotional activity, one-to-one meetings with stakeholder groups 

and organisations, attendance at events and meetings across South Kesteven throughout 

2019. 

2.6 Throughout the process, ongoing discussions, updates and consultation with the Culture 

and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee played a significant part in the 

delivery of the final document. 

2.7 Feedback throughout the process has been very supportive and encouraging. Creative 

practitioners, particularly, are keen to work as part of a more regular network, sharing 

opportunities and challenges.   

2.8 From the outset of this project, the consultation process has been part of an ongoing 

conversation with residents about the cultural offer in South Kesteven. During the Covid-19 

crisis, the Cultural Services team embarked on a regular schedule of online programming 

and communications. The feedback and level of engagement from this programming has 

been positive and extensive. Between May and July 2020, programmed events attracted 

over 20,000 views and reached over 40,000 followers on Facebook. 

66



 
 

2.9 Facebook responses throughout the programme have provided a clear illustration of the 

benefits and popularity of events in terms of both quality and delivery. Social media 

engagement will form a significant part of delivering greater accessibility and networking 

opportunities for future cultural activity. These responses are immediate, direct and provide 

an excellent snapshot of the reactions to the programme content and delivery. 

2.10 The introduction of a fortnightly e-Newsletter during lockdown provided regular 

communication with residents and stakeholders. Promoting the work of local practitioners 

and sign-posting residents to high-quality events was further supported by using the arts 

centre websites to host content an promote local creative practice. 

2.11 Work was commissioned directly with local providers (through Cultural Services’ funding 

from Arts Council England) with a focus on using local and regional providers. This policy 

supported local talent and enabled the established regional network to continue to operate 

during a challenging period. The emphasis on partnerships is a priority of the Cultural 

Strategy and maintaining these connections vital to continued development.               

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The 2013-16 Cultural Strategy included a vision for activity up to 2021: The themes included 

in this document could have been extended to include further relevant activity until that date. 

This option was rejected, as a new focus was identified to capitalise on the success of 

previous initiatives and to link together the growing opportunities for health and wellbeing 

as a key driver for wider cultural engagement. 

3.2 To establish a series of smaller discrete strategies for cultural activity: This was rejected as 

the early Members’ Workshops identified the need for a more cohesive approach to cultural 

programmes and greater connectivity between service area activity and initiatives.             

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 To adopt South Kesteven District Council’s new Cultural Strategy (see Appendix 1). This 

option will provide a renewed focus on the benefits of cultural activities to the health and 

wellbeing of residents. 

4.2 Covid-19 has offered a timely demonstration of the importance of creativity and physical 

activity to communities. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The proposed new Cultural Strategy will ensure continuity from the previous work delivered 

by the authority but also seek to effectively align future activity with wider corporate goals 

and aspirations.  

5.2 The additional pressures of Covid-19 will require all cultural activity to be especially creative 

and flexible. The proposed strategy will establish clear priorities to help focus and achieve 

this goal.  

5.3 This new document will allow South Kesteven District Council to create a fresh approach to 

cultural development, engaging in a broad programme of ongoing targeted interventions, 

initiatives and opportunities. These will provide the framework for improved partnership 

projects and seek to build a connected community of cultural providers for the benefit of all 

South Kesteven residents. 

5.4 Bringing together Arts, Heritage, Sports and Physical Activity and The Sciences will connect 

South Kesteven District Council’s activity in these areas. Through the Cultural Strategy, 

67



 
 

South Kesteven District Council will embrace its rich heritage, promote creativity and healthy 

lifestyles and respond to future potential opportunities through science and technology.    

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The Cultural Strategy will be made available online across all relevant websites – Arts 

Centres, South Kesteven District Council, InvestSK/Discover South Kesteven. It will be 

promoted via press releases and social media through the Council’s communications 

activities. 

6.2 A version of the ‘Edited Highlights’ contained within the Strategy will be shared more broadly 

through a pull-out section within a future edition of SKToday. 

6.3 Accessible versions of the document will also be explored with relevant partners. 

6.4 Implementation of the Cultural Strategy will begin with the development of the annual action 

plan for Cultural Services. The strategy will also be shared with colleagues across South 

Kesteven District Council in order to embed its ethos as part of the emerging Corporate 

Plan. 

6.5 The Cultural Services Action Plan will include the following key actions:  

- Develop and support a cultural/creative sector network programme of events and     

activities in order to increase participation. 

- Support the creation of cultural/creative sector Community Interest Companies across 

SK to maximise investment from external creative sector funding bodies. 

- Support the provision of a programme of skills training and professional development 

for cultural/creative sector practitioners. 

- Through the Cultural Strategy create a strong, cohesive and inclusive Cultural Service, 

reinforcing South Kesteven District Council’s role as the district’s leading creative 

sector organisation, with the appropriate resources and skills to achieve this. 

- Review and improve the Arts, Events and Festivals programme, in order to provide a 

joined-up, mutually beneficial, district-wide programme of activity, working in 

partnership with local, regional and national organisations.  

- Support Visitor Economy initiatives through the promotion and delivery of an attractive 

and diverse cultural offer for residents and visitors, increasing participation and 

engagement. 

- Continue to build on the work of the SK Community and Voluntary Sector during Covid-

19 by mobilising and supporting ongoing volunteer work.  

- Develop partnerships with stakeholders supporting initiatives for physical and mental 

wellbeing.  

- Utilise innovative funding sources such as LotterySK, an updated SK Community Fund 

and The SK Covid appeal to support voluntary and cultural sector work within the 

District. 

- Successfully deliver the Cultural Programme for the Grantham Heritage Action Zone 

project. 

- Support the cultural development of high streets in Bourne, Deepings and Stamford 

by applying lessons learnt from the Future High Street Fund and accessing other 

external financial investment.  

68



 
 

- Attract and encourage diverse cultural/creative sector businesses to be established 

and successful in SK and work proactively with cultural/creative sector businesses to 

ensure they can operate safely through the Covid-19 recovery phase and beyond. 

6.6 The strategy will be implemented through agreed annual action plans and delivered through 

appropriately resourced and agreed budgets.  

6.7 Activity targets will be measured through agreed Operational Performance Indicators. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The Cultural Strategy actions will be delivered through budgets agreed as part of the annual 

budget setting planning.  

7.2 South Kesteven District Council led activities will form part of the annual funding allocated 

to Cultural Services for the delivery of the Arts Centres’ and Festival programmes.  

7.3 Further funding will be identified through applications to external funders on a project basis 

and in partnership with other organisations.    

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The legal implications of individual actions arising from future relevant action plans will need 

to be assessed as and when the projects are developed.    

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 An equality impact assessment has been carried out and is presented in Appendix 2 which 

showed that no major change to the Strategy is needed because the equality analysis has 

not identified any potential for discrimination or negative impact and all opportunities to 

promote equality have been taken. 

9.2 However, the recent focus and move to more remote and digital service provision could 

negatively impact older people and those without access to internet (potentially in the more 

rural areas); these will need to be assessed and mitigated on a service-by-service basis as 

those plans are developed.  

9.3 Engagement with stakeholders and residents throughout the pandemic has highlighted very 

clearly the appetite for embracing digital platforms and the benefits online activities can bring 

to attendance at events and opening up new experiences to audiences. A regular e-

Newsletter, issued to over 14,000 recipients per edition, has resulted in very direct feedback 

from users through social media channels. The number of views for events has taken 

creative experiences into thousands of homes across the district and beyond.  The Cultural 

Strategy will seek to develop the potential of digital engagement through its priorities for 

partnerships, communication and accessibility, in addition to more traditional methods of 

engagement such as face-to-face, radio campaigns and printed material. 

 

 

 

 

69



 
 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are included in 

the table below: 

Category Risk Action / Controls 

Funding. Added financial 

pressures due to the 

pandemic, may impact on 

longer term delivery of 

cultural projects both from 

internal sources and funding 

from other cultural 

organisations. 

Longer term forward planning will provide access to a 

greater number of opportunities to bid for funds from 

external sources.  

However, it will be important to ensure that all future service 

plans present projects that are financially flexible.  

Delivering high risk events should be mitigated by wider 

engagement with a range of funding partners. 

Engagement. Failure to 

effectively communicate 

with sector organisations.  

A priority for the successful delivery of this strategy will be 

the development of an effective range of communication 

tools and ensuring regular, efficient and relevant 

engagement with stakeholders.    

Accessibility. Failure to 

ensure effective measures 

for access to events and 

activities.  

Seek to provide a range of communication tools – 

especially around digital engagement.    

Actively seek to work more closely with organisations and 

partners representing groups and individuals with protected 

characteristics.  

Ensure that the district’s rural communities have regular 

access to cultural programming opportunities and events.  

 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 There are no direct community safety implications arising as a result of this report. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 Some activities will require participants to travel and many events will consume energy and 

generate waste. 

12.2 There is an opportunity to develop more online content for activities. The successful digital 

arts programme delivered in response to Covid-19 has provided an excellent example of 

what can be achieved through the use of online platforms. 

12.3 Cultural projects delivered by South Kesteven District Council will limit the use of printed 

promotional material as part of an ongoing commitment to reduce the Council’s carbon 

footprint.  

12.4 As part of contributing to the Council’s political ambition, to reduce the Council’s carbon 

footprint by at least 30% by 2030, project teams, throughout the event planning process, will 

be required to review energy usage, methods to reduce consumption and increase 

efficiency. 

12.5 Best practice will be shared with the organisers of other events held across South Kesteven.    

70



 
 

12.6 The Cultural Strategy document specifically makes a commitment to: “Supporting initiatives 

to ensure existing and planned festivals and events are environmentally sustainable, 

demonstrating best practice and sharing expertise, to align with the Council’s Climate 

Emergency declaration.” 

12.7 Work has already begun through a research project with Harlaxton Manor and the University 

of Evansville - Presenting Sustainable Events in SK.    

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None. 

14 Background Papers  

Cultural and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meetings: 

14.1 5 November 2020: 

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24218/Cover%20sheet%20and%20report%20-

%20cultural%20strategy.pdf  

14.2 11 February 2020 

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24818/Cover%20sheet%20-

%20Cultural%20Strategy.pdf  

14.3 SLPD012 – Cultural Strategy: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18497/SLPD012_CulturalStrateg 

y_Sept20172.pdf 

14.4 SLPD013 – Cultural Strategy: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18977/SLPD013 

14.5 iSK003 – Cultural Strategy: http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20777/ 

14.6 South Kesteven District Council Cultural Conversation Survey Results: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980&Ver=

4  

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix 1 - South Kesteven District Council Cultural Strategy 2020 - DRAFT 

15.2 Appendix 2 – Equality Impact Assessment – Cultural Strategy 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

16 June 2020 

Final Decision date   8 September 2020 

 

71

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24218/Cover%20sheet%20and%20report%20-%20cultural%20strategy.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24218/Cover%20sheet%20and%20report%20-%20cultural%20strategy.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24818/Cover%20sheet%20-%20Cultural%20Strategy.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s24818/Cover%20sheet%20-%20Cultural%20Strategy.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18497/SLPD012_CulturalStrateg%20y_Sept20172.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18497/SLPD012_CulturalStrateg%20y_Sept20172.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18977/SLPD013
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20777/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



South Kesteven District Council 
Cultural Strategy

2020 Draft

73

Appendix 1



2 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Culture and Covid-19
The Covid-19 pandemic has created enormous 
challenges to cultural organisations across the 
world.

Locally, the cultural sector has been deeply affected 
by the closure of arts centres, leisure centres and 
other public buildings. The district’s independent 
cultural destinations, including visitor attractions, 
arts venues, museums and libraries have also 
closed their doors.

Gravity Fields, South Kesteven’s internationally 
renowned science and arts festival - due to be held 
in Grantham in September 2020 - was postponed 
until 2022 and a wealth of cultural events and 
activities scheduled across the 2020 have been 
postponed and rescheduled.

Oscar Wilde, in his 1889 essay The Decay of 
Lying wrote that, “Life imitates Art far more than 
Art imitates Life.” The priorities identified in South 
Kesteven’s Cultural Strategy have been brought 
sharply into focus during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
South Kesteven’s responses to Covid-19 illustrate 
the relevance of these priorities in light of the health 
emergency. 

The pandemic recognised the enormous importance 
of cultural activities to the health and wellbeing of 
residents. The lessons learned from handling the 
crisis can be applied to the council’s responses to 
delivering this Cultural Strategy over the coming 
months and years.

Partnership, Accessibility, Event Timings, Cost and 
Communication were all highlighted as areas for 
future focus and development.

South Kesteven’s responses to Covid-19 illustrate 
perfectly the importance of these factors in order 
to deliver an effective, relevant and timely strategy 
for action, putting partnerships at the heart of a 
successful campaign to fight the crisis. 

Furthermore, providing residents with information 

and support - ensuring maximum accessibility and 
reach to this information - connected individuals, 
communities and organisations together like never 
before.

The timing of interventions and the speed of delivery 
supported those most in need of help and advice.
Throughout the crisis, protecting financial stability 
and introducing measures in relation to costs, 
supported those in most need.
 
Throughout the pandemic, a successful online 
programme of arts events and greater digital 
engagement played a huge part in maintaining our 
connection with stakeholders and residents.

The Covid-19 pandemic has added extra impetus 
for the need to collaborate and rebuild together, 
working together towards our goal for South 
Kesteven to be the best place to live, work and visit.

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 

Councillor Stevens 
Chair - Culture and Visitor Economy Overview  
and Scrutiny Committee

74



3 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Overview
Over the next few pages we throw the spotlight on 
culture in South Kesteven. 

‘Culture’ means different things to different people. 
To understand culture, it is vital to listen: to others 
interpretations, views, hopes and aspirations. 

That is exactly what we’ve done through our cultural 
conversation – listened to the views of people who 
produce cultural activities and goods and services, 
and those who experience them. 

The messages from those conversations have been 
received loud and clear and we can draw a number 
of conclusions.

South Kesteven is full of cultural talent and 
opportunity. There isn’t a single aspect of cultural 
representation that doesn’t feature somewhere in 
the district. People delivering cultural activities and 
experiences want to do more and reach out more – 
to fellow practitioners and to new audiences.

Residents want to engage with the cultural offer, 
but face obstacles – time, cost, accessibility. Taking 
these views into account, our conclusion is that we 
don’t need to reinvent the wheel. We don’t need 
massive transformational projects that will cost a 
fortune.

Instead, we will: 
› Build on the fantastic assets that are already 

here. 
› Bring talent out into the light and encourage 

it to flourish – enabling people who deliver 
cultural activities and experiences to access new 
audiences.

› Bring culture to the people – not always 
expecting them to go out and find it. 

And we should do this together - all of us taking a 
share and a pride in what we already have to offer 
to enrich our lives.

This should be a shared vision - a joint investment 
by us all in the cultural growth of our district, using 
our skills, expertise, knowledge and creativity to 
build upon our past successes.

We can learn from those things that weren’t 
successful and investigate how we can 
collaboratively continue to develop the assets, talent 
and opportunities we have available to us. 

Culture for the people, by the people. Whether that 
is: film, music, drama, dance, visual arts, literature, 
poetry, heritage, museums, sports, physical activity, 
science and scientific exploration, sculpture or 
digital innovation. 

We can all play our part: as artists, sportspeople, 
writers, readers, viewers or listeners. 

This strategy is about how we can help everyone to 
get involved.

Commencing in the autumn of 2020, the strategy 
will be implemented by a programme of events, 
projects and inititatves generated as part of SKDC’s 
Corporate Plan for 2021-22 and delivered by all 
those working in Arts, Heritage, Sports and Physical 
Activity and The Sciences right across South 
Kesteven.

75



4 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

The world changed over the past decade. The 
growth of social media and the explosion of new 
technology, our greater environmental awareness 
and increasing economic challenges resulted in 
people’s tastes shifting and expectations were 
revalued.

With the arrival of Covid-19 in 2020, the world now 
faced the single biggest shift in the ‘natural order’ of 
things for generations. Most cultural activities, large 
gatherings and participatory events will be changed 
enormously for an unspecified time – maybe forever. 
The cultural sector will need to respond quickly, 
finding new ways of working and engaging with 
audiences. Public safety will take on a whole new 
meaning. Regaining public confidence and exploring 
new approaches to the use of public spaces will be 
key to creating an effective and viable post-Covid-19 
cultural landscape.  
     
The economic challenges of austerity had already 
meant council budgets, like South Kesteven’s, had 
become tighter. Now, more than ever, we will need 
to be sure that we are providing safe, accessible, 
prioritised services, offering value for money for 
our residents in all areas of our business, including 
culture and leisure. 

South Kesteven District Council responded positively 
to the challenges of the pandemic to the cultural offer. 

Within Cultural Services, the Arts team launched a 
regular e-Newsletter, connecting arts centre patrons 
and the creative community together, promoting 
online programmes and signposting residents to the 
online work of local practitioners.

A series of specially commissioned pieces were 
created for the programme schedule, with a number 
of local practitioners engaged in the delivery of 
projects. 

Working with InvestSK, local practitioners were 
signposted to relevant government grants and 
support, as well as grants from other trusts and 
providers. A specific Artists & Craft makers free 
listing was also included within InvestSK’s online 
retail directory WhatShop.  
  
The influence of global and national issues will 
certainly continue to impact on wider investment 
and growth. Pressures on the high street and 
small businesses were already well-known too, but 
South Kesteven’s excellent connectivity to the rest 
of the UK still offers great potential and its strong 
community identity – very evident throughout the 
pandemic - hope for the future.

With the cultural sector’s vital input into health 
and wellbeing, the argument for a strong, well-
communicated, accessible cultural offer is as 
relevant as ever.

“The artist is not a special 
kind of person; rather  

each person is a special 
kind of artist.” 

Ananda Coomaraswamy, 19th 
Century Sri Lankan artist, renowned 
for interpreting Indian art to the west 

The national  
and international 
picture 

76



5 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

You’re receiving this document because South 
Kesteven is your home. We want you to read this, 
get involved, and tell us your thoughts. South 
Kesteven District Council’s vision is for our district to 
be recognised as one of the best places to live, work 
and visit in the UK. 

Research tells us that cultural activities enhance 
quality of life, health and well-being and bring 
communities together. 

 A strong cultural offering connects people and 
communities, offers new experiences, enriches 
lives and creates an identity for the area. However, 
South Kesteven’s challenges in delivering this are 
complex.

South Kesteven is not only a large district it is also 
very diverse. From our bustling market towns to 
quaint villages and rural locations, there can never 
be a ‘one size fits all’ solution to providing cultural 
opportunities. 

Varied and busy programmes in our market 
towns may not always be accessible to our rural 
communities but, it is equally important that those 
residents can access a broad cultural offering. And if 
we are to continue to develop and thrive culturally it 
is also important we continually engage and inspire 
our children - as our residents of the future. 

This document seeks to illustrate how we can 
achieve our vision.

Our journey... 

Last year, we started conversations with you about 
how you spend your time and what you think about 
the arts, culture, heritage, sports, science and other 
activities on offer here in South Kesteven. This 
document is our response. Your feedback shows 
South Kesteven has a wonderfully rich cultural 
landscape, with popular venues, open spaces and a 
varied festival programme enjoyed by residents and 
visitors. 

We want to make sure what’s on offer continues 
to make our towns, villages and rural areas great 
places to live, giving you the opportunities and 
encouragement to get involved. We hope our vision 
is yours too - a vision that is realised through us 
working with organisations and individual artists, 
local businesses and schools, where creativity, 
innovation, cooperation and shared opportunities 
are encouraged and enabled to flourish.

Introduction

“Cultural activities enhance 
quality of life, health and well-
being and are a great way of 

bringing communities together.”
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew

– Cabinet Member for Culture &
Visitor Economy SKDC

77



6 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

South Kesteven District Council’s previous 
cultural strategy echoed the themes of 
Lincolnshire’s priorities:
 
› to promote the benefits of South Kesteven culture

› to preserve and develop South Kesteven unique 
cultural offer 

› to enable and encourage people to participate 
 in South Kesteven cultural activity 

The strategy looked at the district as a whole - 
celebrating the strength of South Kesteven’s rich 
heritage, creativity and sense of community. 

Over the past five years, much has been implemented 
to realise these ambitions, with the contribution of 
cultural activities firmly embedded in South Kesteven’s 
long-term plans for economic growth and prosperity. 

Among the actions delivered from the strategy are: 

› The new improved cinema in the heart of 
Grantham’s cultural quarter and the critically 
exclaimed Gravity Fields Science Festival. 

› The continued wide and varied programme of arts, 
music, drama, dance and other cultural activities in 
Stamford including the first Arts Around Town event 
in February 2019 and again in February 2020, 

which brought a whole range of arts and drama out 
into the streets. 

› Partnership working with schools in Bourne 
including the Westfield Academy and Bourne 
Academy.

› Collaborating with the Bourne Old Town Hall Trust, 
through the Community Funding scheme, providing 
programming support and offering ongoing 
consultation. 

› Working with The Deepings Community Library 
to support and promote The Deepings Literary 
Festival 

› Taking arts and culture out to the rural communities 
through the Music in Quiet Places and the Live & 
Local Rural Touring scheme. 

Previous cultural strategy

Councillor Judy Stevens
Chair - Culture and Visitor Economy 

Overview and Scrutiny  

“The contribution of cultural 
activities is firmly embedded 

in South Kesteven’s long term 
plans for economic growth and 

prosperity.” 

78



7 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

What is culture? 
The word culture means different things to different 
people - from music and films, to books and the food 
we eat, to our religion or beliefs. 

But often when we talk about cultural activities, they 
are seen as ‘high-brow’ pursuits that are not really 
aimed at ordinary people. We want to dispel that myth.
 
At South Kesteven District Council we believe culture 
is for all of us - whatever our age, background, religion, 
or interests. Our focus is on supporting a varied 
programme that has something for everyone in our 
district, whether you love playing rugby or watching 
football, reading books or writing novels, whether you 
are a stay-at-home or working parent, a couple who 
love history or theatre, or someone living alone who 
wants to get out and meet new people. 

We believe culture is more than just the arts, and 
should include a programme that spans the arts, sport 
and physical activity, heritage and the sciences. In 
Arts Council England’s draft ten-year strategy it uses 
culture to mean all areas of activity associated with the 
art forms and organisations it supports - from heritage 
collections to combined arts, libraries to literature, 
museums to music, drama, dance and all things in 
between.

79



You may wonder why a cultural strategy includes 
sports and physical activity when it traditionally would 
have been kept separate. There has been extensive 
research on the connection between the two and the 
impact culture can have on sport, the way it’s played 
and where it’s played in the world. The main reason we 
are bringing sport and physical activity into our cultural 
strategy is because of the important role it plays in 
improving health and well-being and quality of life. 

Sports and physical activities also play a vital role 
in building communities by bringing people together 
with common interests. Whether your children or 

grandchildren play football, rugby, cricket or other team 
games, or maybe you play or run a team yourself; 
sports and most physical activities connect people.
 
When looking at the cultural landscape we cannot just 
look at arts and heritage in isolation because there is 
so much cross over. This strategy aims to encourage a 
much closer relationship between the two. 

Sports and physical activity 

8 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Sports and physical activities 
improve health and well-being 
and bring people together.

80



9 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Science has been incorporated into our new strategy 
because of the unique link South Kesteven has to 
scientific thinking. Our science heritage, through 
Sir Issac Newton, has provided the catalyst for the 
Gravity Fields Festival and generates thousands of 
visitors to the area each year via Woolsthorpe Manor 
in Colsterworth (his birthplace) and Grantham’s King’s 
School. 

The district’s historical association with manufacture and 
engineering and our current link to a host of technology 
specialists offer a superb opportunity to celebrate our 
heritage and develop the sector for future investment 
and growth. 

Bourne also hosts a science festival - Bourne SciFest 
- a biennial event organised by a group of volunteers 
associated with schools in the area, encouraging 
children at all levels in the curriculum to be inspired by 
science. Presenters go into schools with amazing and 
exciting science shows to engage children and generate 
interest in scientific learning and potential careers.
Many of the district’s schools demonstrate significant 
successes in science education, thanks to high-quality 
facilities and innovative programmes. Technological 
advances over recent years have highlighted great 
career potential for young people and the opportunity 
to support innovation and skills for future business 
investment. 

A ‘Go To Scientist’ programme – working with the 
National Trust at Woolsthorpe Manor in Colsterworth 
- seeks to generate further interest in science across 
all disciplines and provide the focus for developing 
this strand of the strategy. The work will bring together 
academics, higher education providers, science 
agencies, local schools, businesses and third sector 

organisations to promote science learning, through 
projects and celebrating scientific achievements. Once 
again South Kesteven District Council will provide the 
framework for joining up initiatives and linking local 
activity to wider programmes.

The sciences “The agricultural, scientific and 
technical sectors account for 

over 25% of all South Kesteven 
businesses. This is particularly 
prevalent in the South of the 

district where companies such as 
Alltech, Garford Farm Machinery, 
Martin Lishman and Opico are all 

significant employers.”

81



The jewels of our district are rich and varied, our 
museum collections, archives and heritage assets 
tell the stories of how South Kesteven has played an 
important role in almost every period of history. We 
have some magnificent stately homes including the 
magnificent Grimsthorpe Castle near Bourne and 
Belton House near Grantham (with its vast children’s 
adventure playground). Our schools, churches and 
airfields have equally enthralling tales to tell of our 
famous sons and daughters who helped shape history.
 
Over recent years we have also established a 
reputation for hosting internationally-acclaimed festivals 
such as Grantham’s Gravity Fields Science Festival 
and Stamford’s Georgian Festival. We are very proud 
of other community-led events such as the Deepings 
Literary Festival and Bourne Sci-Fest which add to the 
very packed programme of events across the district. 

We’d like more of you to spend your free time in South 
Kesteven, at our cinemas or theatres, with local clubs 
or associations, at our sports and leisure centres, in 
our parks or woodlands, or at one of our many varied 
festivals. 

Whether you are young or old, live alone or have a 
growing family, live in a small rural village or a bustling 
market town, you should be able to access the cultural 
activities you enjoy.

This is our ‘strategy’ on how we can support that ‘vision’ 
to become a reality - to enable you to be more active, 
have fun, socialise, learn new things or just get out and 
enjoy your local area. 

We want culture to be accessible to everyone in South 
Kesteven - offering all kinds of activities from pumpkin 
rolling at Easton Walled Gardens at Halloween, to 
Burghley Horse Trials, a local watercolour group to 
a village cricket match, a drama workshop to film 
screenings at our arts centres.

We aim to break down those barriers that may have 
previously prevented you from getting involved. Our 
vision is for South Kesteven to be a place to entertain 
and inspire you, to increase your knowledge and 
understanding of other times and other places and to 
encourage creativity. 

Our aims  “Our cultural 
strategy will seek 
to maximise the 

opportunities for you 
to get involved in the 

cultural life of our 
district.”

10 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT
82



South Kesteven is a large thriving district with four 
major historic towns and urban areas - Grantham, 
Stamford, the Deepings and Bourne and more than 80 
rural villages. More than 140,000 people call our district 
home along with more than 6,000 businesses. 

The district has a rich and vibrant heritage that goes 
far beyond the stone, bricks and mortar of its ancient 
monuments, grand stately homes, castles, glorious 
churches, historic market squares and listed buildings. 

The historic landscape, places and natural environment 
form a distinct character that can inform and inspire 
all forms of cultural activity. For example, the geology 
of the district and the limestone belt, running through 
from Fulbeck and south into Stamford, has created the 
unique historic built environment of those towns and 
villages. 

South Kesteven is brimming with stories of discovery, 
exploration and invention and residents who have 
changed the world and shaped our understanding of 
the universe. 

A key part of our vision is about ensuring we maximise 
opportunities to celebrate our history in an accessible, 
relevant, and inviting way for modern audiences. 

The offering in South Kesteven is already  
rich and diverse:

› There are around 265 sports clubs in South 
Kesteven and our leisure centres welcome over 
108,000 visitors per year. 

› Bourne Corn Exchange hosts over 250 events 
a year from craft fairs to dinner dances, amateur 
dramatics to live music shows and taekwondo to 

local clubs. 

› From April 2018 to March 2019, Stamford Arts 
Centre sold more than 62,000 tickets for more than 
750 cinema and live shows. 

› Over the same period, residents and visitors bought 
31,230 tickets to see 224 performances at The 
Guildhall Arts Centre in Grantham. 

› There were also almost 850 other sessions held 
between the two sites that people could get involved 
in from art and music classes to exhibitions and 
crafting workshops. 

› In 2019 the second Deeping Literary Festival 
welcomed over 1,100 people and brought some big 
name authors to the district. 

› The Live & Local Rural Touring scheme, which 
brought music, theatre, dance and comedy to village 
halls across the district, sold 1,249 tickets. 

› Nottinghamshire County Cricket Club brought first 
class cricket to Lincolnshire for the first time in over 
15 years and have committed to a future relationship 
with the district. Over five years, there will be 
nine first class fixtures held at Grantham Cricket 
Club together with a pilot programme of outreach 
coaching events across South Kesteven.

Where we are now

11 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Our vision is 
about celebrating 
our history in an 

accessible, relevant, 
and inviting way for 
modern audiences.”

83



12 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

We are already helping creative organisations and 
local groups access additional sources of funding. The 
creation of LotterySK, South Kesteven District Council’s 
weekly online lottery gives charities, organisations and 
groups across the district an additional way of raising 
money. LotterySK held its first draw in October 2018 
and in the first year raised just under £70,000 for good 
causes in South Kesteven. For every £1 ticket sold, 60 
pence goes to good causes in South Kesteven - more 
than twice the proportion raised by the National Lottery. 
Anybody over 16 can buy a ticket but only organisations 
in our district benefit. Players have a one in 50 chance 
of winning one of the prizes which range from three 
extra tickets to the £25,000 jackpot. When a participant 
chooses one of the good causes, the organisation 
receives a 50 pence donation, and 10 pence goes to 
SKDC Community Fund. If no charity is chosen, all 60 
pence goes to SKDC Community Fund which local 
organisations meeting the criteria can bid for. 

South Kesteven District Council has awarded more than 
£10,000 in grants to poets, artists, dancers and singers 
as part of its Creative Artists’ Small Grant fund. 

There are also a range of other funding and 
support opportunities for charities, community and 
voluntary groups including: 

› Small community grants through the council’s Ward 
Member Scheme. 

› Capital funding of up to £10,000 through the SKDC 
Community Fund. 

› Unlimited revenue and capital funding via the 
council’s crowdfunding platform CrowdfundSK - 
the council could pledge up to half of the funding 
(maximum of £10,000) to a project not previously 
funded via any other council funding source. 

We have been supporting a wide range of not-for-profit 
organisations and community groups across the district 
to develop their projects and secure external funding to 
deliver them.  Many have received support and advice 
at an early stage, particularly around identifying potential 
funders and developing a robust and achievable 
fundraising strategy.  Groups from a wide range of arts, 
heritage, sports and cultural services have benefited. 
As well as offering tailored funding advice and support 
there is a strong focus on building their fundraising 
capacity and skills to achieve a more sustainable future.

How we’ve helped arts, heritage, 
sports and cultural activities find 
funding 

84



13 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

We know much has been achieved since the last 
Cultural Strategy was introduced in 2013. However, 
as we look again at the cultural future of the district we 
wanted you to help us shape our future cultural vision. 

At the beginning of 2019 we started a conversation 
with you about culture in South Kesteven. We held 
a series of workshops in each of our market towns 
to encourage you to talk about what you do in your 
free time and what barriers prevent you from getting 
involved. 

More than 200 people attended these events and we’d 
like to thank every one of you who came along for all 
your comments, suggestions and feedback which has 
helped shaped this document. 

Throughout March, April and May last year, we 
promoted an online survey encouraging you to ‘Join 
the Conversation’ and tell us your views, needs 
and aspirations for how we can develop our cultural 
offering in the future. We asked you about: 

› The arts, heritage, sports and physical activities  
you like to take part in. 

› How often you participate. 
› How you found out about what’s on in the district. 
› How we could encourage more people to get 

involved. 
› What barriers prevented you from getting involved. 
› How the council could help overcome those 

barriers. 

In total, 1,073 people took part in the online 
conversation. 

Over the summer of 2019, we also met with sports 
clubs and other interested groups, organisations and 

individuals to discuss wider leisure interests, as well 
as delivering a number of cultural focus groups with 
children and young people.
 
As a result of our ‘cultural conversations’ throughout 
2019 the priorities you’ve identified bring our ongoing 
cultural aims back into focus. 

At best a strategy can only provide a snapshot of 
the cultural landscape at that time and the delivery 
of specific outcomes is invariably organic, requiring 
ongoing review and a long-term commitment to the 
process. 

So, at the start of this new decade we are now going 
to re-energise and refresh our commitment to the 
areas you feel require our attention. 

The conversation

“1,073 people took part in an 
online survey about culture, 
heritage, the arts, sports and 
sciences in South Kesteven. 
200 came to workshops. We 
spoke to sports clubs, young 

people and other groups. 
We listened and this is our 

response.”

85



14 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

When we decide how to spend our free time, we 
prioritise the things we enjoy. However, just because 
we like sports, doesn’t mean that we don’t like 
theatre, and just because we enjoy visiting museums 
and heritage sites that doesn’t mean we don’t like the 
cinema, or can’t enjoy a game of tennis.

You don’t separate your interests, so why  
should we? 

Our future approach aims to work with partners, 
communities, and other organisations to identify 
areas where we can work together and maximise 
our cultural offering.

By reviewing what is offered at our heritage sites, 
arts and leisure centres and in our wider cultural 
programme we will identify what could be taken to 
community centres and village halls and feed into a 
wider programme of activity. 

Just as our critically acclaimed Gravity Fields 
science festival in and around Grantham and 
Stamford’s highly successful Georgian Festival bring 
together the arts, heritage, sports and sciences, 
we aim to look for additional opportunities in the 
district to further interconnect and bring programmes 
together across disciplines to attract the widest 
possible audiences. 

Achieving our vision is not something South 
Kesteven District Council can, or should, do alone. 
We need to think differently about how we can 
collectively do things to make our cultural activities 
as sustainable as possible. 

We will continue to identify alternative ways of 
funding and resourcing programmes. We will 
support creative organisations to find other grants to 
reduce reliance on local government funding, so we 
are the creators of our own destiny. 

Our response
How you spend your free time is influencing how we think

86



› We could communicate with  
you better about what’s on offer. 

› You could not always get to activities and 
events because of poor public transport. 

› The timings of the activities sometimes didn’t 
fit in with busy modern lives. 

› There should be more opportunities for 
artists, societies, clubs and organisations, 
as well as others with an interest in cultural 
activities, to meet up and share ideas. 

› The cost of events was sometimes a barrier 
to participation.

› You want opportunities to network with other 
like-minded people or organisations to share 
knowledge, expertise and organise events 
and activities. 

15 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

You said:

87



16 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Partnership
The key focus of our response is about partnerships. 
We will look to further our work with organisations 
across the district - from community associations, 
village halls and parish councils to schools, 
colleges, businesses and national bodies - to widen 
the reach of our cultural offering. 

Through the five workshops we held with you in 
2019, we know there are lots of creative and cultural 
organisations throughout the district with ideas 
about how they can encourage greater participation 
in creative, cultural, sports, science and leisure 
activities. 

Our first priority is to focus on providing 
opportunities to bring people together both 
physically and virtually through networking events 
and social media groups to share ideas, expertise 
and opportunities. 

The workshops showed us there is a real passion 
for culture in the district but often artists, groups, 
organisations and individuals can feel isolated. We 
are proposing to make it easier for you to meet by 
hosting regular cultural networking events to bring 
creative people and groups from all cultural sectors 
together to share ideas and skills, supporting 
professional development. 

Accessibility 
Inadequate provision of public transport was cited 
by many of you as a reason for not attending 
events. While we cannot make buses and trains 
more frequent or put on additional bus routes, we 
could bring events closer to you. 

We are proposing to work closer with parish 
councils, parochial church councils and community 
associations to help utilise some of the fantastic 
facilities you have within your villages and rural 
locations, in order to bring some of the district 
events closer to where you live. It might be an arts 
exhibition in your local village hall or a small theatre 
production in your local church. We will seek to build 
upon the success of our rural touring programme 
with the Live & Local Rural Touring scheme and 
South Kesteven District Council’s hugely popular 
Music in Quiet Places initiative. 

Cost 
Some people said the costs of events put them off 
attending. Many events are presented or promoted by 
third parties (including events held at the arts centres 
and other venues). For these events ticket pricing is 
set by the event producer or organiser and is invariably 
directly related to the actual costs of staging the 
activity. 

We will work to ensure the events presented by South 
Kesteven District Council are available at a range of 
prices across the programme throughout the year. 

We will continue to provide a selection of free events 
as part of our festival programme and will work with 
partners and other organisations and providers to  
offer concessions and support for those who might 
need them. 

We will actively promote the wide range of events and 
activities that are offered free or discounted.
Some said that it was hard to run not-for-profit 
organisations from buildings because of the costs. 
Where possible we will signpost them to other 
organisations providing grants and funding for a range 
of ‘pop-up’ opportunities, residencies and other venue-
based activities.

What we will do

88



17 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Event timings 
A number of you told us the timing of events can be 
a further barrier to engagement. Invariably events 
are scheduled around set-up requirements and 
other physical and logistical factors. 

We will work to ensure that events presented by 
South Kesteven District Council are offered at a 
range of times across the programme throughout 
the year, so whether you are available mornings, 
afternoons, evenings or weekends, during the  
term-time or the school holidays, there will be 
events and activities you can get involved in. 

We will seek to remind event promoters, organisers 
and producers of the challenges and opportunities 
timings create. 

We will actively promote the timings of events and 
activities. 

We will always seek to advertise the programme 
in advance so patrons can plan their attendance in 
good time. 

We will also work with promoters and other 
organisations presenting events in South Kesteven 
to try, wherever possible, to avoid diary clashes and 
to encourage events that complement each other, 
or are on similar themes, to co-exist more effectively 
and encourage wider participation. 

Communications 
The pivotal part of our whole response is a renewed 
focus on communications. While the majority of 
people appreciate the wide range of cultural events 
and activities on offer, some of you told us you 
aren’t always aware about the events happening in 
the district. 

We will work to improve our communications to 
ensure all our residents and potential visitors know 
what is available in our district, when it is taking 
place and how to access it. 

We will focus on finely honing our communications 
in a number of ways. 

Chiefly, we will investigate options to develop 
Discover South Kesteven as a wider on-line 
directory or portal for all things cultural in the 
district. This directory could signpost residents 
to organisations and activities, help people 
understand alternative transport options and assist 
organisations and individuals in finding funding 
streams for projects. 

Furthermore, we will focus on providing 
opportunities to bring organisations, groups and 
other interested parties together to share ideas 
and develop programmes of activities, acting as a 
facilitator and enabler establishing a strong cultural 
network for South Kesteven.

We will also make sure we are effectively using 
all the platforms already available - such as 
the district’s destination brand Discover South 
Kesteven. This will support signposting people 
to what is available across the whole district and 
further develop a district-wide calendar of events 
with clear timings, prices and links to other similar 
events and interests.

Finally, we will look to maximise our opportunities 
to communicate through new and existing 
channels, from local newspapers to our own 
SKToday magazine and social media - asking 
you, our residents, to help us get our information 
out to as wide an audience as possible. The 
underpinning principle of this approach is creating 
communications about our cultural programme that 
are timely, relevant, informative and targeted. 

89



“Find out what 
the barriers are to 
accessing culture.”

“Set up an online forum 
and directory to share 

ideas and find expertise 
to enable and facilitate 
collaborative projects.”

“Include popular 
culture not just 
‘posh’ culture.”

18 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Your views - 
your strategy 

“Exciting times for 
South Kesteven and 
all of Lincolnshire.”

“Fantastic that you are 
actively engaging with 

the community and 
considering different 

perspectives.” 

“Thanks for this 
opportunity. Great 

meeting, really interesting 
to bring stakeholders 

together in this  
context.”

90



19 |  Cultural Strategy 2020 DRAFT

Conclusion
This strategy will provide the future direction for 
cultural activities and events within the district and 
underpin our general approach and priorities. It 
will drive the delivery of our individual service area 
action plans and provide the framework for our 
commitment to share projects with partners.
 
Whilst the launch of this document coincides with 
the start of an exciting and enormously challenging 
new decade, it is merely the starting point for the 
district’s proposed cultural development. 
 
Our strategy looks to highlight and celebrate all that 
is good about South Kesteven. It is our commitment 
to championing a strong cultural identity for the 
district. It is not a static piece of work, it will be 
subject to regular review, reflection, change and 
refinement. 

Working with our partners within South Kesteven 
and beyond, we will ensure that culture enhances 
the character, and is at the heart of, communities 
across the district.

To achieve this, we will build cultural engagement 
and accessibility by:

› Acknowledging the importance of accessible 
cultural activities for a rural audience. 

› Recognising the significance of engaging children 
at young age to inspire and challenge them. 

› Exploring clear routes for cultural practitioners to 
bring their work to new audiences.

› Celebrating and showcasing the importance of 
consistent, regular, small-scale interventions by 
connecting activities together to maximise their 
audience potential.

 
We will enable others to drive the cultural agenda by:

› Liaising with community groups and other cultural 
organisations to ensure joined up thinking and 
planning for activities and events.

› Supporting community/charity organisations, 
and the incremental growth of cultural projects, 
through signposting to funding and advice and 
sharing best practice. 

› Highlighting the opportunities offered by the 
district’s demographic for volunteering.

› Promoting the creation of a Community 
Asset Toolkit to help individuals, groups and 
organisations engage in the development of 
cultural activities, providing practical advice, 
guidance and contacts. 

› Actively working towards the development 
of an online platform, thereby empowering 
communities to make cultural projects more 
sustainable through a presence in a high profile, 
promotional resource that also promotes effective 
networking and improved event planning. 

We will ensure culture crosscuts all we do as 
a council by:
 
› Safeguarding heritage and other community-

valued assets through planning and regeneration 
strategies.

› Applying consistent messages to encourage 
cultural endeavour, including, but not exclusively, 
a strong focus on health and wellbeing. 

› Supporting initiatives to ensure existing and 
planned festivals and events are environmentally 
sustainable, demonstrating best practice and 
sharing expertise, to align with the council’s 
Climate Emergency declaration.

 

“We look forward to delivering 
this strategy with you and for 
you over the coming months. 

Let’s bring you together.”
Michael Cross, Head of Arts, SKDC

91



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

South Kesteven District Council 
Cultural Strategy 2020 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
 
Growth/Cultural 

Services 
 
 

Lead officer: 
Michael Cross                       
(Head of Arts) 
  

Date of Meeting  
 
22/07/20 

Assessors: 
Jo Dobbs –  
Arts Projects and 
Audience Development 
Manager 

Neutral Assessor: 
Carol Drury 

  

93

Appendix 2



 

 

 

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

Cultural Strategy. South Kesteven District Council will introduce and deliver a new 
Cultural Strategy for the district. The strategy document will focus on four main 
areas of activity – Arts, Heritage, Sports and Physical Activity and The Sciences.  
 
Each service area responsible for these sectors will work collaboratively with 
Members and officers across South Kesteven District Council to reduce barriers to 
engagement with cultural activities.  
 
Partnerships, Cost, Accessibility, Event Timings and Communications have all been 
highlighted as priorities for development.      
 
With a focus on work to improve the health and wellbeing of South Kesteven, 
discrete programmes of work, special projects and annual action plans will actively 
support the engagement of residents, groups and organisations with protected 
characteristics. 
 

 
 

Is this a new or existing policy?  New  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 
 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strategy 
have a positive or negative 
impact on any of the equality 
groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or negative. 
If you consider this policy etc 
is not relevant to a specific 
characteristic please explain 
why   

Age 
 
 

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
The strategy will seek to remove 
barriers to engagement and   
provide greater local access to 
activities and events. 
 

94



 

 

 

Greater awareness of the 
benefits of cultural activity on 
health and wellbeing will support 
improvements in the offer for 
residents.   

Disability 
 

 

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
The strategy will provide a focus 
on partnership working and seek 
to increase engagement for those 
with disabilities. This element of 
the strategy will be implemented 
through specific initiatives, events 
and programmes of activity within 
each sector. Working more 
closely with cultural organisations 
and communities will build on the 
current offer (e.g. relaxed and 
signed performances) and extend 
opportunities for future provision 
by raising the profile and 
awareness of both new and 
established initiatives. 
 
Greater awareness of the 
benefits of cultural activity on 
health and wellbeing will support 
improvements in the offer for 
residents.  

Race 
 

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
The development of a cultural 
calendar and more regular 
networking platforms will support 
opportunities to raise awareness 
of specific events and activities 
through special programming and 

95



 

 

 

projects. 
 
The strategy will provide a focus 
on partnership working, seeking 
to increase the diversification of 
events and participating 
practitioners.  

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
The strategy will provide a focus 
on partnership working, seeking 
to increase the diversification of 
events and participating 
practitioners. 

Religion or Belief   A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
The strategy will provide a focus 
on partnership working, seeking 
to increase the diversification of 
events and participating 
practitioners. 

Sex 
 
 
   

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
The inclusion of multi-discipline 
sectors within the strategy will 
support the promotion of a wide 
range of events and seek to 

96



 

 

 

attract new audiences and 
practitioners.    

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
The strategy will provide a focus 
on partnership working, seeking 
to increase the diversification of 
events and participating 
practitioners. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
Greater awareness of the 
benefits of cultural activity on 
health and wellbeing will support 
improvements in the offer for 
residents. 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
The strategy will provide a focus 
on partnership working, seeking 
to increase the diversification of 
events and participating 
practitioners. 

97



 

 

 

Carers A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
Greater awareness of the 
benefits of cultural activity on 
health and wellbeing will support 
improvements in the offer for 
residents. 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices of 
multiple 
deprivation) 
 

A new Cultural Strategy for South 
Kesteven District Council will 
provide a positive impact for this 
demographic.  

The new strategy encompasses 
four principal areas of activity – 
Arts, Heritage, Sport and The 
Sciences. Implementation of the 
strategy will support increased 
connectivity between these 
sectors and wider promotion of 
opportunities to engage with 
events and activities for all 
residents. 
 
Greater awareness of the 
benefits of cultural activity on 
health and wellbeing will support 
improvements in the offer for 
residents. 
 
The inclusion of multi-discipline 
sectors within the strategy will 
also support the promotion of a 
wide range of events and seek to 
attract new audiences and 
practitioners.    

General 
comments 

The new Cultural Strategy will stress the importance of greater 
collaboration between organisations and communities. Partnership 
projects and embedding cultural considerations into all district-led 
initiatives will support ever wider engagement with residents.  
 
The Cultural Strategy will complement SKDC’s Corporate Strategy 
action plans and support the authority’s goal for the district to be 
recognised as a great place to live, work and visit.  
 
Accessibility and equality will be at the heart of the new Cultural 
Strategy’s aims and objectives to:  
 

i) Enhance and support economic growth 

ii) Ensure an entertaining cultural offer 

98



 

 

 

iii) Encourage learning and participation 

iv) Enrich the lives of residents 

The Cultural Strategy document offers an overarching 

framework for cultural providers, practitioners and programmers 

to work collaboratively for the future development of South 

Kesteven’s cultural offer.  

Specific projects/events delivered or facilitated as a result of this 

strategy will be assessed for equitability and any barriers to 

participation will be either mitigated through reasonable 

adjustment or removed. 

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 
The development of the Cultural Strategy has taken place over an extended period. 
Initial public meetings with the four market towns, were followed up with an online 
survey. This received 1073 responses. Subsequently further engagement included a 
series of focus group events across the district together with a promotional stand at 
a range of public events, including High Streets, shopping centres and cultural 
events held throughout 2019. Specific engagement with targeted groups across 
South Kesteven sought to capture the widest possible demographic. 
 
A series of arts events in rural schools, included a session with parents, promoting 
the survey and creativity. The project team delivering this work included 
practitioners and activities reflecting diversity and inclusion.     
 
The priorities identified in the draft document reflect the need to address a number 
of barriers to engagement with cultural activity. These included: 
 

 Work or study commitments 

 Cost of participating 

 Lack of awareness 

 Times of events 

 No free time 

 Location/Venue 

 Attending alone 

 Lack of transport 

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

Overall, the consultation achieved significant coverage across groups and 
individuals representing residents with protected characteristics. Clearly, the relative 
proportion of responses from residents reflects the current make-up of the 
population. The Cultural Strategy will seek to promote and encourage engagement 
with all residents. The action-plans across all services will be mindful of the need to 

99



 

 

 

reach out widely and, as part of a collaborative programme, offer diverse and 
accessible activities across the year.          
 
SKDC will use data from the Arts Council Diversity Report from 2018-19, which 
includes feedback from the Arts Centres, as a baseline for audience engagement. 
 
Grantham is part of the Heritage Action Zone initiative. This four-year programme 
will specifically support cultural engagement in town centre areas with residents 
from a wide range of diverse communities and backgrounds.     
 
The council’s ongoing commitment to free events and festivals will also attract a 
broader and more diverse audience. 
   
The range of work on offer must always recognise the diversity of the population 
and differing access needs.  A focus on reviewing communication methods will 
include exploring opportunities to provide information in different languages and 
formats.   

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 
a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any potential 

for discrimination or for negative impact and all opportunities to promote 
equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead Officer 
and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality analysis or to 
better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

D Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality analysis 
has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 

100



 

 

 

b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 
changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Michael Cross 
(Name and title)   Head of Arts 
  

Date completed:  03/08/20  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 
(Name and title) Community Engagement and Policy Development 

Officer 
 

Date signed off:     03/08/20  
 

101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cabinet 
8 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 
 

  Cabinet Member for Communities 

         
  

 

Area Offices - Customer Consultation 

This report considers the outcomes of the two customer consultations relating to proposed changes 
to the Market Deeping and Stamford Area office provision. It sets out a series of recommendations 
in response to the feedback received. 

 

Report Author 

Nova Roberts, Head of Customer Experience and IT 

 
 01476 406506 

  Nova.Roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Key All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director, Transformation and 
Change 

14 August 2020 

Approved by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director, Commercial and 
Operations 

17 August 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for 
Communities 

18 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Approve the relocation of the Market Deeping Area Office based on option three 
contained within the report  

2. Approve the relocation of the Stamford Area Office based on option three contained 
within the report 

3. Authorise the use of the property reserve to meet any costs relating to the exiting of 
each site 

103

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

4. Recommend to Council a funding allocation of £100k to be included in the 2020/21 
capital programme in order to undertake a modernisation scheme at Stamford Arts 
Centre. 

 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 On 16 January 2020 the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

considered proposals for a new Customer Experience Strategy. This was later considered 

by Cabinet on 21 January 2020. Cabinet approved the content of the strategy. The strategy 

recognises that as a Council we have a wide range of customers, including those who have 

traditionally used our services regularly and those who use our services less frequently. 

1.2 Customer expectations continue to increase. The way that people want to access services 

has changed and people expect to be able to interact through an ever-increasing range of 

modern technologies, whether that be through artificial intelligence, intelligent websites, 

social media, online accounts and digital forms, webchat or chatbots and apps. 

1.3 As considered within the budget for 2020/21 we must ensure that our services are both 

affordable and sustainable, whilst meeting the expectations of the communities that we 

serve. To achieve this, we need to provide an ever-increasing depth of service that is 

efficiently delivered across all channels of interaction – modernising our services to be fit for 

the future. 

1.4 The strategy sets out the approach to modernising the telephony offer, improving the 

website, potentially rationalising the face-to-face service offering and increasing self-service 

provision, as well as the content of our customer accounts. 

1.5 At the same time as approving the Customer Experience Strategy in January 2020, Cabinet 

considered proposals to create a North and South hub in the district providing online digital 

services, payment kiosks, face-to-face support, enhanced access to web forms and 

signposting. Cabinet agreed to commission a consultation for the proposed changes to the 

Stamford and Market Deeping area offices.  

1.6 A public consultation ran for four weeks between 23 January 2020 and 21 February 2020. 

The results of the consultation are shown in the background papers. Since completion of 

the consultation the style of customer service provision has changed significantly as a result 

of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

1.7 The pandemic saw all the face-to-face customer service centres being closed from 23 March 

2020 in order to protect the health and safety of our customers and staff. This saw a change 

in customer behaviour, with an increase in demand through online and email channels, 

along with customers also continuing to interact via the telephone service. 

1.8 During this time the entire customer service provision was being provided virtually, with staff 

being home based. However, provision was put in place to enable emergency face-to-face 

appointments to be completed. There was no demand for this service as the team were able 

to manage all interactions successfully through other routes.  

1.9 In addition, the Council established the SK Community Hub using redeployed staff, to 

manage the Covid-19 related contacts. This ensured that residents were able to access the 

help and support that they needed from both the Council and key external stakeholders. 

This provision has now been transitioned into the main Customer Service offering with effect 

from 6 July 2020.  

104



 
 

1.10 As the level of Covid-19 risk has reduced steps have been made to gradually reintroduce 

face-to-face provision. The Customer Service Centre in Grantham opened on an essential 

appointment only basis from 6 July 2020. There has been very limited demand for this 

service to date. 

1.11 The Bourne Community Access Point provision reopened its doors for books to be returned 

from 3 August 2020. This service is due to be extended further on 26 August 2020 to enable 

book collections and limited appointments.  

1.12 As a result of the changes in provision outlined above, a second public consultation took 

place to establish if there had been any shift in opinion as a result of the changes to the 

service offer, and the observed shift in behaviour. The consultation ran for two weeks, 

between Monday 20 July 2020 and Monday 3 August 2020. Copies of the consultation 

questions can be found for Market Deeping in Appendix 1, and for Stamford in Appendix 4. 

1.13 To ensure that we captured as many views as possible the Council took a proactive 

approach to engaging with residents, businesses and other interested parties. We 

approached over 60 individuals, groups and organisations who we knew would be likely to 

have used, or represent those that utilise, the current service provision. A full list of those 

engaged with is included in the background papers. 

2 Market Deeping Results 

Survey One 

2.1 The Market Deeping survey received 131 responses. 115 of these were received online via 

Survey Monkey and via email (87.8%), 16 in paper format (12.2%). 

2.2 During the consultation we were approached by one respondent who asked that 

consideration be given to working with Deepings Community Library as well as the 

community centre. Consideration was given to this with further exploration being completed 

during the second consultation.  

2.3 The data from the Market Deeping questionnaire is summarised in the background papers. 

2.4 The written responses to the survey provided additional context which has enabled further 

analysis of the proposed changes to be completed. 

2.5 The survey clearly showed that: 

i) Those using the existing service believe that the members of staff are helpful and 

knowledgeable. 

ii) Respondents highlighted that they like to speak to someone face-to-face and do 

not always like to use modern technology. 

iii) Concerns were raised that the proposal could disadvantage the more vulnerable 

members of the community. This is considered in more detail through the equality 

analysis. Consideration has been given to how any negative impacts can be either 

reduced or mitigated.  

iv) Feedback was also provided in relation to the challenges that could be faced in 

travelling to other locations and the carbon impact that this would have. However, 

respondents highlighted that there were opportunities for the Council to work more 

effectively with partner organisations to ensure that some provision remained in 

Market Deeping and to reduce the need for residents to travel elsewhere to 

access services. This could be achieved through volunteers, or by providing a 

service on a reduced number of days. 

105



 
 

Survey Two 

2.6 The Market Deeping survey received 44 responses, all of which were completed online. 

2.7 Just under a quarter of the respondents had contacted the Council during the Covid-19 

lockdown period. This means over three quarters of responders have no first-hand 

experience of the way that services are currently being delivered.  

2.8 The survey confirmed that customers had opted to access services electronically and by the 

telephone. Interestingly, unlike the respondents to the Stamford survey, most had not 

changed the way they contact the council. Just under three quarters of respondents had 

contacted the council through the website, email and telephone. 

2.9 The survey suggests that the most popular enquiries related to asking a question, reporting 

something or to apply for something. These are all enquiries that can be effectively managed 

via the telephone and through digital channels. 

2.10 The survey shows an increase in the percentage of people agreeing with the proposal. In 

February 2020, 15.4% agreed with the proposal. This has increased to over 40% in July 

2020. 

2.11 The output report from the second Market Deeping survey is summarised in Appendix 2, 

with the consultation responses being shown in Appendix 3. 

3 Stamford Results 

Survey One 

3.1 The Stamford survey received 392 responses. 221 were received online through Survey 

Monkey or via email (56.4%), 171 in paper format (43.6%). 

3.2 The survey results showed that those using the existing face-to-face offer recognise the 

quality and professionalism of the service provided. This is a real credit to the officers 

concerned and any changes need to ensure that the quality of service remains high. 

3.3 General feedback suggested that some, particularly the elderly, may lack the ability to utilise 

modern technology. Consideration has been given to how we can support those less able 

to interact with us through new solutions to ensure that this does not become a barrier to 

access.  

3.4 The survey findings highlighted that the Stamford Arts Centre is a well-used facility but can 

be crowded and noisy at certain times.  This provides an opportunity to make customers 

aware of our services in a face-to-face setting who were not aware of our provision 

previously. However, consideration needs to be given to any discussions with customers 

and how we ensure an appropriate level of confidentiality and accessibility for all.  

3.5 There were several suggestions that we open in another Council building for shorter, or 

fewer days, but maintain some level of face-to-face provision. This is potentially a 

consideration with the existing facilities at Stamford Arts Centre which could provide a mix 

of staffed and self-service access. 

3.6 This could provide increased hours of access for self-service supported by different levels 

of help and assistance to manage seasonal demands.  

3.7 During the presence at Stamford Market, anecdotal feedback was received from customers 

who were against closing as they felt that it was another provision being removed from the 

town, with specific reference to bank closures. 

3.8 The output report from the first Stamford survey is summarised in the background papers. 

106



 
 

 

Survey Two 

3.9 The Stamford survey received 115 responses, all of which were completed online. 

3.10 Just under half of the respondents had contacted the Council during the Covid-19 lockdown 

period. This means over half of responders have no first-hand experience of the way that 

services are currently being delivered.  

3.11 The survey confirmed that customers had opted to access services electronically and by the 

telephone. Around two-thirds of people stated that the way that they contact the Council has 

changed. 

3.12 The survey suggests that the most popular enquiries related to asking a question, reporting 

something or making a payment. These are all enquiries that can be effectively managed 

via the telephone and through digital channels. 

3.13 The survey shows a decrease in the percentage of people that disagree with the proposals. 

There is a growth in the number of people that feel that the proposals are acceptable. 

3.14 The output report from the second Stamford survey is summarised in Appendix 5 with the 

consultation responses shown in Appendix 6. 

Further information and feedback 

3.15 A detailed Equalities Impact Assessment (Stage 2) was completed following the first 

consultation. This is shown in the background papers. A further assessment has been 

completed following the second consultation exercise. This is shown in Appendix 7.  

3.16 Comparison tables and charts showing the key consultation metrics from the first 

consultation for both sites are shown in the background papers. Tables and charts relating 

to consultation two are set out in Appendix 8.  

3.17 Consultation feedback confirmed a need to modernise elements of the customer offer to 

improve accessibility. Consideration was given to the provision of resident parking permits 

and taxi licence issuing. These interactions are being redesigned to reduce or remove the 

need for face-to-face provision, along with the introduction of a ‘click and collect’ solution 

where required. 

3.18 Feedback from the Head of Arts includes the need to provide awareness training for the 

support and development of the front of house team in the Arts Centre. The Customer 

Service team could attend regular staff meetings and deliver training with the Arts Centre 

team to ensure that service delivery can be monitored, and the communication clearly 

agreed. 

3.19 Engagement with Deepings Community Library and the Community Centre was completed. 

The Friends of Deepings Community Library Committee agreed that: 

• A kiosk solution could be located in the library 

• Specific locations and timelines for training will be agreed from 5 October 2020 onwards 

• Agreement for the opening date of the provision will be reached in October 2020. 

3.20 A review of the provision at Stamford Arts Centre has been completed. The Strategic 

Director for Growth has confirmed that the customer service provision can be 

accommodated within an accessible space available at the centre. However, some 

reconfiguration of the internal space will be required which will see additional cost of 

approximately £10,000.  

107



 
 

3.21 An emerging need has also been identified to modernise the offer at Stamford Arts Centre 

to ensure that the space available is used effectively and more productively. There is an 

opportunity to minimise disruption and gain greater economies of scale by scheduling this 

work at the same time as the customer service changes. The remodelling of the centre is 

likely to cost £90,000. This would need to be built into the future capital programme.  

3.22 Some of the feedback received during the first consultation thought the removal of the SKDC 

face-to-face service provision would isolate Stamford more from the other towns in the 

district and was seen by some as a clear withdrawal from SKDC and support for the town. 

This is considered in more detail through the equality analysis, shown in the background 

papers and Appendix 7. 

4 Available Options Considered 

Market Deeping 

4.1 Several options have been considered for the future of customer service provision in Market 

Deeping. 

Option 1: Closure of the Market Deeping Customer Service Centre 

4.2 This option would see the closure of the Market Deeping customer service centre with no 

alternative physical provision in Market Deeping. 

4.3 Evaluation of Option 1: 

• This would remove the face-to-face customer service advisor currently available Monday 
to Friday 22.5 hours a week and no weekends. It would also remove the PC and direct 
dial phone to access council services.  

• Customers would be required to travel to Bourne or Grantham for any face-to-face 
services. PCs in the library could be used by those able to use a PC and navigate our 
website. Payments could be made over the phone.  

• If required, face-to-face appointments could still be arranged in suitable locations.  

• Volunteers in the Community Centre would be able to signpost customers to the library 
and to the customer service centres in Bourne or Grantham.   

• This option could mean that we may not reach all customers in the district and could 
isolate vulnerable customers.  

• The current access to SKDC services in the Community Centre is easily accessible 
within a well-used facility so removing this completely would mean that the reputation of 
the service could be diminished by customers ‘opting out’ and disconnecting with 
services and support. 

• The equality impact assessments consider this option against each of the protected 
characteristics. A number of negative impacts were identified which cannot be effectively 
mitigated against within this option. 

Option 2: Replace the existing centre with an enhanced self-service provision 

4.4 This option would see the complete removal of the face-to-face provision in Market Deeping. 

However, this would see the installation of a kiosk, computer and direct dial phone within 

the Deeping Community Centre. 

4.5 The option would see the current staff from Market Deeping providing services from other 

locations across the district and would require some modernisation of council services to 

support a change in provision. 

108



 
 

4.6 Evaluation of Option 2:  

• This would see the changes highlighted in option one be introduced. However, providing 
the self-service tools of a kiosk, computer and direct dial phone within the Deeping 
Community Centre would enable access to all services that are currently available 
without the need to provide a customer service advisor on site.   

• This would be accessible to all and could be located in a position to ensure an 
appropriate level of accessibility and privacy.    

• The equipment would need to be checked and serviced at regular intervals to ensure 
that it remains in good working order and does not restrict accessibility to services or the 
ability to ask questions and make payments.   

• Both equality impact assessments consider this option against each of the protected 
characteristics. The option goes some way towards mitigating the negative impacts of 
complete removal of service by providing a telephone-based system, as well as a kiosk 
and PC access. However, there was some feedback suggesting that those with certain 
protected characteristics, most notably age and disability, could still be disadvantaged. 
The option does not completely remove this detrimental impact. 

Option 3: Replace the existing centre with a signposting service through Deepings 

Community Library with an enhanced self-service offer  

4.7 This option sees the replacement of the customer service provision with a signposting 

service at Deepings Community Library and the installation of a self-service kiosk. 

4.8 We would work with Deepings Community Library to provide basic training to their team so 

that they are able to signpost customers who choose to access through this route.  

4.9 Evaluation of Option 3: 

• This option utilises the opening hours of the Library providing an additional 17.5 hours 
opening though to 5pm in the week and 5 hours on a Saturday. The Library is closed on 
Thursdays.  

• The equality impact assessments consider this option against each of the protected 
characteristics. This option provides a combined offer of self-service provision with face-
to-face signposting to support the most vulnerable. It is therefore possible to mitigate the 
impact of the change to a greater degree through this option than the first two options. 

Option 4: Continue the existing service provision 

4.10 This would see the continuation of the current service in its present form. However, it is 

recognised through the survey that the facility is in need of modernisation. Whilst the quality 

of response from our employees is regarded as excellent, the environment no longer 

provides the level of customer experience that we would expect.  

4.11 Evaluation of Option 4 

• Significant investment would be required to modernise the provision to ensure it was 
consistent with the wider customer service offering. This is not seen as value for money 
given the low level of demand that the service sees. 

• The current operating model is inefficient and there is a need to ensure that customer 
services as a whole provide a high-quality response to all residents in the district. This 
cannot be optimised in its current form. 

• The equality impact assessments consider this option against each of the protected 
characteristics. They highlight that potentially younger customers may be disadvantaged 

109



 
 

as modern technologies are not available. However, no additional negative impacts were 
identified. 

 

Stamford  

4.12 Several options have been considered for the future of customer service provision in 

Stamford. 

Option 1: Closure of the Stamford Customer Service Centre. 

4.13 Evaluation of Option 1: 

• This option would see the closure of the Stamford customer service centre with no 
alternative physical provision in Stamford. 

• This would remove the face-to-face customer service advisors currently available 
Monday to Friday 38 hours a week and no weekends. It would also remove the PC and 
direct dial phone to access council services.  

• Customers would be required to travel to Bourne or Grantham for any face-to-face 
services. Payments could be made over the phone.  

• If required, face-to-face appointments could still be arranged in suitable locations.  

• This option could mean that we may not reach all customers in the district and could 
isolate vulnerable customers.  

• The equality impact assessments consider this option against each of the protected 
characteristics. A number of negative impacts were identified which cannot be effectively 
mitigated against within this option. 

Option 2: Replace the existing centre with an enhanced self-service provision  

4.14 Evaluation of Option 2: 

• This option sees the closure of the existing centre at Maiden Lane. This would be 
replaced by a kiosk and telephone solution at Stamford Arts Centre, with those seeking 
to access services via a computer being directed to Stamford Library. 

• It is recognised that customers would be required to be members of the library to access 
the PCs. However, this would help drive footfall and enhance the promotion of the 
facilities. 

• The equality impact assessments consider this option against each of the protected 
characteristics. The option goes some way towards mitigating the negative impacts of 
complete removal of service by providing a telephone-based system, as well as a kiosk 
and PC access. However, there was some feedback suggesting that those with certain 
protected characteristics, most notably age and disability, could still be disadvantaged. 
The option does not completely remove this detrimental impact.    

Option 3: Replace the existing centre with an enhanced self-service offer supported 

by seasonal access to a customer service advisor 

4.15 Evaluation of Option 3: 

• This option sees the replacement of the existing centre at Maiden Lane with a kiosk and 
telephone solution at Stamford Arts Centre, with those seeking to access services via a 
computer being directed to Stamford Library. 

• In addition, during busy periods, or where seasonality demands, the option sees access 
to a customer service advisor on a part-time basis. This would help to assist customers 

110



 
 

to transition onto self-service solutions, as well as providing that human touch to those 
in greatest need. 

• This approach would be reviewed on a six-monthly basis. Data relating to the utilisation 
of this offer would be presented to the Cabinet Member for Communities and the 
appropriate committee for consideration of any future changes. 

• Customers would be required to visit another location. However, this is only a short walk 
from the current Maiden Lane centre.   

• The council would provide support from trained customer service officers on using the 
self-service options available and registering for ‘My Account’. 

• The hours of face-to-face cover and the new location would need to be widely advertised 
to current users. 

• It is recognised that consideration of the location of the new kiosks and opening times of 
the Arts Centre is necessary to ensure that any changes do not negatively impact on the 
Arts Centre staff late at night. 

• Service delivery for areas such as parking permits are being reviewed and modernised 
to reduce face-to-face demand to the Arts Centre.  

• The equality assessments consider this option against each of the protected 
characteristics. This option replicates the previous option, but also provides a customer 
service officer on a seasonal basis. This enables greater support to those in need and a 
managed transition to a greater level of self-service. The approach mitigates the impact 
of the change to a greater degree than options 1 and 2. It also affords the opportunity to 
review provision on an ongoing basis to ensure that the right level of support and care is 
provided. 

Option 4: Continue the existing service provision 

4.16 This would see the continuation of the current service in its present form. However, it is 

recognised through the survey that the facility is in need of modernisation. Whilst the quality 

of response from our employees is regarded as excellent, the environment no longer 

provides the level of customer experience that we would expect.  

4.17 Evaluation of Option 4 

• Significant investment would be required to modernise the provision to ensure it was 
consistent with the wider customer service offering. This is not seen as value for money 
given the low level of demand that the service sees. 

• The current operating model is inefficient and there is a need to ensure that customer 
services as a whole provides a high-quality response to all residents in the district. This 
cannot be optimised in its current form. 

• The equality assessments consider this option against each of the protected 
characteristics. They highlight that potentially younger customers may be disadvantaged 
as modern technologies are not available. However, no additional negative impacts were 
identified. 

 

 

 

 

111



 
 

5 Preferred Option 

5.1 The preferred options for Market Deeping and Stamford are set out below: 

Market Deeping 

The preferred option for Market Deeping is Option 3:  

Replace the existing centre with a signposting service through Deepings Community Library 

with an enhanced self-service offer. 

Stamford 

The preferred option for Stamford is Option 3: 

Replace the existing centre with an enhanced self-service offer supported by seasonal 

access to a customer service advisor. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The implementation of the next steps for the changes to the face-to-face service provision 

in Market Deeping and Stamford Customer Service Centres will be developed into a detailed 

action plan. This will ensure that staff, customers and key internal and external stakeholders 

understand the decision, the impact and the key deliverable timeline.  

6.2 The action plan for the transition will cover a range of areas. There are some decisions that 

need to be taken now, particularly around lease arrangements, with other areas being 

completed over the next six to nine months. This includes redesigning service delivery 

models and ongoing engagement with customers. The key areas are set out below:  

• HR Engagement for staff timeline and communication 

• Communicate the results of the consultation and Cabinet decision  

• Landlord discussions regarding the surrender of the lease 

• Agree timeline for change/exit from locations 

• Installation of new solutions (kiosk, phone and PCs where applicable) 

• Training – for all impacted staff and volunteers in CSC, Library and the Arts Centre 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 The budget framework for 2020/21 includes a saving target of £81k arising from the actions 

of implementing the approved Customer Experience Strategy.  Should the 

recommendations contained in this report be approved then a significant proportion of the 

budgeted savings will be realised in the 2020/21 financial year. 

7.2 The proposals would see an ongoing saving of £116k per annum. They would realise £83k 

of savings from Stamford Area Office, and £33k from Market Deeping Area Office. The 

savings projection for 2020/21 is currently forecast at £55k depending upon the relevant exit 

costs of the current locations.   

7.3 In the event that all or part of the recommendations are not implemented then alternative 

proposals arising from the Strategy will need to be developed in order to realise the 

budgeted savings.  

7.4 The report recommends a capital allocation in the current financial year to re-model and 

modernise Stamford Arts Centre.  An amended budget framework is being prepared for 

Council’s consideration on 17 September 2020 and the proposal can be included within the 

amendments if the recommendation is approved. 

112



 
 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The proposals set out in the report align with the ambitions of the Customer Experience 

Strategy 2020-2024. The Council has consulted twice with local residents and stakeholders 

on the proposed changes and decision-makers must take this into account. The impact of 

the proposed options on local communities has also been assessed through the completion 

of two detailed equality analyses. Where the proposed changes impact on staff the Council 

must make any changes in compliance with relevant employment legislation, together with 

the council’s own policy and procedure.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Jo Toomey, Head of Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 Two Equality Assessments have been completed for the changes to face-to-face Customer 

Service Centre provision. These are shown in the background papers and Appendix 7. 

There are negative impacts identified, particularly on elderly and disabled service users. 

These impacts will be managed in accordance with the recommended options and 

mitigations. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 There are a number of risks associated with this decision. If the decision is not made at 

Cabinet on 8 September 2020 it will not be possible to terminate the lease at Stamford as 

set out in the report. This will result in the Council incurring additional costs. 

10.2 There is also a need for services to continue to modernise their provision as agreed in the 

Customer Experience Strategy. This needs to be done in a timely manner with appropriate 

levels of collaboration and engagement. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 No significant community safety implications have been identified as a result of this report.  

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

12.1 The recommended changes will see two offices be replaced with alternative provision. This 

will reduce the Council’s direct energy consumption and therefore see a reduction in its 

carbon footprint, helping to meet our carbon reduction targets of at least 30% by 2030. 

Furthermore, there will be less need to provide cover for these facilities from staff based in 

Grantham. This will see reductions in staff travel requirements, further reducing the carbon 

impact of council operations. 

12.2 The proposed changes will encourage more customers to shift to online channels and 

reduce the need for face-to-face interactions. This will further reduce travel burden, 

therefore the carbon footprint of the district more widely. 

13 Background Papers 

13.1 Rural and Communities Report on 16 January 2020: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=3856&Ver=

4  

113

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=3856&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=665&MId=3856&Ver=4


 
 

13.2 Cabinet Report on 21 January 2020: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3821&Ver=

4  

13.3 Customer Experience Strategy: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24624/Appendix%201%20-

%20Customer%20Experience%20Strategy%202020-2024.pdf  

13.4 Area Office Summary: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24643/Appendix%202%20-

%20Area%20Office%20Summary.pdf  

13.5 Initial Equalities Impact Assessment: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24644/Appendix%203%20-

%20Customer%20Experience%20Strategy%20Equality%20Impact%20Assessment.pdf  

13.6 Market Deeping Survey One: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

13.7 Consultation Output Report – Market Deeping – Survey One: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

13.8 Market Deeping Consultation Responses – Survey One: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

13.9 Stamford Survey One: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

13.10 Stamford Consultation Output Report – Survey One: 

13.11 http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

13.12 Stamford Consultation Responses – Survey One: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

13.13 List of Key Stakeholders: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

13.14 Equalities Analysis – Stage 2 (March 2020): 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

13.15 Comparison Tables and Charts – Survey One: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980  

14 Appendices 

14.1 Appendix 1: Market Deeping Survey Two 

14.2 Appendix 2: Consultation Output Report – Market Deeping – Survey Two 

14.3 Appendix 3: Market Deeping Consultation Responses – Survey Two 

14.4 Appendix 4: Stamford Survey Two 

14.5 Appendix 5: Stamford Consultation Output Report – Survey Two 

14.6 Appendix 6: Stamford Consultation Responses – Survey Two 

14.7 Appendix 7: Equalities Analysis – Stage 2 (August 2020) 

14.8 Appendix 8: Comparison Tables and Charts – Survey Two 

114

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3821&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3821&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24624/Appendix%201%20-%20Customer%20Experience%20Strategy%202020-2024.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24624/Appendix%201%20-%20Customer%20Experience%20Strategy%202020-2024.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24643/Appendix%202%20-%20Area%20Office%20Summary.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24643/Appendix%202%20-%20Area%20Office%20Summary.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24644/Appendix%203%20-%20Customer%20Experience%20Strategy%20Equality%20Impact%20Assessment.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24644/Appendix%203%20-%20Customer%20Experience%20Strategy%20Equality%20Impact%20Assessment.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId=3980


 
 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

17 February 2020 

Previously Considered by: Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

16 January 2020 

Final Decision date   8 September 2020 

 

 

115



This page is intentionally left blank



Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping
July 2020

Introduction

South Kesteven District Council wants to continue to provide access to a wide range of services for local people and has worked hard to
ensure that this has been maintained throughout the Covid-19 pandemic.

As we are now starting to see what a “new normal” may look like, we think the time is right to re-visit the proposal that had been put
forward in respect of the service provided to our customers from the Deepings Community Centre in Market Deeping. 

 The council has listened to what you have already said about how you contact us and what is important to you, and has drawn up
a proposal which responds to your comments and concerns; whilst also reflecting the new way of working which has been in place for
our customers for just over four months. 

Given that everyone has experienced many changes in the way they are now living, working and interacting with the outside world, we 
would not want to assume that your views have remained the same, and would welcome your feedback once more. Please help us by
completing this survey and telling us what you think. 
 
The deadline for responses is 3 August 2020 .

Thank you.

1
117

Appendix 1



Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping
July 2020

Contacting the council

To help us understand more about how our customers have reacted to the changes in the way services have been provided during the
pandemic, we would like to know if you have contacted us over the last four months.

1. Have you contacted SKDC's Customer Services since lockdown began on 23 March?

Yes

No

Don't know/not sure

If you haven't contacted the Council's Customer Services in the last four months, please go straight to question 6.

2. Please tell us how you contacted SKDC. Please tick one only.

By telephone

Through the website

By email

By letter

In person at the Grantham Customer Service Centre- I booked an urgent appointment

Other (please specify)

3. We would like to know if your chosen method of contact has changed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
Is this the way you would normally choose to contact us?

Yes, I would normally contact the council in this way

No, I have changed the way I contact the council as a result of Covid-19

2
118



Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping
July 2020

Other (please specify)

4. Why did you contact SKDC? Please tick all that apply

To make a payment

To apply for something (a licence, a permit etc)

To ask a question about council services

To provide evidence that has been asked for

To report something

5. How satisfied were you with the way in which your enquiry was dealt with?

Very satisfied

Satisfied

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied

Dissatisfied

Very dissatisfied

3
119



Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping
July 2020

SKDC would now like to know what you think of our solution as to how we might be able to provide services to our customers in the
future.

Our proposal

To replace the services that used to be provided from the Market Deeping Customer Service Centre- currently situated in the Deepings
Community Centre- with various alternatives including a kiosk for payments, PC access and a dedicated phone line. Locations that may
be considered include Deepings Community Centre and Deepings Community Library.
There will also be an opportunity for face -to-face appointments to take place remotely - through Skype or Microsoft Teams.

6. To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? Please tick one only.

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

7. Please use the space below to tell us why you have chosen to respond in this way.

8. The council wants to understand and be aware of any impacts closing the office in Market Deeping may
have on you. Please use the space below to tell us about them.

4
120



Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping
July 2020

About you

To help us make sure that we have taken the views of all our stakeholders into account, we would like to know a bit more about you.
Please be assured that any information you give us will only be used to measure if the views we have gathered are representative of the
communities we serve. They will not be used to identify you in any way or be passed onto anyone else.

Other (please specify)

9. What is your gender? Please tick one only.

Male

Female

Prefer not to say

10. Which of the following age bands do you belong to? Please tick one only.

Under 18

18 to 24

25 to 34

35 to 44

45 to 54

55 to 64

65 and over

Prefer not to say

11. Do you consider yourself to have a disability? Please tick one only.

Yes

No

Prefer not to say

5
121



Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping
July 2020

Anything else

12. If you have any questions or would like to comment on anything included in this survey, please use the
space below:

Name  

Address 1  

Address 2  

Town  

Postcode  

Email Address  

Phone Number  

13. If you would like a response to your query, please give us your contact details. They will only be used to
contact you in relation to this query and will not be used for any other purpose or passed onto anyone else.
 

Thank you for taking part. Your feedback will inform the decision SKDC's Cabinet will make in September 2020 and help to shape the
future of customer services in South Kesteven.

Please note this consultation closes on 3 August 2020.

6
122



Appendix 2 

 

  

 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 

CENTRE CONSULTATION – 

MARKET DEEPING 
August 2020 

ABSTRACT 
To establish the degree of support for a proposal to 

change the way customer services are delivered in 

Market Deeping 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AUTHOR 
Deborah Wyles – Consultation Officer 

 

123

Appendix 2



 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Introduction 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to update CMT and Cabinet with the results of the consultation that 

has been undertaken with SK residents and other stakeholders on the proposal to change the way 

face to face services are delivered in Market Deeping. 

2. An initial consultation was undertaken in February of this year but because everyone has 
experienced significant changes in the way they are now living, working and interacting with the 
outside world as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Council decided to revisit the proposal. 
Listening to what residents had said about how they would like to be able to contact the Council, 
and what is important to them, whilst also reflecting the new way of working that has been in 
place for SKDC customers for just over four and a half months, a new proposal has been put 
forward. Not wishing to assume that the views of stakeholders have remained the same, SKDC 
asked local people to respond once more. 

 

Purpose 

 

3. The purpose of the consultation was to: 

 Inform the decision that is due to be taken in respect of changing the way customer services 

are accessed in Market Deeping  

 Reflect and incorporate the results from the initial consultation into the refreshed proposals 

 Include the changes that have occurred within this service area (both in terms of service 

delivery and customer behaviour) as a result of the lockdown that was implemented on 23 

March.   

 Determine the degree of support for a preferred option for future provision of customer 

services in Market Deeping 

 

Proposal 

4. The proposal outlined as part of the second consultation was to close the customer service centre 

(currently located within the Deepings Community Centre, Market Deeping) and replace this with: 

 A self-service kiosk which will take payments. This would be based at either the community 

centre or Deepings Community Library 

 A PC with access to the internet and web-based services – based at either Deepings 

Community Centre or the community library. This would enable customers to contact the 

council via our website and/or attend appointments remotely 

 A direct phone line. This would be programmed so that it can be used to contact the council’s 

customer services centres in Grantham and Bourne, and other organisations such as 

Lincolnshire County Council. 

 Virtual face-to -face appointments to be available via Skype or Microsoft Teams 

 

 

124



 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

Objectives 

5. The objectives of the consultation were identified as follows. To: 

 Inform the decision that will be taken by the council in respect of the provision of 

customer services in Market Deeping going forward 

 Ensure that the changes in both service provision and behaviour that have already 

occurred in this area as a result of the pandemic are incorporated in the refresh, thereby 

bringing the previous consultation that took place in January and February this year up to 

date 

 Identify how residents have been contacting customer services during the pandemic  

 Find out why people have been contacting the customer services centres during the 

pandemic 

 Gather feedback on how peoples’ behaviour (in respect of the council’s customer services 

centres) has changed as a result of the lockdown  

 Measure the degree of support or otherwise for the proposal(s) 

 Understand and be aware of the impact taking this decision may have on different 

communities 

Timescales 

 

6. Preparatory work was undertaken during the first two weeks of July 2020. The consultation was 

open for two weeks - from 20 July to 3 August 2020.  

Methodology 

 

7. Respondents were able to participate in the consultation in various ways. These included: 

a. Completion of an on-line survey. Respondents were directed to a dedicated page on 

SKDC’s website which contained additional context, along with a link to each of the surveys 

– thereby enabling respondents to complete both should they wish to. The weblink was 

included in the press release, via email from the customer service section and on social 

media channels. 

b. Completion by phone. Should respondents be unable to take part on- line, customer 

service staff were available to complete the survey on the customer’s behalf. 

8. Opportunities to participate in the consultation were promoted across various media. These 

included: 

 An article published on the Stamford Mercury’s website on 20 July 2020. 1  

 The council’s social media channels. Articles promoting the opportunity to participate were 

posted on 2020 on Facebook and Twitter. Potential respondents were provided with a link 

to a dedicated page on the council’s website. This contained links to both surveys –Market 

Deeping and Stamford 

                                                           
1
 Article outlining the proposal on Stamford Mercury’s website on 20 July 2020. 

https://www.stamfordmercury.co.uk/news/consultation-relaunched-on-plans-to-close-council-offices-in-
stamford-and-market-deeping-9116850/ 

125

https://www.stamfordmercury.co.uk/news/consultation-relaunched-on-plans-to-close-council-offices-in-stamford-and-market-deeping-9116850/
https://www.stamfordmercury.co.uk/news/consultation-relaunched-on-plans-to-close-council-offices-in-stamford-and-market-deeping-9116850/


 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

 Direct contact. Just under 40 individuals (who had taken part in the first consultation and 

had supplied their contact details) were contacted and asked for their views on the 

proposals. Key stakeholders were also contacted directly. 

 Individuals contacting the Council’s customer service section during the consultation 

period were asked if they would like to participate. A link to the survey was provided. 

Detail 

9. To help inform the decision that will be taken by South Kesteven District Council in respect of its 

proposal to change the way face-to-face services are provided in Market Deeping the consultation 

officer was asked to design a survey which would gather feedback from residents and other 

stakeholders. 

10. The survey was structured around the main premise of the consultation -to inform the decision 

which will be taken by Cabinet on 8 September in respect of customer service provision in Market 

Deeping.  It included: 

 Details on the council’s proposal to change the way face to face services are delivered in 

Market Deeping 

 A question to measure the extent to which respondents agree or disagree with this 

proposal 

 An opportunity to provide details of any impacts adopting this proposal may have  

To understand if responses were being received from those who had contacted the council during 

the pandemic respondents were asked to state 

 If they have contacted the council since lockdown was implemented 

 How they contacted the council- by telephone, via email etc 

 Why they contacted us 

 If their method of contact had changed as a result of the lockdown 

They were also asked to supply some demographic information, including gender, age and 

disability.  

11. Various actions were undertaken to ensure that the opportunity to participate in the consultation 

was as widely promoted as possible. These included: 

a. A dedicated page on the council’s website. The survey could be accessed via a user- 

friendly URL. 

b. Use of its social media channels – in particular Facebook and Twitter 

c. Being encouraged to take part if they contacted the customer service section during the 

consultation period 

d. An article in the Stamford Mercury 

 

  

12. The consultation closed on 3 August 2020, after two weeks. 44 responses were received.  

13. The initial posting on Facebook on 21 July had a reach of 2,776. 114 individuals clicked on the 

webpage dedicated to the consultation. The follow up articles - posted on 31 July and 1 August 

had a reach of 1,974 and 1,173 with 24 and 8 individuals respectively clicking through to the 

webpage dedicated to the consultation. 

126



 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

14. The tweet posted on Twitter on 22 July was seen by 650 individuals. The follow-up tweet posted 

on 31 July had a reach of 604, with one person clicking on the link to the webpage. The final tweet 

on 1 August had a reach of 694. Two people clicked on the link to the webpage.  

15. Just under 40 stakeholders who had taken part in the previous consultation were contacted 

directly and asked to participate in the consultation.  

16. The Head of Customer Experience has also talked to specific key stakeholders. Their anonymised 

responses are attached. 

 

The results  

Contacting the Council 

17. Respondents were given details of the proposal and how it would affect the delivery of face to 

face services in Market Deeping.  They were then asked five questions about contacting the 

Council. The first question asked respondents to state if they had contacted the Council since 

lockdown began on 23 March. If they hadn’t contacted the Council during this time, they were 

asked to go straight to question 6.  Just under a quarter of respondents (23.3%) had contacted the 

council during this time as illustrated below:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes, 10, 23% 

No, 32, 75% 

Don't know/not 
sure, 1, 2% 

Number of respondents contacting customer services 
since lockdown began 

Just under a quarter of respondents stated that they had contacted the council since lockdown 

commenced on 23 March.  This is worth noting as it means around three quarters of responses are 

from those who have not contacted the council recently, and as such will be commenting on the 

proposal with no first-hand experience of the arrangements that have been put in place to 

accommodate Covid-19.  The number of responses received- particularly from those accessing the 

service in the last four and half months- is low. This is likely to impact on the strength of the 

conclusions that can be drawn from the data.  

127



 
 

5 | P a g e  
 

 

 

18. The second question asked respondents to choose how they had contacted the council in the last 

four and a half months. The most popular methods of contact were by telephone, through the 

website, or via email as outlined below: 

 

 

 

 

19. Respondents were then asked if their chosen method of contact had changed as a result of the 

Covid-19 pandemic. Interestingly, unlike the respondents to the Stamford survey, most have not 

changed the way they contact the council during the pandemic. Just under three quarters of 

respondents (72.7%) said that the way in which they had contacted the council hadn’t changed as 

illustrated in the chart below: 

 Number Percentage 

Yes, I would normally contact the 
council in this way 

8 72.7% 

No, I have changed the way I contact 
the council because of the pandemic 
 

3 27.3% 

Total 11 100% 

 

20. The fourth question on the survey asked respondents to identify why they had contacted the 

council. Respondents could tick as many options as they liked. As the number of respondents is so 

low, it is difficult to draw meaningful conclusions from this data.  Their answers are illustrated 

below: 

4 4 

3 

0 0 0 
0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

by telephone through the 
website 

by email by letter in person at 
GCSC - I 

booked an 
appointment  

other  

How respondents contacted SKDC 

Worth noting is the lack of take-up of emergency appointment slots- these have been available from 

6 April and then from the Grantham Customer Service Centre since 29 June but to date, none have 

been requested.  

 

 

128



 
 

6 | P a g e  
 

 

An analysis of those choosing other revealed one was a member of staff and the other wanted to 

arrange collection of a bulky item.  

21. When asked to describe how satisfied they were with the way in which their enquiry had been 

dealt with, 90% of respondents were satisfied. The remaining 10% were dissatisfied.  

22. Respondents were then asked to state the extent to which they agreed or disagreed with the 

proposal to change the way face-to-face services are delivered in Market Deeping. Four out of ten 

respondents (40.6%) agreed with this proposal, with the same proportion disagreeing. If these 

results are compared to those obtained in February, it appears there has been an increase in the 

proportion of respondents agreeing with the proposal. In February, 15.4% agreed with the 

proposal. This has increased to over 40% in July. This is illustrated in the table below: 

 

 Number  
(July 2020) 

Number 
(Feb 2020) 

Percentage 
(July 2020)  

Percentage 
(Feb 2020)  

Strongly agree with the proposal 6 11 18.8% 9.4% 

Agree with the proposal 
 

7 7 21.8% 6.0% 

Neither agree nor disagree with the 
proposal 

6 11 18.8% 9.4% 

Disagree with the proposal  6 32 18.8% 27.3% 

Strongly disagree with the proposal 7 56 21.8% 47.9% 

Total 32 117 100.0% 100.0% 

 

  

 

 

0 

1 

2 2 

3 

4 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

To make a 
payment 

To provide 
evidence that 

has been 
asked for  

Other To apply for 
something 

To report 
something 

To ask a 
question 

about council 
services 

Why respondents chose to contact the council  

These results are interesting. The proportion of respondents agreeing with the proposal has 

increased from February to July, which seems to suggest that some might have changed their minds 

and now feel the proposal is more acceptable. Although it is difficult to draw any firm conclusions as 

the number of responses collected is low, a shift in what people think does seem to have taken 

place. This has also been seen in the responses to the Stamford survey, where the number of 

respondents is higher. 

 It may be worth looking at these results in more detail - undertaking further analysis to establish if 

rates of support are higher, lower or no different for those who have used the services available 

during the pandemic. 129



 
 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23. When asked why they had chosen to answer in this way, around half of the respondents 

commented. The main themes were: 

a. A preference for face to face contact 

b. Technological solutions not always suitable 

c. Limits access for those with no internet 

24. To ensure that the council is aware of any impacts that closing the customer service centre in 

Market Deeping may have on individuals, respondents were then asked to detail them. Around 20 

respondents commented. The main themes were: 

a. It’s easier to talk to someone face to face 
b. Wanting the service to continue as it is 
c. Technological solutions don’t suit everyone 

 

25. Respondents were then asked for some demographic information. The purpose of this was to get 

a measure of how representative the sample was of the district. They were asked for their gender, 

age and if they considered themselves to have a disability or not. Comparing these statistics to 

those of the district revealed the following: 

Gender 

 Sample % District % Weighting 

Male 20.7 48.2 2.3 

Female 79.3 51.8 0.7 

Total 100.0% 100.0%  

 

The sample is not representative of the district when considering gender. Males are under-

represented, and females are over-represented. Given the size of the sample, this is perhaps not 

surprising. 

Age  

 Sample % District % Weighting 

Under 18 - 21.4  

18 to 24 - 6.3  

25 to 34 3.4 10.7 3.1 

35 to 44 - 12.0  

45 to 54 13.8 15.8 1.1 

55 to 64 20.7 14.4 0.7 

130



 
 

8 | P a g e  
 

65 and over 62.1 19.4 0.3 

Total 100.0% 100.0%  

 

The sample only representative of those aged between 45 to 54. Those aged under 45 are under-

represented and those aged 55 or above are over-represented in the sample. Given that the 

sample size is small, this is perhaps not surprising. 

Disability 

According to national statistics, one in five people (or 21% of the population) state that they have a 

disability. When asked, 13.8% of the sample stated that they had a disability. This means the 

s

a

m

p

l

e

 

i

s

 

not quite representative in terms of disability.  

Other comments 
 

26. Respondents were then asked if they had any questions or if they would like to comment on 

anything included in the survey. Only two respondents commented. Both were a plea to keep the 

office open 

a. Please keep the small office in Market Deeping Community office open.  For the elderly like 

myself it is so useful. 

b. Whilst I am able to use technology, there are many residents who can't. That is why we 

need a local presence - someone to talk to face-to-face. Someone to help guide customers 

through using technology. 

27. Some feedback has also been received independently to the survey. This has been anonymised 

and attached at appendix six.   

28. The final question asked for respondents contact details so that any queries they had could be 

responded to. These will be answered as soon as possible. 

 

  

Conclusion 
29. The purpose of this consultation was to inform the decision that will be taken about this issue by 

SKDC’s cabinet on 8 September 2020. Responses, whilst not representative in terms of gender, age 

Comparing the demographic characteristics of this sample to those of the wider population 

revealed that whilst the sample is not representative in terms of gender, age or disability. Those 

aged under 45 are under-represented in the results and those aged 55 or above are over-

represented. Given the size of the sample, this is perhaps not surprising.  The lack of 

representativeness should be kept in mind when considering the results as it is likely to have an 

impact on the distribution of responses, particularly in respect of how individuals might want to 

able to access customer services in Market Deeping.  

 

131



 
 

9 | P a g e  
 

or disability, have been received from a variety of stakeholders across various channels. The 

Council has had some good feedback on the impact adopting the proposal will have on certain 

sections of the local population (particularly those who do not have access to the internet) or who 

may be vulnerable because of age and/or disability. 

It is important to note that although there has been an increase in the proportion of respondents 

in support of the changes, they are still not, on the whole, in favour of the proposal that has been 

suggested.   

The number of responses received - particularly from those who have used the services since 

lockdown began on 23 March – is low. Whilst the responses received help to give a flavour of what 

local people think to the proposal, the small number of responses makes it difficult to draw any 

meaningful conclusions. It also means that the distribution of responses is likely to have been 

affected – which should be taken into account when considering the results. 

 

Prepared by Deb Wyles 

Communication and consultation 

9 August 2020 

 

132



Appendix 3 

Market Deeping Customer Service Consultation – July 2020 

Free text comments/queries received in response to Q7, Q8 and Q12  

Q7. Please use the space 
below to tell us why you have 
chosen to respond in this way 
(to explain their position on 
the proposal) 

Q8. The council wants to 
understand and be aware of 
any impacts closing the office 
in Market Deeping may have 
on you. Please use the space 
below to tell us about them. 

Q12.If you have any questions 
or would like to comment on 
anything included in this 
survey, please use the space 
below: 

Taking services out of the 
community limits access to 
some members of the 
community, especially those 
without Internet access  
 

It is easily accessible on foot 
and with good parking. It is 
sometimes essential and 
easier to talk to someone face 
to face rather than over the 
phone.  
 

Please keep the small office in 
Market Deeping Community 
office open.  For the elderly 
like myself it is so useful.   

There are still people who 
need a contact base. 
 

A base for people to collect 
refuse bags, to make 
payments as not everyone has 
a bank account or mobile 
phone or computer. 
 

Whilst I am able to use 
technology, there are many 
residents who can't. That is 
why we need a local presence 
- someone to talk to face-to-
face. Someone to help guide 
customers through using 
technology. 

Skype etc is not always 
suitable for elderly or 
financially stretched people 
 

I can just cope with computers 
but my hubby who is 90 hasn’t 
a clue, if he wanted to speak 
to someone, he can now go to 
the community centre but 
Skype not a chance!  
 

 

This gradual withdrawal of 
services to outlying areas is 
disappointing. We’ve lost the 
ability to renew bus passes 
except by mail a system which 
worked well. Now this will 
make things more difficult for 
older people to access 
information and services. This 
is an attack on all those who 
find computers difficult to use. 
It takes longer than a face to 
face discussion. People need 
things locally not centralised. 
Was the same with the Library 
you wanted us to have a bus 
visit now we have the most 
vibrant library possible.  

None 
 

 

133

Appendix 3



 

Most things can now be 
completed online 
 

Parents use the counter 
service to pay council tax 
 

 

On the whole the proposal will 
meet the needs of most 
people although it should 
include face to face 
appointments when necessary 
for vulnerable people . 
 

It's where we pay our council 
tax 
 

 

Need person at counter 
 

I know people that have used 
and valued the service.  it 
would be a shame to lose a 
face-to-face contact to explain 
jargon and be helpful in times 
when people need help. 
 

 

Need person behind a counter 
 

A lot of people will miss the 
services that they provide  
 

 

This doesn't allow for people 
that still dont have internet 
access or have conditions that 
restrict them from gaining 
services any other way. 
 

The office maybe needed for 
some people without modern 
techniques. 
 

 

The phone is always available 
and successful. 
 

Those sections of the local 
community who are not “tech 
saves” may be disadvantaged 
if there is not some provision 
for direct face2face person2 
person local contact 
 

 

Potential cost savings 
 

Nothing directly 
 

 

Some people find it difficult to 
communicate via email 
 

I would like the contact in the 
office in Market Deeping 
Community office to continue. 
 

 

I prefer to be able to talk to 
the lady that used to be in the 
office in Market Deeping 
Community Centre. 
 

There is nowhere locally to 
speak to someone, get 
application forms, etc.  
 

 

There should be a permanent, 
if only part time, presence in 
Mkt Deeping. It is a major and 
growing town in South Lincs.  
 

Being open is so convenient 
for the elderly and disabled 
people to use as it’s local 
 

 

134



In the past have used the 
building to renew my bus pass, 
pay council tax and could also 
be used for various other uses 
 

I haven't had occasion to use 
the office in recent years. 
The Deepings are a large 
population and expanding. 
With Covid around, a lot of 
people don’t want to travel 
too far. Buses are infrequent 
as well. We have been several 
times to the Market Deeping 
office in the past just not since 
March.  
 

 

Some people are not 
computer literate and may not 
be able to use or be 
comfortable with the 
technology of Skype.  
 

No direct impact on me but 
convinced it will impact on 
elderly and vulnerable  
 

 

Some people need human 
contact, but technology is 
taking over  
 

Although I have not needed to 
use the current office I feel 
that it will be a huge loss to 
the Deepings if it closes with 
nothing local replacing it 
 

 

The location needs to be 
accessible to all with maximum 
opening times. 
 

Not that I have needed to 
contact the office recently but 
so many services are being 
taken away. We need to keep 
this service even if only a 
couple of days a week  
 

 

Older people would not be 
happy using Skype . You need 
to have face to face meetings  
 

Do not wish to do more on- 
line. 
 

 

Older people don’t like using 
online services or struggle to 
use it and many don’t have 
internet access 
 

None at all. 
 

 

Having never known of its 
existence until now, it seems 
obvious to go down the route 
of web access only.  
 

None 
 

 

Prefer to contact you by phone 
or email. 
 

  

 

135



This page is intentionally left blank



Customer Services Survey - Stamford
July 2020

Introduction

South Kesteven District Council wants to continue to provide access to a wide range of services for local people and has worked hard to
ensure that this has been maintained throughout the Covid-19 pandemic.

As we are now starting to see what a “new normal” may look like, we think the time is right to re-visit the proposal that had been put
forward in respect of the service provided to our customers from the office in Maiden Lane, Stamford.

 The council has listened to what you have already said about how you contact us and what is important to you, and has drawn up
a proposal which responds to your comments and concerns; whilst also reflecting the new way of working which has been in place for
our customers for just over four months. 

Given that everyone has experienced many changes in the way they are now living, working and interacting with each other and
different organisations, we would not want to assume that your views have remained the same, and would welcome your feedback once
more. Please help us by completing this survey and telling us what you think. 
 
The deadline for responses is 3 August 2020 .

Thank you.

1
137

Appendix 4



Customer Services Survey - Stamford
July 2020

Contacting the council

To help us understand more about how our customers have reacted to the changes in the way services have been provided during the
pandemic, we would like to know if you have contacted us over the last four months.

1. Have you contacted SKDC 's customer services section since lockdown began on 23 March?

Yes

No

Don't know/not sure

If you haven't contacted the council's customer services section in the last four months, please go straight to question 6.

2. Please tell us how you contacted SKDC. Please tick one only.

By telephone

Through the website

By email

By letter

In person at the Grantham Customer Service Centre- I booked an urgent appointment

Other (please specify)

3. We would like to know if your chosen method of contact has changed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
Is this the way you would normally choose to contact us?

Yes, I would normally contact the council in this way

No, I have changed the way I contact the council as a result of Covid-19

2
138



Customer Services Survey - Stamford
July 2020

Other (please specify)

4. Why did you contact SKDC? Please tick all that apply

To make a payment

To apply for something (a licence, a permit etc)

To ask a question about council services

To provide evidence that has been asked for

To report something

5. How satisfied were you with the way in which your enquiry was dealt with?

Very satisfied

Satisfied

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied

Dissatisfied

Very dissatisfied

3
139



Customer Services Survey - Stamford
July 2020

SKDC would now like to know what you think of our solution as to how we might be able to provide services to our customers in the
future.

Our proposal

To replace the services that used to be provided from the Stamford Customer Service Centre -  currently situated in the Maiden Lane
office in Stamford - with various alternatives including  a kiosk for payments, a click and collect service,  PC access and a dedicated
phone line. These will predominantly be provided from Stamford Arts Centre. There will also be an opportunity for face -to-face
appointments to take place remotely - through Skype or Microsoft Teams - and on a seasonal basis, access to a part time face-to face
adviser.

 

6. To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? Please tick one only.

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

7. Please use the space below to tell us why you have chosen to respond in this way.

8. The council wants to understand and be aware of any impacts closing the customer services centre and
relocating the new service provision in Stamford may have on you. Please use the space below to tell us
about them.

4
140



Customer Services Survey - Stamford
July 2020

About you

To help us make sure that we have taken the views of all our stakeholders into account, we would like to know a bit more about you.
Please be assured that any information you give us will only be used to measure if the views we have gathered are representative of the
communities we serve. They will not be used to identify you in any way or be passed onto anyone else.

Other (please specify)

9. What is your gender? Please tick one only.

Male

Female

Prefer not to say

10. Which of the following age bands do you belong to? Please tick one only.

Under 18

18 to 24

25 to 34

35 to 44

45 to 54

55 to 64

65 and over

Prefer not to say

11. Do you consider yourself to have a disability? Please tick one only.

Yes

No

Prefer not to say

5
141



Customer Services Survey - Stamford
July 2020

Anything else

12. If you have any questions or would like to comment on anything included in this survey, please use the
space below:

Name  

Address 1  

Address 2  

Town  

Postcode  

Email Address  

Phone Number  

13. If you would like a response to your query, please give us your contact details. They will only be used to
contact you in relation to this query and will not be used for any other purpose or passed onto anyone else.
 

Thank you for taking part. Your feedback will inform the decision SKDC's Cabinet will make in September 2020 and help to shape the
future of customer services in South Kesteven.

Please note this consultation closes on 3 August 2020.

6
142



Appendix 5 

 

  

 

CUSTOMER SERVICE 

CENTRE CONSULTATION 

- STAMFORD 
August 2020 

ABSTRACT 
to establish the degree of support for changing the way 

customer services are provided in Stamford and  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AUTHOR 
Deborah Wyles – Consultation Officer 

 

143

Appendix 5



 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Introduction 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to update CMT and Cabinet with the results of the consultation that 

has been undertaken with SK residents and other stakeholders on the proposal to change the way 

face to face services are delivered in Stamford. 

2. An initial consultation was undertaken in February of this year but because everyone has 
experienced significant changes in the way they are now living, working and interacting with the 
outside world as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Council decided to revisit the proposal. 
Listening to what residents had said about how they would like to be able to contact the Council, 
and what is important to them, whilst also reflecting the new way of working that has been in 
place for SKDC customers for just over four and a half months, a new proposal has been put 
forward. Not wishing to assume that the views of stakeholders have remained the same, SKDC 
asked local people to respond once more. 

 

Purpose 

 

3. The purpose of the consultation was to: 

 Inform the decision that is due to be taken in respect of changing the way customer services 

are accessed in Stamford  

 Reflect and incorporate the results from the initial consultation into the refreshed proposals 

 Include the changes that have occurred within this service area (both in terms of service 

delivery and customer behaviour) as a result of the lockdown that was implemented on 23 

March.   

 Determine the degree of support for a preferred option for future provision of customer 

services in Stamford 

 

Proposal 

4. The proposal outlined as part of the second consultation was to close the customer service centre 

(currently located at 1 Maiden Lane, Stamford) and replace this with: 

 A self-service kiosk which will take payments- installed in Stamford Arts Centre. 

 A PC with access to the internet and web-based services – based at either Stamford Arts Centre 

or Stamford Library. This would enable customers to contact the council via our website and/or 

attend appointments remotely 

 A direct phone line in Stamford Arts Centre. This would be programmed so that it can be used 

to contact the council’s customer services centres in Grantham and Bourne, and other 

organisations such as Lincolnshire County Council. 

 A click and collect service (for taxi licence plates etc) based at Stamford Arts Centre 

 Virtual face- to -face appointments to be available via Skype or Microsoft Teams 

 Limited access to an adviser for face- to- face appointments (part time and on a seasonal basis) 

 

144



 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

Objectives 

5. The objectives of the consultation were identified as follows. To: 

 Inform the decision that will be taken by the council in respect of the provision of 

customer services in Stamford going forward 

 Ensure that the changes in both service provision and behaviour that have already 

occurred in this area as a result of the pandemic are incorporated in the refresh, thereby 

bringing the previous consultation that took place in January and February this year up to 

date 

 Identify how residents have been contacting customer services during the pandemic  

 Find out why people have been contacting the customer services centres during the 

pandemic 

 Gather feedback on how peoples’ behaviour (in respect of the council’s customer services 

centres) has changed as a result of the lockdown  

 Measure the degree of support or otherwise for the proposal(s) 

 Understand and be aware of the impact taking this decision may have on different 

communities 

Timescales 

 

6. Preparatory work was undertaken during the first two weeks of July 2020. The consultation was 

open for two weeks - from 20 July to 3 August 2020.  

Methodology 

 

7. Respondents were able to participate in the consultation in various ways. These included: 

a. Completion of an on-line survey. Respondents were directed to a dedicated page on 

SKDC’s website which contained additional context, along with a link to each of the surveys 

– thereby enabling respondents to complete both should they wish to. The weblink was 

included in the press release, via email from the customer service section and on social 

media channels. 

b. Completion by phone. Should respondents be unable to take part on- line, customer 

service staff were available to complete the survey on the customer’s behalf. 

8. Opportunities to participate in the consultation were promoted across various media. These 

included: 

 An article published on the Stamford Mercury’s website on 20 July 2020. 1  

 The council’s social media channels. Articles promoting the opportunity to participate were 

posted on 2020 on Facebook and Twitter. Potential respondents were provided with a link 

                                                           
1
 Article outlining the proposal on Stamford Mercury’s website on 20 July 2020. 

https://www.stamfordmercury.co.uk/news/consultation-relaunched-on-plans-to-close-council-offices-in-
stamford-and-market-deeping-9116850/ 

145

https://www.stamfordmercury.co.uk/news/consultation-relaunched-on-plans-to-close-council-offices-in-stamford-and-market-deeping-9116850/
https://www.stamfordmercury.co.uk/news/consultation-relaunched-on-plans-to-close-council-offices-in-stamford-and-market-deeping-9116850/


 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

to a dedicated page on the council’s website. This contained links to both surveys – 

Stamford and Market Deeping 

 Direct contact. Just under 40 individuals (who had taken part in the first consultation and 

had supplied their contact details) were contacted and asked for their views on the 

proposal 

 Individuals contacting the Council’s customer service section during the consultation 

period were asked if they would like to participate. A link to the survey was provided. 

Detail 

9. To help inform the decision that will be taken by South Kesteven District Council in respect of its 

proposal to change the way face-to-face services are provided in Stamford the consultation officer 

was asked to design a survey which would gather feedback from residents and other stakeholders. 

10. The survey was structured around the main premise of the consultation -to inform the decision 

which will be taken by Cabinet on 8 September in respect of customer service provision in 

Stamford.  It included: 

 Details on the council’s proposal to change the way face to face services are delivered in 

Stamford 

 A question to measure the extent to which respondents agree or disagree with this 

proposal 

 An opportunity to provide details of any impacts adopting this proposal may have  

To understand if responses were being received from those who had contacted the council during 

the pandemic respondents were asked to state 

 If they have contacted the council since lockdown was implemented 

 How they contacted the council- by telephone, via email etc 

 Why they contacted us 

 If their method of contact had changed as a result of the lockdown 

They were also asked to supply some demographic information, including gender, age and 

disability.  

11. Various actions were undertaken to ensure that the opportunity to participate in the consultation 

was as widely promoted as possible. These included: 

a. A dedicated page on the council’s website. The survey could be accessed via a user- 

friendly URL. 

b. Use of its social media channels – in particular Facebook and Twitter 

c. Being encouraged to take part if they contacted the customer service section during the 

consultation period 

d. An article in the Stamford Mercury 

 

  

12. The consultation closed on 3 August 2020, after two weeks. 115 responses were received.  

13. The initial posting on Facebook on 21 July had a reach of 2,776. 114 individuals clicked on the 

webpage dedicated to the consultation. The follow up articles - posted on 31 July and 1 August 

had a reach of 1,974 and 1,173 with 24 and 8 individuals respectively clicking through to the 

webpage dedicated to the consultation. 

146



 
 

4 | P a g e  
 

14. The tweet posted on Twitter on 22 July was seen by 650 individuals. The follow-up tweet posted 

on 31 July had a reach of 604, with one person clicking on the link to the webpage. The final tweet 

on 1 August had a reach of 694. Two people clicked on the link to the webpage.  

15. Just under 40 stakeholders who had taken part in the previous consultation were contacted 

directly and asked to participate in the consultation.  

16. The Head of Customer Experience has also talked to specific key stakeholders. Their anonymised 

responses are attached. 

 

The results  

Contacting the Council 

17. Respondents were given details of the proposal and how it would affect the delivery of face to 

face services in Stamford.  They were then asked five questions about contacting the Council. The 

first question asked respondents to state if they had contacted the Council since lockdown began 

on 23 March. If they hadn’t contacted the Council during this time, they were asked to go straight 

to question 6.  Just under half of respondents had contacted the council during this time as 

illustrated below: 

147



 
 

5 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

18. The second question asked respondents to choose how they had contacted the council in the last 

four and a half months. The most popular method of contact was by telephone, as outlined below: 

yes, 53, 47% 

no, 60, 53% 

don't know/not 
sure , 0, 0% 

Respondents who have contacted the Council since 
lockdown began  

Just under half of respondents stated that they had contacted the council since lockdown 

commenced on 23 March.  This is worth noting as it means over half of responses are from those 

who have not contacted the council recently, and as such will be commenting on the proposal with 

no first-hand experience of the arrangements that have been put in place to accommodate Covid-

19.  

148



 
 

6 | P a g e  
 

 

Of the three people who specified other, one contacted the council using a combination of 

methods, and two said that they had visited (or tried to visit) the office in Stamford.  

 

 

19. R

e

s

p

o

n

dents were then asked if their chosen method of contact had changed as a result of the Covid-19 

pandemic. Over two thirds of respondents said that the way in which they had contacted the 

council had changed as illustrated in the chart below: 

 Number Percentage 

Yes, I would normally contact the 
council in this way 

18 32.7% 

No, I have changed the way I contact 
the council because of the Covid-19 
pandemic 
 

37 67.3% 

Total 55 100% 

 

 

 

 

0 

1 

3 

5 

7 

37 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 

In person - I booked an urgent appointment 
at GCSC 

By letter 

Other  

By email 

Through the website 

By telephone 

How respondents contacted SKDC 

This is interesting as there are similarities to the data that is collected by the customer service 

centre on the number of calls being made to them, and the number of emails they have received.  

Analysis of this data revealed Customer Services experienced an increase of 10.8% in the number of 

calls being made this year when compared to the same time period in 2019, and an increase of 

144.5% in the number of emails being received. Also worth noting is the lack of take-up of 

emergency appointment slots- these have been available since 6 April and from at the Grantham 

Customer Service Centre from 29 June but as yet, none have been requested. 

 

 

Two thirds of the respondents who answered this question stated that they had changed the way 

they contact the council because of the pandemic. Comparing these responses to the degree of 

support (or not) for the proposal will enable us to understand whether this is through choice or 

necessity. 

149



 
 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

20. The fourth question on the survey asked respondents to identify why they had contacted the 

council. Respondents could tick as many options as they liked. The three most popular options 

were to ask a question about council services, to report something or to make a payment as 

shown below: 

 

An analysis of those choosing other revealed two wished to arrange a collection of bulky waste, 

one wished to complain about the Highways section (a Lincolnshire County Council function) and 

one was a member of staff. 

21. When asked to describe how satisfied they were with the way in which their enquiry had been 

dealt with, just under three fifths of respondents (59.3%) were satisfied. Just over a quarter 

(27.8%) were neither satisfied nor dissatisfied, with the remainder stating that they were 

dissatisfied.  

22. Respondents were then asked to state the extent to which they agreed or disagreed with the 

proposal to change the way face-to-face services are delivered in Stamford. Nearly three quarters 

of respondents (72%) disagreed with this proposal, with just over half (55%) disagreeing strongly. 

However, if these results are compared to those obtained in February, it appears there has been a 

decrease in the proportion of respondents disagreeing with the proposal. This is illustrated in the 

table overleaf: 

 Number  
(July 2020) 

Number 
(Feb 2020) 

Percentage 
(July 2020)  

Percentage 
(Feb 2020)  

Strongly agree with the proposal 9 15 9.0% 4.0% 

Agree with the proposal 
 

9 17 9.0% 4.6% 

Neither agree nor disagree with the 
proposal 

10 23 10.0% 6.2% 

Disagree with the proposal  17 44 17.0% 11.8% 

Strongly disagree with the proposal 55 274 55.0% 73.4% 

Total 100 373 100.0% 100.0% 

 

4 

4 

7 

11 

11 

30 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 

To provide evidence that has been asked for 

Other, please specify 

To apply for something 

To make a payment 

To report something 

To ask a question about council services 

Why respondents chose to contact the Council 

150



 
 

8 | P a g e  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

23. When asked why they had chosen to answer in this way, around 80 respondents commented. The 

main themes were: 

a. People prefer to talk to someone face to face 

b. Vulnerable people need direct access to services 

c. No access to the internet 

d. The suitability of Stamford Arts Centre as the location for provision 

24. To ensure that the council is aware of any impacts that closing the customer service centre in 

Stamford may have on individuals, respondents were then asked to detail them. Around 60 

respondents commented. The main themes were: 

a. Access to transport 

b. The phone system 

c. Preferring to talk to someone directly 

d. Collection of parking permits, vouchers  

e. Being able to pay bills 

25. Respondents were then asked for some demographic information. The purpose of this was to get 

a measure of how representative the sample was of the district. They were asked for their gender, 

age and if they considered themselves to have a disability or not. Comparing these statistics to 

those of the district revealed the following: 

 

Gender 

 Sample % District % Weighting 

Male 35.6 48.2 1.35 

Female 64.4 51.8 0.80 

Total 100.0% 100.0%  

 

The sample is representative in terms of females, but males are slightly under-represented. 

Age  

 Sample % District % Weighting 

Under 18 0.0 21.4 - 

18 to 24 0.0 6.3 - 

These results are interesting. The proportion of respondents agreeing with the proposal has 

increased from February to July, which seems to suggest that some might have changed their minds 

and now feel the proposal is more acceptable. Although it is difficult to draw any firm conclusions as 

the number of responses collected is low, there does appear to be a shift in what people are 

thinking about the proposal. It may be worth looking at these results in more detail - undertaking 

further analysis to establish if rates of support are higher, lower or no different for those who have 

used the services available during the pandemic. 

151



 
 

9 | P a g e  
 

25 to 34 4.6 10.7 2.3 

35 to 44 5.7 12.0 2.1 

45 to 54 26.4 15.8 0.6 

55 to 64 25.4 14.4 0.6 

65 and over 37.9 19.4 0.5 

Total 100.0% 100.0%  

 

The sample is not representative in terms of age. Those aged under 45 are under-represented and 

those aged 45 or over are over-represented in the sample.  

Disability 

According to national statistics, one in five people (or 21% of the population) state that they have a 

disability. When asked, 10.1% of the sample stated that they had a disability. This means the 

sample is not representative in terms of disability.  

Other comments 
 

26. Respondents were then asked if they had any questions or if they would like to comment on 

anything included in the survey. One in five respondents wanted to know more or to make their 

views known. Their comments included: 

a. Suggestions for alternative locations alongside partner providers. These included Stamford 

Library and the Citizens Advice Bureau.  

b. The quality of the current phone service  

c. The Saturday morning refuse collection of waste from the Cattle Market Car Park which has 

not yet been re-instated  

27. Some feedback has also been received independently to the survey. This has been anonymised 

and attached at appendix twelve. 

28. The final question asked for respondents contact details so that any queries they had could be 

responded to. These will be answered as soon as possible. 

 

  

Comparing the demographic characteristics of this sample to those of the wider population 

revealed that whilst the sample is representative in terms of female respondents, it is not 

representative of males, age or disability. Those aged under 45 are under-represented in the 

results and those aged 45 or above are over-represented. This should be kept in mind when 

considering the results as it is likely to have an impact on the responses given, particularly in 

respect of how individuals might want to able to access customer services in Stamford.  

 

152



 
 

10 | P a g e  
 

Conclusion 
29. The purpose of this consultation was to establish the degree of support for changing the way 

customer services are provided in Stamford and inform the decision that will be taken about this 

issue by SKDC’s cabinet on 8 September 2020. Responses, whilst not representative in terms of 

gender, age or disability, have been received from a variety of stakeholders across various 

channels. The Council has had some good feedback on the impact adopting the proposal will have 

on certain sections of the local population (particularly those who do not have access to the 

internet) or who may be vulnerable. 

It is important to note that although there has been an increase in the proportion of respondents 

in support of the changes, they are still not, on the whole, in favour of the proposal that has been 

suggested as part of the consultation.   

 

Prepared by Deb Wyles 

Communication and consultation 

5 August 2020 

 

153



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6 

Stamford Customer Service Consultation – July 2020 

Free text comments/queries received in response to Q7, Q8 and Q12  

Q7. Please use the space 
below to tell us why you have 
chosen to respond in this way 
(to explain their position on 
the proposal) 

Q8. The council wants to 
understand and be aware of 
any impacts closing the office 
in Stamford may have on you. 
Please use the space below to 
tell us about them. 

Q12.If you have any questions 
or would like to comment on 
anything included in this 
survey, please use the space 
below: 

It is crucial that those people 
who do not have online access 
are able to visit the office in 
Stamford 

Reliance on family to help  It seems somewhat underhand 
to be having a second survey 
on this same topic under the 
guise of Covid-19, given that 
the council office has had a 
protective screen in front of 
the staff for many years.  

People want to be able to go 
somewhere where they can 
talk to someone and have 
everyone all in one place.  

1. I do not feel confident in 
using a self- service kiosk. 2. 
There is no direct public 
transport between Stamford 
and Grantham if I have to 
travel there to see anyone and 
I do not drive.  

Please would you inform me of 
the exact date in September 
when the decision will be 
taken? I work on a local 
newspaper that goes to 650 
households and will provide 
notification of any changes in 
the next available issue after 
the decision is taken. 
Depending on the timing I will 
know in which issue to allocate 
space. 

1. I do not own a computer 
and am relying on my son to 
complete this survey for me, 
so I am unable to use remote 
appointments. 2. I find using 
the office very convenient and 
the staff very helpful there and 
value face to face service.  

No issue  Why not site access point in 
Citizens Advice nearby 

It saves an office that is 
obviously being underused 
from being open and still 
provides a resource for 
residents 

Art centre is further to walk for 
those who have mobility 
issues. The current office is 
central to the town 

This is patently a cost cutting 
measure rustled in under the 
false guise of Covid-19. I wish 
we were part of Rutland once 
more, SKDC pay lip service to 
Stamford but don’t 
understand the town at all. We 
actually have a community 
here, and the SKDC Office was 
an important part of it. 

Speaking to someone is better 
than automated services at 
times  

It won't have any impact on 
me. 

Why does Stamford lose out 
no swimming pool no cinema 
and now council facilities 

155

Appendix 6



I was completely unaware that 
the Maiden Lane office 
existed. A presence in the Arts 
Centre would be more visible 
and could introduce more 
people to what the Centre has 
to offer.  

Cannot collect parking 
permits/vouchers 

i like the personnel service 
which if we don’t say anything 
it will be lost 

Art Centre is the wrong place 
to site this access point 

None A means of seeing all of what 
we have put in these  Boxes 
would be helpful.  

I managed to do it online but 
your website is out of date and 
needs to be made easier to 
use  

Whenever I have had a query 
it is easily resolved in a 
conversation with the 
wonderful lady who worked in 
the Stamford Office. Problems 
with parking permits 
happened when dealing 
remotely and this was always 
sorted out by her. We need 
more human interaction, not 
less. It cannot be replicated by 
phones and Skype.  

Please do not cut Stamford off. 
We are gradually losing our 
local facilities, the Saturday 
refuse collection in the cattle 
market has not returned yet 
and it is not possible ( or 
environmentally friendly) for 
us to keep travelling to 
Bourne. I sincerely hope that 
the rubbish facility and our 
local office will return and that 
COVID 19 will not be seen as a 
convenient excuse to stop 
both these local services. 

This totally removes face to 
face personal contact and is 
unacceptable.  

As above. It’s so much easier 
to have someone to talk to 
directly to help with queries. 
There are many people that 
cannot use technology for one 
reason or another (age, 
disability etc) which would 
cause undue stress/anxiety.  

The closure of the museum.  
The proposed closure of 
council facilities.  Doesn't 
exhibit much care for the 
cultural and social life of one 
of England's "finest stone 
towns", does it? 

I normally find my answer on 
the website 

As above  I think it is important to have 
local services present in the 
town not remote. 

Vulnerable people need direct 
access to services 

Stamford increases in size but 
loose facilities to Grantham 

Access to SKDC by phone is 
awful.  The waiting time long 
with constant waiting for 
departments.  Please 
reconsider these plans.  We 
have less and less places in 
Stamford for people to go for 
help and information.  

Stamford arts centre is busy 
enough. Without having to 
fight to get in to sort council 
related reasons. Also. It’s 
much better for someone to 
be around to offer help 
support and advice. Some 
people are not good with 

None Why should Stamford lose the 
office when we have an 
extremely poor public transfer 
network that would make it 
extremely hard to get to 
another office in Grantham.  

156



technology and this may cause 
undue stress/anxiety  

This is an ideal location in 
town, staff always so helpful 
and I hate having to use the 
telephone which is why I 
prefer the office to speak to a 
person face to face  

because in time there will be 
no interaction with customers 
and a proper person to hand 

I have not contacted the 
council services through the 
pandemic as I did not require 
any information. I have used 
the Stamford council office to 
get questions answered if I 
have had an issue and the 
service has always been 
excellent. I do know that 
elderly neighbours use the 
service regularly and would 
not choose to use email or 
even the phone as they much 
prefer to speak to someone in 
person.  

Stamford always loses out with 
any council facilities 

For the older generation, of 
which we are one, sorting out 
problems face to face is much 
easier and less daunting than 
attempting to use technology. 

Keep Stamford open, we have 
little other council services 
here 

Most things can be completed 
online 

See above, plus, like many 
people my age, I am not good 
with modern technology and it 
is too far to go to Grantham 
with every query. 

This decision will come down 
to money no matter what I 
say. 

Before too long we will no 
longer have any contact with 
people it will all be machinery 
doing the job of a person no 
contact with human beings 

I will miss chatting to the 
people in the office.  

Social distancing isn’t going to 
go on forever so making long 
term policy decisions based on 
it is ludicrous. It is a crying 
shame that the Maiden Lane 
Office has closed, showing 
once again how little SKDC 
really values Stamford other 
than the cachet of Burghley 
and the Georgian town tourist 
attraction. In every respect, 
SKDC takes little notice of our 
town council who work 
extremely hard with little 
support from you and having 
one member of SKDC staff in a 
small office is a drop in the 
SKDC coffers.    

The planned alternatives are 
not customer friendly to the 
vast majority of people who 
are retired and trying to retain 
their independence in this 
lovely town. The older 

Closing the customer services 
centre will isolate me from 
easy access to vital 
information about my local 
services but, perhaps more 
importantly, it will devalue the 

It’s all about saving money and 
not providing the right service 
for the residents of Stamford 
why is it that you want to close 
it and make people travel to 
Grantham for appointments  

157



generation prefer to speak 
directly to a person. Problems 
may not get reported if there 
is no office available. 

Town of Stamford - a town 
regularly voted one of the best 
towns in England to live in, a 
fantastic resource to the 
county and historic jewel.  
Over recent years we have lost 
the Museum, the Arts Centre 
has been devalued and the 
roads and cobbled pedestrian 
precinct  are in constant 
disrepair - all this lack of care I, 
frankly, find depressing and 
shameful.  

We have always been able to 
speak to someone in person at 
the Stamford office and they 
have always been most 
helpful. A phone line would be 
quite inadequate as it is always 
difficult to get through to Skdc 
and each time I have rung 
recently, having finally got 
through to the right 
department I have been 
informed that “ I am not at my 
desk so please leave a 
message”. Please let us have 
our office back. 

We always use the office to 
deal with council matters and 
see no reason for us to have a 
lesser service than Bourne or 
Grantham. 

Questions are put so council 
get the answers it wants not 
what the residents want 

I have had to learn to do things 
online so this change is 
probably what every business 
will start to do going forward.  

It will not personally have an 
impact on me. My concern is 
with other members of our  
expanding community  

Please bring back the bin lorry 
on Saturday mornings !!! 

I want to deal with a 
designated office and officers 
where I can have eye to eye 
contact, a friendly welcome in 
a space and with individuals I 
can get to know , understand 
and trust.  Computers, 
internet, part-time spaces and 
people are not, cannot and 
should not replace a proper 
one to one, friendly, 
welcoming service.  

The impact is all part of the 
erosion of human contact, to 
the detriment of the town. You 
should be ashamed to be even 
considering this paltry saving. 
Think beyond the money and 
look to serving the community 
properly. 

Why has the council not 
considered a facility similar to 
Bourne Community Point and 
Library for Stamford and the 
Deepings? This is not obvious 
in the survey statement or 
questions. 

There is no adequate 
replacement for a person in a 
service and information role.  
The satisfaction and 
understanding that you get 
from a personal encounter 
cannot be replicated by the 

The phone line is complicated 
and slow 

 

158



impersonal means of the 
telephone let alone a 
computer.   Council services 
are paid for by everybody and 
not everyone either has a 
computer, is computer 
literate, can hear clearly by 
phone or  afford travel costs to 
get a service or an answer to a 
question.  Is the council 
interested only in servicing the 
young, able and computer 
literate?  If not, then the 
personal service is necessary. 

The proposal caters for most 
people although it is important 
to offer face to face 
appointments for those that 
are vulnerable or have 
additional needs 

I use it to on an ‘adhoc’ basis 
to purchase parking permits 
and obtain household bags, I 
see it as a useful service to a 
key town in the area. 

 

It is vital to provide a local 
personal service for the 
community particularly for the 
vulnerable and more elderly. 
Skype and Teams are not an 
adequate replacement. Our 
town is growing and so will the 
need for personal connect and 
quality service provision.  

Many people do not have 
internet access.  In doing this 
you will be disregarding the 
elderly and  disadvantaged 
members of this town .   

 

Stamford has many people 
who, for various reasons, age, 
mobility and so on, preferer to 
talk to a real person and not a 
machine. It is part of the 
unique character of the town 
that we do have helpful and 
friendly people who talk and 
explain to us directly. This 
cannot be replaced by a 
machine and the value of this 
cannot be simply expressed in 
£sd. A busy and thriving 
community is strengthened by 
the presence of the Maiden 
Lane office. 

Extra journey time. Trying to 
cope with a machine. Bus fare 
to Grantham or Bourne 

 

Because face to face is more 
satisfactory and I see no 
reason why Stamford should 
be singled out for this closure 
our rates are expensive 

I would urge you to liaise with 
Citizen’s advice, whose lease is 
coming up for renewal on St 
Pauls Street, to consider using 
this as a joins space. More and 
more, older and less-

 

159



advantaged people are 
becoming isolated and this 
would be an ideal opportunity 
for SKDC to turn back the tide 
of the digital effects on 
communities and bring a 
positive and accessible space 
back to life. 

Stamford population is 
growing, more housing and as 
such a full range of customer 
focused services are required. 
Also, there is a section of the 
population who need that face 
to face service such as 
residents who do not have PCs 
etc. 

Inconvenience and lack of 
expert face to face knowledge 
that would no longer be 
available to the people of 
Stamford.  

 

such a backwards step.  There 
are many elderly and disabled 
people who will find his very 
difficult 

This proposal discriminates 
against anyone (including the 
elderly, disadvantaged and 
vulnerable members of the 
community) who is not 
comfortable with or able to 
use digital/telephone 
technology, and/or has 
no/limited access to transport 
(or unable to afford transport) 
to travel to another office. It 
also negatively impacts people 
who want to deal with a 
person face to face, and with 
the growing epidemic of 
loneliness and disconnection 
in society, this is another 
example of a personal 
connection being lost.  In fact, 
unless you have launched this 
survey using other formats, 
e.g. paper, then you are going 
to get responses from people 
who can use and have access 
to, a computer and the 
internet. 

 

Stamford has many old people 
who want and often need 
REAL face to face contact 
where they can feel at ease 
and not get confused by a 
machine. Also it is faceless and 
your only possible reason is as 
a cost cutting exercise. Those 

When phoning offices at 
Grantham I often feel 
"distanced" and like the staff 
are unfamiliar with Stamford. 
Losing that local knowledge 
and contact with local citizens 
(particularly those 
disadvantaged) feels like a 

 

160



of us who are disabled need a 
person too who understands. 
Machines don't 

step backwards and a risk to 
our local population 

The demographics of Stamford 
show an older resident and 
having an actual site serves 
two purposes. It makes it 
much easier for those without 
IT facilities, or those with 
mobility issues, to access 
council services.  Secondly, it 
offers a community space 
where people, some of who 
will not have much personal 
contact in any event, can 
speak to somebody face to 
face. This is invaluable. 

I am a person who believes it 
is vital to deal with other 
people face to face, and who 
feels compromised by and 
extremely uncomfortable with 
mechanical interface. It should 
be part of the council's role to 
bring people together, rather 
than alienate and marginalise 
them. 

 

The proposal assumes that 
everyone has access to a 
computer, which is not the 
case 

A self-service machine is not 
the answer to dealing with 
people’s enquiries and many 
people will not have access to 
computers. One thing that we 
have learned through the 
recent pandemic is the need to 
ensure we can support our 
communities and offering a 
face to face service for 
vulnerable and elderly people 
is essential. Why is the 
decision to close Stamford and 
not Bourne or Grantham?  
Why is an office justified there 
but not in our town? Stamford 
generates a lot of income for 
SKDC so please ensure the 
community continues to 
receive the support it needs 
from the council by leaving the 
Stamford council office open.  

 

I live in centre of town and 
want to have the convenience 
of the council office in centre 
of town and having face to 
face contact with any query I 
might have. 

The elderly and vulnerable are 
more likely to have difficulty 
dealing with the council by 
telephone or through the 
internet.  By planning to close 
the office in Maiden Lane, the 
council is ignoring their needs.  
The council should reconsider 
and find a way of keeping the 
office open, if only for a couple 
of days each week, perhaps by 
sharing the premises with an 

 

161



organisation such as Citizens 
Advice.  After all, the elderly 
and vulnerable have the same 
rights as any other council 
taxpayer, yet arguably a 
greater need. 

This proposal discriminates 
against anyone (including the 
elderly, disadvantaged and 
vulnerable members of the 
community) who is not 
comfortable with or able to 
use digital/telephone 
technology, and/or has 
no/limited access to transport 
(or unable to afford transport) 
to travel to another office. It 
also negatively impacts people 
who want to deal with a 
person face to face, and with 
the growing epidemic of 
loneliness and disconnection 
in society, this is another 
example of a personal 
connection being lost.  In fact, 
unless you have launched this 
survey using other formats, 
e.g. paper, then you are going 
to get responses from people 
who can use and have access 
to, a computer and the 
internet. 

Personally, relocating the 
service provision will not affect 
me in any way but I would not 
want to see removed 
completely 

 

This is not an inclusive policy. 
The section of the population 
without access to the 
appropriate technologies and 
skills are excluded. 

Not so much to me personally 
but Stamford has a very high 
population of  over 70s who 
will not be able to use or 
understand stand the new 
proposals 

 

Convenience. This is likely to result in a 
reduced quality and availability 
of service. 

 

Stamford is a main hub within 
SKDC and has a lot of 
disadvantaged and immobile 
residents that need local 
access to services/staff 

I will be very disappointed to 
have to travel to Grantham or 
even access a machine in the 
Arts Centre. Vulnerable & 
elderly people of Stamford will 
be confused & upset. 
STAMFORD NEEDS THE 
CUSTOMER CARE OFFICE TO 
REMAIN OPEN FOR ALL TO 
ACCESS. 

 

162



SKDC is about people – the 
people who work for the 
council, and the people it 
serves. Stamford is a major 
town that is fast expanding in 
the region administered by 
SKDC, and as such, SKDC needs 
an appropriately substantial 
HUMAN presence in that 
town. Machines will never be a 
satisfactory replacement for 
the valuable interface 
between people. The Maiden 
Lane office is an extremely 
valuable asset to the town. It is 
the only point of contact 
between SKDC and the public, 
and the quality of this contact 
will be severely diminished by 
closure of the office and 
installation of machines. There 
are many old and 
disadvantaged people who 
cannot or will not use 
digital/mechanical interfaces. 
For these people, face to face 
contact is vital and 
withdrawing this valuable 
resource (the SKDC office and 
staff) will compromise and 
marginalise them further. This 
has become particularly 
evident during the Covid-19 
pandemic, when we have seen 
just how important physical 
human interaction is in 
maintaining the mental and 
emotional health of 
communities. Furthermore, 
why is Stamford’s office being 
closed, when Grantham and 
Bourne’s offices are being kept 
open? The savings being made 
are a false economy at 
Stamford’s expense and will be 
to the town’s detriment. By 
closing the office SKDC will be 
compromising their duty of 
public service. 

People are more likely to use 
the service if they have the 
option of a human in person 
contact and will feel more 
satisfied with the result.  

 

I believe this service is vital for 
the locals’ community. There 

Will affect my family as 
daughter lives in council 

 

163



are elderly and vulnerable 
people whose only access to 
council services and advice is 
through this office. Stamford is 
a growing town with more and 
more housing developments 
and an increasing population. 
We need the physical presence 
of a council service evident for 
our people.  

accommodation and has a fear 
of technology 

As a long standing adviser with 
Citizens Advice; every week I 
saw clients who had found it 
impossible to access the help 
and support they need over 
the telephone or through the 
internet, and so come to 
Citizens Advice for a face-to-
face consultation with an 
adviser.  A self-service kiosk 
that can accept payments 
together with a PC with access 
to the internet plus a 
dedicated phone line to SKDC 
will not help elderly and 
vulnerable residents who 
struggle with computers or 
find it difficult to explain 
themselves over the 
telephone. 

I struggle with phone anxiety 
(as I know many people do)... I 
would be less likely to call the 
phone lines for help and could 
possibly go without the service 
for a long time 

 

I believe it is important to the 
people of Stamford to always 
retain a presence within the 
town this in itself stops people 
feeling isolated and ignored 
also whilst I am perfectly fit 
and able many are not and I’m 
sure they appreciate contact 
as required.  

my parents have used the 
office in Stamford for years 
they use it to pay rent and it’s 
the only way they know how 
to do it without asking anyone 
for help with the process of 
paying it. I.e. they are not 
good at using computers or 
working the telephone  

 

Lot of elderly people will have 
no access to computers etc 
and will be totally confused 
with new proposals! 

Excellent staff in current 
premises, face to face contact 
essential, no queues or "on 
hold" or being transferred 
between departments. Unable 
to travel to Grantham for same 
service.  

 

Face to face contact is 
important for a number of 
reasons. 

I do drop in occasionally but 
will have to use internet  

 

It may work, the proof of the 
pudding is in the eating.  

What happens when there is 
no seasonal face to face 

 

164



person there, can’t drive to 
Grantham, can’t use phone 

Stamford office is vital to 
everybody in Stamford. We all 
have to go in at some point, 
whether to make a payment, 
produce evidence or merely to 
talk to face to face about a 
personal or council matter.  

The impact will be great for 
our elderly population 

 

I think you need to provide a 
human face at The Arts Centre 
to reduce frustration and 
make it more personal. Some 
people find it hard to express 
themselves fully on the phone.  

I no longer reside in Stamford , 
although I spent a good chunk 
of life in the town. 

 

A substantial amount of 
people still need face to face 
contact. Not myself, but the 
elderly, vulnerable etc. What 
about The Volunteer Bureau 
sharing the space? Maybe in 
another generation it could be 
taken away, but not yet. 

I don't drive nor do I 
particularly want to use public 
transport during the present 
situation. I am not a fan of 
self-service facilities. 

 

Face to face in Stamford office 
the personal touch is always 
the best 

None, the relocation is very 
nearby 

 

Many people much prefer a 
face to face interaction. 
Elderly/vulnerable may not 
have access or knowledge on 
how to use the new systems. 
The current office is also 
accessible to everyone. The 
arts centre is sometimes hard 
to navigate round and can be 
overwhelming (even as a 
young confident person, I 
personally don't like going in 
there)  

Older people who rely on 
council services will suffer 
once again 

 

Because the art centre is 
already full of other 
products/business and I feel it 
would not be appropriate for 
people to go there for their 
council things 

Good idea  

Don't like using IT or phones, 
like to speak face to face with 
an actual person 

Elder users are much less likely 
to engage with SKDC via the 
mechanisms suggested, thus 
depriving many of those to 
whom council services are 
essential.  

 

165



Elderly people prefer to have 
face to face contact not 
everyone is computer savvy 
and would struggle with 
remote contact 

Dealing with the same person 
in the Maiden Lane Office was 
great. She knew everyone and 
was brilliant at sorting out 
your enquiries. 

 

Stamford’s older population 
will suffer 

Those wishing to pay bills at 
your counter won’t be able to.   

 

Elderly people like to visit the 
council offices  

I don’t think it is necessarily 
progress to replace people 
with equipment.  

 

Because services for Stamford 
are being taken away and no 
consideration for the people of 
the town that use it. Not 
everyone is a tech geek and 
you would be isolating mainly 
the elderly from accessing 
services 

We need a face to face service 
for the elderly and vulnerable  

 

I’m deaf so can’t use phone or 
video, can’t use computer as 
lost functionality in hands 

Online contact can take days 
to be responded to and the 
phones are neither user 
friendly or always answered 
quickly. Not everyone has 
access to a computer. A large 
percentage of people prefer 
the human interaction face to 
face, not over a computer 
screen. You are proposing to 
remove choice and are not 
providing similar offers at all of 
your market towns, again 
Stamford, the jewel in your 
crown, becomes the poor 
relation!  

 

I have a lot of friends that 
either don’t have a computer 
or smart phone and also are 
not happy phoning 

The town loses its identity very 
easily 

 

As I myself get older, I realise 
that keeping up with modern 
devices can be a challenge. For 
reasons of finance, as well as 
health, many vulnerable 
people would not be able to 
access the services without a 
physical point of contact. 

As above  

There is nothing as effective as 
real human contact especially 
when things are not 
straightforward, and 
sometimes they need dealing 

Needed for those that cannot 
do the services online. 

 

166



with quickly. I already 
telephone Grantham if it is 
routine. I visit the office in 
Stamford for tricky things. 

I am concerned at the lack of 
locality which would follow its 
implementation. 

No impact. Services are 
provided at Bourne. 

 

Some people do not have 
access to the internet 

I would be less likely to use it 
when I desperately need to as 
I may be embarrassed 

 

Not everyone in Stamford 
wants to use self service 
facilities especially vulnerable 
or older people. The idea that 
in order to speak to someone 
directly you have to travel to 
Bourne or Grantham is 
impractical because not 
everyone drives and not 
everyone wants to travel there 
by public transport! 

Not everyone has access to pcs 
internet and technology. Covid 
has also reminded us about 
the need to interact with 
people. Some Stamford people 
are very vulnerable when they 
are requiring help. It is critical 
that these people who 
probably can’t see this survey 
are looked after properly  

 

Need to retain provision in 
Stamford  

It severely impacts on those 
without transport. 

 

This sounds similar to the 
service already provided so I 
am not clear what has changed 
for me personally. 

Will taxi drivers have the same 
service provision at Stamford 
Arts Centre  

 

I feel that whatever is said will 
not be taken any notice of.  

None  

Erosion of face to face services 
such as these are the thin end 
of the wedge of austerity. 
People deserve the same level 
of service in Stamford as they 
receive in Grantham. 

Obtaining visitor parking 
permits and advice  

 

Great idea I'm lucky in the position where 
I drive and have access to use 
online services. As above this 
will affect the elderly and the 
vulnerable, those who are 
going to use these services the 
most. 

 

Because there’s no point in me 
saying I disagree with your 
decision to close the office, 
therefore this is better than 
nothing 

It is important for the council 
to have a face-to-face 
presence in the town 

 

Important to keep a face to 
face presence in Stamford as 
not everyone has internet 
access or can easily 

It will cost me the price of a 
2nd class stamp every month 

 

167



communicate on phone, 
particularly more elderly 
residents 

I have regularly used the 
Stamford centre have 
evidence scanned/ 
photocopied and sent up to 
the offices at Grantham.  

  

I have lived in Stamford all my 
life the council office is vital to 
me as I’m a taxi driver and do 
all my paperwork there also it 
is vital for the elderly who 
want to speak to a friendly 
helpful human Angela and 
Daniel are very good and very 
friendly be a shame for them 
to lose their jobs and for the 
residents of Stamford to lose a 
vital service  

  

You are assuming people want 
to contact you by phone or 
online yet again, you have not 
listened to what your 
customers want at all.  

  

Face to Face is better than 
trying to phone with lots of 
options and hanging on for 
hours to speak to a human 

  

Because it’s total cr** for 
vulnerable and elderly.  

  

I think that Stamford needs 
face to face contact with local 
residents, taxi drivers from 
Peterborough, parking permits 
and visitor vouchers. 

  

What is the evidence that 
Stamford Arts Centre has the 
space to accommodate the 
extra facilities without 
compromising the existing 
space that is dedicated to 
current use. PC access requires 
some privacy. Is this not 
provided at Stamford Library? 

  

The arts centre is a busy area, I 
am unhappy at people being 
able to overhear any issues I 
have on my personal situation  

  

I think it important that 
Stamford people have face to 

  

168



face access to Council services 
in the town centre 

Many of the elderly struggle to 
access e mail and phone 
services 

  

Fulfils the needs of residents 
and reduces costs to SKDC 

  

Much better use of public 
funds 

  

Many residents rely on the 
excellent staff and personal 
contact  

  

Of course, people are going to 
contact customer services in a 
different way during a 
pandemic as we have been 
told to stay in. How can you 
say this is the new normal 
when we have only recently 
started to see lockdown lifted, 
this is far too early to make an 
informed decision? This is 
going to affect the elderly and 
vulnerable the most, some of 
who don’t have or struggle to 
use technology and without 
good public transport links 
can’t easily get to Bourne or 
Grantham. 

  

Arts Centre should just be for 
the arts 

  

SKDC changes are never for 
the better 

  

 

169



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 7 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

Equality Impact 
(Stage 2 Analysis) 

 
Changes to face-to-face 
Customer Service Centre 

Provision 

July-August 2020 
Consultation  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
 
Customer Services 

Lead officer: 
Lee Sirdifield 

Date of Meeting 
 
11 August 2020 Assessors: 

Nova Roberts 
Amber Wakeling 

Neutral Assessor: 
Carol Drury 
 

171

Appendix 7



Appendix 7 

  

1. Name of policy/service/function/strategy:   
 
Modernisation of face-to-face customer service offering in Market Deeping 
and Stamford. 
 
A second consultation was completed in July 2020 to consider the impact of 
proposed changes to the Customer Service provision in Market Deeping and 
Stamford. Previously a range of options were reviewed and considered during 
the initial consultation in February 2020. This second EIA reviews the impact 
of the proposed recommendation.   
 
Market Deeping 
 
1.1 Option 3: Replace the existing centre with a signposting service 

through Deepings Community Library with an enhanced self-

service offer 

This option sees the replacement of the existing customer service provision 
with a signposting service and the installation of a self-service kiosk 
at Deepings Community Library.  
 

We would work with Deepings Community Library to provide basic training to 

their team so that they are able to signpost customers who choose to access 

through this route.  

 

This approach would be reviewed on a six-monthly basis. Data relating to the 
utilisation of this offer would be presented to the appropriate Cabinet Member 
and committee for consideration of any future changes 
 
• A self-service kiosk which will take payments. This would be based at 

Deepings Community Library 
• A PC with access to the internet and web-based services – based at 

the community library. This would enable customers to contact the 
council via our website and/or attend appointments remotely 

• Virtual face-to face appointments to be available via Skype or 
Microsoft Teams 

 
 
Stamford 
 

Option 3: Replace the existing centre with an enhanced self-

service offer supported by seasonal access to a customer 

service advisor 

This option sees the replacement of the existing centre at Maiden Lane with a 
kiosk and telephone solution at Stamford Arts Centre, with those seeking to 
access services via a computer being directed or Stamford Library. 
 
In addition, during busy periods, or where seasonality demands, provision of 

172



Appendix 7 

  

access to a customer service advisor on a part-time basis. This would help to 
assist customers to transition onto self-service solutions. 
 
This approach would be reviewed on a six-monthly basis. Data relating to the 
utilisation of this offer would be presented to the appropriate Cabinet Member 
and committee for consideration of any future changes. 

 

• A self-service kiosk which will take payments - installed in Stamford 
Arts Centre. 

• PC access being available through Stamford Library. This would 
enable customers to contact the council via our website.  

• A direct phone line in Stamford Arts Centre. This would be 
programmed so that it can be used to contact the council’s customer 
services centres in Grantham and Bourne, and other organisations 
such as Lincolnshire County Council. 

• A click and collect service (for taxi licence plates etc) based at 
Stamford Arts Centre 

• Virtual face-to-face appointments to be available via Skype or 
Microsoft Teams 

• Limited access to an advisor for face- to- face appointments (on a 
seasonal basis) 

 

2. Complete the table below, reconsidering the identified negative 
impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) in stage 1. If the impact has been mitigated, 
please explain how.  If the impact cannot be mitigated but can be 
justified, please provide details and evidence. Include any fresh 
demographic data, user surveys, local consultations evaluation 
forms, comments and complaints etc.  

 

 
 
Equality Group 

At Stage 1 Did you 
identify that this 
policy/service/function/ 
strategy had a negative 
impact or areas of 
concern for any of the 
equality groups, or 
through the 
consultation exercise? 
 

Please describe why the 
impact is negative.  
 
What alterations have you 
made to your proposal to 
alleviate or reduce 
negative impact  
 

Age 
 
 

Summary 
The second assessment 
showed a number of 
positive and negative 
impacts. It highlights that 
the overall changes to the 
way services are 
delivered will improve 
access. 

 

173



Appendix 7 

  

 
However, with specific 
reference to the area 
offices, it highlighted that 
the small number of 
customers who visit the 
offices on a regular basis 
could see a negative 
impact. This was 
examined further through 
both of the consultation 
exercises. 
 
 
 

Disability 
 

 

Stage 1 Summary 
The stage 1 analysis 
showed improvements in 
accessibility for services 
as a result of the 
Customer Experience 
Strategy. This shows 
improved online access, 
new chat technologies 
and upskilling of our 
resources to be better 
able to respond to 
different needs. 
 
However, it was 
highlighted that the 
proposals surrounding 
the closure of two area 
offices could have a 
negative impact on a 
small number of 
customers who currently 
use either the Market 
Deeping or Stamford 
offices. The consultation 
exercise asked for 
information on how the 
proposed changes could 
impact on individuals. 
The analysis of this 
survey has been used to 
evaluate a number of 
options for each market 
town. 
 

General Feedback 
For Market Deeping, 29 
survey respondents 
answered a question about 
if they had a disability. The 
response rates were as 
follows: 
 

 Yes = 4 

 No = 25 

 Prefer not to say = 9 
 
 
For Stamford, 96 survey 
respondents answered a 
question about if they had a 
disability. The response 
rates were as follows: 
 

 Yes = 9 

 No = 80 

 Prefer not to say = 7 
 
Consultation Summary 
 
Market Deeping 
The consultation results 
show a desire for face-to- 
face access that has 
accessible parking at an 
accessible venue. 
Feedback highlights at a 
high level the needs of 
vulnerable customers. 
Consideration needs to be 

174



Appendix 7 

  

 given to how this can be 
managed within each of the 
options. 
 
Stamford 
Feedback from Stamford 
highlights difficulties in 
using telephony services if 
you have hearing 
difficulties. As part of the 
Customer Experience 
Strategy alternative options 
including text relay and new 
solutions will be 
considered.   
 
The feedback also 
highlights that those with 
mobility issues may face 
additional challenges to 
access the alternative 
location in the Arts Centre, 
this will be assessed to 
ensure that access to self-
service with a seasonal 
face-to-face customer 
service advisor is enabled.  
 
Feedback also highlights 
that those suffering from 
poor mental health, 
including anxiety may need 
greater support or 
alternative solutions to 
ensure that they can still 
effectively access services. 
 
Feedback also highlights 
that complexities in 
telephony systems can act 
as a barrier to the people 
with disabilities in 
accessing services over the 
telephone. CSC 
Switchboard services will 
still be available to support 
access to services as well 
as access to a customer 
service officer being on site 
at busy seasonal times at 

175



Appendix 7 

  

the Arts Centre.   
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option effectively 
blends the provision of 
technology and telephony 
with some support through 
volunteers at the Library 
who would be trained by 
the customer services to 
support face-to-face. This 
would enable those who 
struggle to access things 
electronically to receive 
some help and support 
during their interaction. It 
would also enable those in 
most need to be identified 
and supported to access 
services through alternative 
means. CSC Switchboard 
services will still be 
available to provide help 
and support ease of access 
to services. 
 
This option would also 
provide face to face 
signposting to support 
customers to transact and 
contact us and to shift onto 
digital channels. 
 
 
Additional support could 
also be provided by officers 
completing home-visits or 
through pre-booked 
appointments. It is therefore 
possible to mitigate the 
impact of the change for 
this group. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
Option three puts a 
seasonal customer service 
officer within the Arts 
Centre working in a 

176



Appendix 7 

  

floorwalking capacity. This 
would provide support to 
use supported self-service, 
as well as enable the best 
handling of  more 
complicated enquiries to be 
triaged, greater support to 
use the telephony solution 
and kiosk, as well as some 
upskilling of arts centre staff 
to be able to manage some 
of the most common 
interactions when the 
customer service officer is 
not there. 
 
This solution could enable a 
greater presence during 
peaks in demand – for 
example during resident 
parking renewal periods, or 
garden waste renewal 
periods, with a lighter face- 
to-face offer at other points. 
These provisions would be 
put in place to help mitigate 
the challenges raised. 
 

Race 
 

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
showed a neutral impact 
based on race for the 
proposals to close two 
area offices. 
 
The consultation provided 
an opportunity to explore 
this area further. 
 
 
 
 
 

General Feedback 
The survey did not ask any 
specific questions on race, 
so no statistical information 
is available.  
 
However, translation 
services online and via 
telephony are currently 
provide and will remain 
available 
 
 
Consultation Summary 
Market Deeping 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of race. 
 
Stamford 
The survey did not highlight 

177



Appendix 7 

  

any additional 
considerations as a result 
of race. 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of race. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of race. 
 
 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
showed a neutral impact 
based on gender 
reassignment for the 
proposals to close two 
area offices. 
 
The consultation provided 
an opportunity to explore 
this area further. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Feedback 
The survey did not ask any 
specific questions on 
gender reassignment, so no 
statistical information is 
available. 
 
Consultation Summary 
 
Market Deeping 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of gender reassignment. 
 
Stamford 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of gender reassignment. 
 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of gender 
reassignment. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 

178



Appendix 7 

  

result of gender 
reassignment. 
 

Religion or 
Belief   

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
showed a neutral impact 
based on religion or belief 
for the proposals to close 
two area offices. 
 
The consultation provided 
an opportunity to explore 
this area further. 
 
 
 
 
 

General Feedback 
The survey did not ask any 
specific questions on 
religion or belief, so no 
statistical information is 
available. 
 
Consultation Summary 
Market Deeping 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of religion or belief. 
 
Stamford 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of religion or belief. 
 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of religion or belief. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of religion or belief. 
 

Sex 
 
 
   

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
showed a neutral impact 
based on sex for the 
proposals to close two 
area offices. 
 
The consultation provided 
an opportunity to explore 
this area further. 
 
 
 

General Feedback 
For Market Deeping, 29 
survey respondents 
answered a question about 
their sex. The response 
rates were as follows: 
 

 Male = 6 

 Female = 23 

 Prefer not to say = 0 
 
For Stamford, 96 survey 
respondents answered a 

179



Appendix 7 

  

 
 

question about their sex. 
The response rates were as 
follows: 
 

 Male = 31 

 Female = 56 

 Prefer not to say = 9 
 
Market Deeping 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of sex. 
 
Stamford 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of sex. 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of sex. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of sex. 
 

Sexual 
Orientation: 
 
 
 

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
showed a neutral impact 
based on sexual 
orientation for the 
proposals to close two 
area offices. 
 
The consultation provided 
an opportunity to explore 
this area further. 
 
 
 
 
 

General Feedback 
The survey did not ask any 
specific questions on 
sexual orientation, so no 
statistical information is 
available. 
 
Consultation Summary 
Market Deeping 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of sexual orientation. 
 
Stamford 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 

180



Appendix 7 

  

of sexual orientation. 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of sexual orientation. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of sexual orientation. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
showed a neutral impact 
based on pregnancy and 
maternity for the 
proposals to close two 
area offices. 
 
The consultation provided 
an opportunity to explore 
this area further. 
 
 
 
 
 

General Feedback 
The survey did not ask any 
specific questions on 
pregnancy and maternity, 
so no statistical information 
is available. 
 
Consultation Summary 
 
Market Deeping 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of pregnancy and maternity. 
 
Stamford 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of pregnancy and maternity 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option enables some 
signposting support face-to-
face. Whilst this might not 
be required for this group, it 
would be of benefit if 
individuals have other 
protected characteristics. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
This option enables some 
face-to-face support, 
particularly at key points 
within the year when 

181



Appendix 7 

  

contact is more likely. 
Whilst this might not be 
required for this group, it 
would be of benefit if 
individuals have other 
protected characteristics. 
 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 
  

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
showed a neutral impact 
based on marriage and 
civil partnership for the 
proposals to close two 
area offices. 
 
Although not explicitly 
mentioned within the 
consultation, the open 
questions provided 
respondents an 
opportunity to explore this 
area further. 
 
 
 
 
 

General Feedback 
The survey did not ask any 
specific questions on 
marriage and civil 
partnership, so no statistical 
information is available. 
 
Consultation Summary 
Market Deeping 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of marriage and civil 
partnership. 
 
Stamford 
The survey did not highlight 
any additional 
considerations as a result 
of marriage and civil 
partnership. 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of marriage or civil 
partnership. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts as a 
result of marriage or civil 
partnership. 
 

Carers 
 
 

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
showed a positive impact 
for carers as the overall 
strategy makes 
accessing services easier 
and more convenient. 

General Feedback 
The survey did not ask any 
specific questions on 
carers, so no statistical 
information is available. 
 
 

182



Appendix 7 

  

The consultation exercise 
also provided further 
opportunity for carers to 
respond to the proposed 
changes and highlight 
any areas of negative 
impact that had not been 
considered or mitigated.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consultation Summary 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option effectively 
blends the provision of 
technology and telephony 
with some face-to-face 
signposting support from 
volunteers.  This would 
enable carers to access 
things electronically and 
receive some help and 
support during their 
interaction. Signposting 
support will be provided by 
Library volunteers with 
additional support also to 
be provided by officers 
completing home-visits or 
through pre-booked 
appointments. It is therefore 
possible to mitigate the 
impact of the change to 
some degree for this group. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
Option three provides a 
seasonal customer service 
officer within the Arts 
Centre working in a 
floorwalking capacity. This 
would provide support to 
use supported self-service, 
as well as enable the best 
handling of  more 
complicated enquiries to be 
triaged, greater support to 
use the telephony solution 
and kiosk. 
This solution could enable a 
greater presence during 

183



Appendix 7 

  

peaks in demand – for 
example during resident 
parking renewal periods, or 
garden waste renewal 
periods, with a lighter face- 
to-face offer at other points. 
These provisions would be 
put in place to help mitigate 
the challenges highlighted 
within the consultation 
document. 
 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 

Stage 1 Summary 
The initial assessment 
highlighted a number of 
positive impacts for other 
groups, primarily due to 
the planned increase in 
accessibility online. 
 
However, it was 
recognised that there is a 
risk of a negative impact 
on some groups who 
currently use the area 
offices or have difficulty in 
accessing services 
through electronic 
means. The consultation 
exercise provided an 
opportunity for those in 
this group to provide 
further information. 
 

General Feedback 
The survey did not ask any 
specific questions to 
determine if respondents 
could be categorised into 
other groups, so no 
statistical information is 
available. 
 
 
Market Deeping 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts for 
other groups that have not 
already been considered 
within other sections of the 
assessment. 
 
Stamford 
Impact of Option 3 
This option does not have 
any negative impacts for 
other groups that have not 
already been considered 
within other sections of the 
assessment. 
 

*(IMD = Indices of multiple deprivation) 

3. What data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of the 
policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant consultation 
who took part and key findings) 

 
A second consultation was completed to reflect any changes in feedback in 
response to the lockdown period of Covid-19. A two-week consultation 
exercise was completed for the proposed changes to both Market Deeping 
area office and Stamford area office. This included contacting key 
stakeholders, promoting the consultation over the phone with Customer 

184



Appendix 7 

  

Service Centre customers and promoting via email signatures and via social 
media.  The data obtained through this exercise has been used to complete 
the stage two assessment. 
 
 

4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will 
be required to provide evidence to support the recommendations 
made): Please tick one of the options.    

 
 
a. No changes required: evidence confirms that the possibility of 

negative impact has been mitigated and all opportunities to 
promote equality have been taken 
 
 

b. All necessary changes made: Stage 2 equality analysis proves 
that any potential for discrimination or for negative impact have 
been mitigated and all opportunities to promote equality have 
been taken.            

 
         

c.  Adverse impact remains but can be justified. Please provide an 
explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 
justification for continuing with the policy/function/service/ 
strategy. You should consider whether there are sufficient plans 
to reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual 
impact.  

 

The assessment considers the recommended option for each location. This 
has been fed into the report to Cabinet, which recommends option three in 
both cases.  
 

 

  
Signed (Lead Officer):    Lee Sirdifield 
     Strategic Director 
  
Date completed:   11.08.2020  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 

Community Engagement and Policy 
Development Officer 

 
Date signed off:     12.08.2020 

 

 

X 

 

185



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 8: Comparison Tables and Charts 

How respondents chose to contact the council (%) 

 

Market Deeping Stamford 

By telephone 36.4 69.8 

Through the website 36.4 13.2 

By email 27.3 9.4 

By letter 0.0 1.9 

In person at the Grantham CSC  – 
I booked an appointment 0.0 0.0 

Other (please specify) 0.0 5.6 

 

 

 

The reasons why respondents contacted the Council  

 

Market Deeping Stamford 

To ask a question about Council services 40.0 55.5 

To provide evidence that has been asked for 10.00 7.4 

To apply for something (a licence, a permit etc) 20.0 12.9 

To report something 30.0 20.3 

To make a payment 0.0 20.3 

Other 0.0 0.0 

To attend a pre-booked appointment 0.0 0.0 

 

 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 

By telephone 

Through the website 

By email 

By letter 

In person at the Grantham CSC  – I booked an … 

Other (please specify) 

How respondents chose to contact the council 
(%) 

Stamford Market Deeping 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 

To ask a question about Council services 

To provide evidence that has been asked for 

To apply for something (a licence, a permit etc) 

To report something 

To make a payment 

Other 

To attend a pre-booked appointment 

The reasons why respondents contacted the 
Council 

Stamford Market Deeping 
187

Appendix 8



We would like to know if your chosen method of contact has changed as a result of the Covid19 

pandemic.  

 

Market Deeping Stamford 

Yes, I would normally contact the Council this 
way 72.7 32.7 

No, I have changed the way I contact the 
Council as a result of Covid19  27.2 67.2 

 

 

 

Gender (%) 

 

Market Deeping Stamford District 

Male 20.7 32.2 29.6 

Female 79.3 58.3 63.2 

Prefer not to say  0.0 9.3 7.2 

 

 

 

  

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 

Market Deeping 

Stamford 

We would like to know if your chosen method of contact has 
changed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Is this the way you 

would normally choose to contact us? 

No, I have changed the way I contact the Council as a result of Covid19  

Yes, I would normally contact the Council this way 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 

Market Deeping 

Stamford 

District 

Gender (%) 

Prefer not to say  Female Male 

188



Age (%) 

 

Market Deeping Stamford District 

Under 18 0.0 0.0 0.0 

18 to 24 0.0 0.0 0.0 

25 to 34 3.4 4.1 4.0 

35 to 44 0.0 5.2 4.0 

45 to 54 13.8 24 21.6 

55 to 64 20.7 23 22.4 

65+ 62 34.3 40.8 

Prefer not to say  0.0 9.3 7.2 

 

 

 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 

Under 18 

18 to 24 

25 to 34 

35 to 44 

45 to 54 

55 to 64 

65+ 

Prefer not to say  

Age (%) 

District Stamford Market Deeping 

189



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cabinet 

8 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Matters referred to Cabinet by Council and the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
This report highlights any matters referred to the Cabinet by Council or the Council’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees since the last meeting of Cabinet on 18 August 2020. 

 

 

Report Author 

Jo Toomey, Head of Governance 

 
01476 406152 

 j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Julie Edwards, Electoral Services Team Leader 20 August 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 28 August 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 28 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. To note that there were no specific recommendations referred from the Budget 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 26 August 2020 with regard to 
the proposed Budget amendments for the 2020/21 Budget Framework. 

191

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

 
 
1.1 No matters have been referred to Cabinet by Council since the Cabinet’s last meeting on 

18 August 2020. 

1.2 Since the Cabinet met on 18 August 2020, there have been no meetings of the Culture and 

Visitor Economy; Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee; Rural and Communities and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees. 

1.3 A meeting of the Budget Overview and Scrutiny Committee was held on 26 August 2020 

and considered amended budget proposals for 2020/21. 

The agenda, action notes and reports for this meeting can be found here: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=640&MId=3990  

192

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=640&MId=3990


 

 

 

Cabinet 

8 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Key and Non-Key Decisions taken under delegated 
powers 
This report provides an overview of decisions taken by individual Cabinet Members since the last 
meeting of the Cabinet on 18 August 2020. 

 

 

Report Author 

Jo Toomey, Head of Governance 

 
01476 406152 

 j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Julie Edwards, Electoral Services Team Leader 20 August 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 25 August 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 28 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of this report. 

193

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
1.1 Since the Cabinet last met on 18 August 2020, the following Key and Non-Key decisions 

have been taken under delegated authority:  

1.1.1 Re-introduction of Recovery Activity 

Non-Key decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources on 18 
August 2020 

Date decision effective: 27 August 2020 

Report and decision notice attached as Appendix 1 

1.2 Any decision made after the publication of the agenda will be reported at the next meeting 

of the Cabinet.  

 

 

194



 

 

 

Non-key Decision 
05 August 2020 

Councillor Adam Stokes 

 Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 

         
  

 

Re-introduction of Recovery Activity 

To review the currently suspended recovery action as part of the Covid-19 Response and Recovery 
Plan and consider its re-introduction. 

 
 

Report Author 

Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

 
01476 406210 

 r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Approved for 
publication: 

Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

5 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources is asked to approve the: 

• Re-instatement of the Fair Collection and Debt Recovery Policy with effect from 
August 2020. 

 

195

Appendix 1

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Purpose of the Report 

1.1 Since the start of the financial year there has been no formal recovery in place to support 

specific elements of the community during the pandemic period.  This temporary 

arrangement was put in place for a limited period to respond to the Covid-19 crisis. However 

it is now considered timely to remove the recovery restriction in order to re-commence with 

ensuring residents and businesses meet their statutory obligations for payments of Council 

Tax, Business Rates and rents.  It is also important to ensure that customers do not incur 

large debts that prove difficult to repay in an affordable way.  Officers of the Council will 

continue to work with customers to ensure that any payment plans are affordable and enable 

any debts to be repaid over a mutually agreeable period. 

1.2 This recommendation has been developed alongside reviewing the evolving approaches 

other local authorities are undertaking so ensure consistency where possible although local 

factors are also taken into consideration.   

1.3 The resumption of recovery activity will be in line with the Council’s agreed Fair Collection 

and Debt Recovery Policy (Appendix 1). 

2 Available Options Considered 

2.1 The current suspension of recovery action could continue but it is considered that this could 

be detrimental to the customer as the accrued debt could prove difficult to repay if no pro-

active work by the Council is in place. 

3 Preferred Option 

3.1 This is set out in the report. 

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

4.1 This recommendation is required given the current economic context. 

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 The implications of on-going suspension can be damaging to the customer if they fail to 

keep up to date with any amounts due. Therefore recovery plays an important role in helping 

customers meet their statutory responsibilities. In addition receipts from residents and 

businesses are a key element of the Council’s cash flow management and poor collection 

rates has a financial detrimental impact on the Council and ultimately on the delivery of its 

priorities. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 In considering whether or not to take recovery action against any customer in breach of its 

statutory demands, each case will need to be decided on its own merits and dealt with on a 

case-by-case basis. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Jo Toomey, Head of Governance 

7 Equality and Safeguarding implications 

7.1 Equality and safeguarding implications are considered and embedded within the Fair 

Collection and Debt Recovery Policy.  Therefore the recommendation contained in this 

report, in itself, has no specific equality and safeguarding implications. 

196



 

 
 

 

8 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate’ emergency? 

8.1 This report has a carbon neutral impact because it is recommencing a service that was 

temporarily suspended during the Covid-19 response period. 

9 Appendices 

9.1 Appendix 1: Fair Collection and Debt Recovery Policy 

Report Timeline:  Date decision due to be made 18 August 2020 

Call-in deadline 26 August 2020 

Date decision effective (subject to call-in)  27 August 2020 

 

197



This page is intentionally left blank



Fair Collection and
Debt Recovery Policy
March 2015

your council working for you

199



1

Fair collection and debt recovery policy
INTRODUCTION

As part of a growing partnership approach to anti-poverty initiatives, South Kesteven
District Council has agreed that there is a need to work on developing a collection
and debt recovery policy that is fair to everyone, especially people on low incomes.

This policy is made in conjunction to the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy. It is
intended to:
•  help staff work within the policy
•  help advice workers understand it so they can advise people about it and let us
 know if we don’t keep to it
•  help contractors who work for the Council on debt recovery and other activities to
 follow the aims of the policy

OUR POLICY AIMS TO

•  take positive action to prevent debts from occurring in the first place – for example
 by making the most of people’s incomes and offering different payment methods
•  take positive enforcement action against deliberate non payers or those who delay
 payment unnecessarily
•  make sure we make early contact to avoid debts increasing
•  encourage our customers to make early contact with us to avoid debts building up
•  make sure that where people have fallen or are likely to fall into debt, we work with
 them and their representatives to try to set reasonable payment levels that they can
 maintain
•  make sure that all parts of the Council work towards adopting a co-ordinated
 approach to billing, concessions, benefits and multiple debts
•  make sure we consider our customers’ other debts and liabilities when making
 arrangements for recovering the money they owe

200



2

MAKING OUR POLICY EFFECTIVE

We know that for our policy to work, we must:
•  send clear and accurate bills quickly
•  respond to changes in our customers’ circumstances as soon as we are told
 about them
•  deliver fast and accurate benefit entitlements
•  stick to the time scales we give people for processing non-payment

THE BENEFITS OF OUR FAIR COLLECTION AND DEBT RECOVERY POLICY

We believe that our policy will:
•  help people who are in debt to make payment agreements that are realistic
 and appropriate to their circumstances
•  make sure that when we have to process non-payment, the action we take is
 both appropriate for the individual and likely to be effective
•  mean that by being seen as easy to talk to, people will be more likely to make
 contact with us when they first face difficulties
•  help reduce the burden of debt for people on low incomes
•  enable people who experience change, even after an arrangement has been
 made, to vary their payments in line with those changes
•  help identify and recognise people who may try to abuse the policy, such as
 people who refuse to pay or who delay payment without a real reason

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES FOR OUR FAIR COLLECTION AND DEBT
RECOVERY POLICY

Here at South Kesteven District Council, we:
•  believe that people have a responsibility to pay what they owe
•  actively encourage contact at every stage of the collection and recovery process
•  aim to help people make the most of their income
•  provide clear, accurate and speedy bills and information about liabilities

201



3

•  acknowledge the need to provide a service that is effective but sensitive to
 peoples’ needs,
•  acknowledge our responsibility to collect money effectively.

WHEN PEOPLE GET INTO DEBT, WE WILL:

•  make sure that payment arrangements reflect our customers’ ability to pay as well
 as the amount they owe
•  not take the next step in the recovery procedure if agreements are being met
•  acknowledge and respect a persons’ obligations to his or her dependants and
 recognise the need for a person to maintain a reasonable standard of living
•  expect Priority Debts (see Annex 1) to be given precedence over other  

money owed
•  acknowledge the role of the recognised advice agencies and treat offers made on
 behalf of their clients in good faith

OUR DUTY TO COLLECT & RECOVER

South Kesteven District Council has a duty to all council tax and business
ratepayers to ensure cost effective billing, collection, and recovery of all money due
to the Council. We also have a responsibility to all our tenants to collect rent as
efficiently as possible, and take early action against those who do not pay.
In trying to meet these aims, we recognise that people do not pay their debts for a
variety of reasons:

•  some people, because of living in or on the margins of poverty, will find it hard to
 pay. We will try to help these people to minimise the impact of debt upon them
•  some people may be able to pay but do not do so because of an oversight or
 personal difficulties not because of a deliberate decision to avoid or delay
 payment. The Council will try to help such people by encouraging them to contact
 us to discuss their difficulties
•  some people may deliberately set out to delay or not make payments. In these
 cases all methods of enforcement may be used to make them pay the money
 they owe

The need to get in touch is central to our policy. When a person contacts us, their
circumstances will be used to agree a reasonable payment arrangement. This will 

202



4

minimise our need to take recovery action and help prevent hardship for the individual
•  If people do not make contact or maintain their payments, recovery action will continue.

THE COUNCIL WILL:

•  make sure that publicity is available in a variety of formats about benefits, claim
 forms and information about where to get independent advice
•  promote maximum take-up of housing benefit and council tax support and
 ensure that bills and liabilities are taken into account when we ask you to pay
•  notify people of the availability of council tax discounts, rate relief, reductions for
 people with disabilities, exemptions and second adult rebate
•  inform people of the general availability of income-related benefits
•  make sure staff who deal with the public are aware of this policy and where
 professional/independent advice may be found
•  help to complete a benefit application for all council tenants who may be eligible
 when the tenancy agreement is signed

For business (non-domestic) rates, the Council will make all payers aware, via its
billing leaflet, of the availability of reliefs available such as charitable rate relief, rural 
rate relief and Small Business Rate Relief. Each application is determined on its individual
merit and in accordance with existing legislation and national guidance. Application forms
are available from the Council.

For housing benefit overpayments, the Council will consider in each case, whether
recovery should be sought and, if so, determine a level of payment appropriate to
the person’s financial circumstances.

OTHER COUNCIL DEBTS

Other Council debts are due on demand, but where an account is ongoing e.g.
commercial rent, payments can be made by monthly instalments by standing order.
Customers must ensure that payments reach us by the due date.
To try to prevent debts, we want people to contact us as soon as they have difficulty
paying. Many people are unaware of their rights and responsibilities, and of the
availability of a variety of payment arrangements. If people contact us early we will
be able to discuss the situation and prepare a payment plan. This will help people to
manage their debts. 

203



5

When people contact us we will:
•  check whether they should be paying less or nothing at all
•  check whether all benefits, discounts, reliefs, exemptions and rebates  

are being claimed
•  advise on the most appropriate payment methods
•  if appropriate, advise them to contact an independent advice agency eg. CAB

COUNCIL TAX RECOVERY PROCESS

Where payments due have not been made, the Council will take the following action:

1.  A Reminder Notice will be issued if a council tax instalment is missed. The
 Notice requires the instalment to be paid within 7 days to bring the account  

up to date.
2.  If the Reminder Notice is not paid, the right to pay by instalments is lost for the
 financial year in question and the total remaining balance (displayed on the
 Reminder Notice) becomes due and payable and must be paid within a  

further 7 days.

If the Reminder Notice is paid, the taxpayer can continue to pay by instalments.

3.  If another instalment is not paid the same process takes place.

4.  However, if an instalment is missed for the third time, the taxpayer automatically
 loses the right to pay by instalments for the financial year in question and a Final
 Reminder Notice is issued for the total remaining balance.

5. If a taxpayer has lost the right to pay by instalments and not paid the total
 remaining balance within 7 days, a complaint is made to the magistrates court
 that the taxpayer has defaulted in payment of the council tax. The court
 costs, which are charged to the taxpayer, are £72.50 

6.  A Summons is then sent to the taxpayer requiring full payment before the date
 of the court hearing. If a taxpayer disputes the summons they, in the first
 instance, should contact the Revenues Enforcement Section to discuss and
 hopefully resolve the matter. If the taxpayer is still aggrieved then they must
 attend the magistrates court on the day of the court hearing and appear before
 the magistrates informing them why they have not paid and their dispute. A
 taxpayer’s ability to pay will not be considered by the magistrates at this time.

7. The Council’s application at the court hearing is for a Liability Order to be
 issued in respect of each unpaid summons. 

204



6

This action will not affect the taxpayer’s credit rating as the case is heard in a
magistrates court and not a county court.

A Liability Order gives the Council further recovery powers, which include:
-  an attachment of earnings order
-  an Attachment of Benefit Order (Income Support / Job Seekers Allowance/

Employment Support Allowance)
-  distress
-  insolvency and bankruptcy
-  charging orders

The Council may implement an Attachment of Earnings/Benefit Order at anytime
after the issue of a Liability Order.

8. A Liability Order Notice (7 day notice) is sent to the taxpayer and a copy of
 details of the costs associated with enforcement, taking control of goods (fees)
 Regulations 2014 informing the taxpayer that full payment is required within
 14 days of the date of the letter. If full payment cannot be made by the taxpayer he/

she will be advised that a payment arrangement will be considered. If no contact is
 made, the taxpayer is informed that the Council’s Enforcement Agent will call
  at their premises to remove their goods.
9.  Where there is no response to the Notice, the Liability Order will be passed to the
 Council’s enforcement agent.
10. The enforcement agent will visit the taxpayer’s address to secure payment. Details
 of the fees are detailed in appendix one.  If no contact is made a committal warning 

letter is issued. If the taxpayer still does not make contact, the Liability Order in 
question is endorsed by the enforcement agent and the next step is committal 
action against the taxpayer.

11. A Pre-Committal Notice is sent to the taxpayer informing him/her that the Council is 
in the process of issuing a Committal Summons if full payment is not received the 
day before the summons is due to be issued.

12. If full payment is not received, the Committal Summons, after being endorsed by
 a magistrates court incurring a further £245 costs that will be added to the
 debt, is issued to the taxpayer (together with appropriate guidance notes). Full
 payment must be made or the taxpayer must attend the magistrates court as
 the Council’s application at the hearing is for the taxpayer’s committal to prison.
 During the council tax recovery process the Council, where possible, will take into
 account a taxpayer’s personal circumstances and ability to pay. Also, payment
 arrangements (including voluntary deductions from wages) are always made with
 taxpayers where possible. Staff can also use their discretion by amending payment
 arrangements and inputting recovery ‘suspended’ so queries can be resolved. 

205



7

NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES

An identical recovery process for this applies up to and including the acquisition of a
Liability Order. However an Attachment of Earnings Order or an Attachment of
Benefit Order cannot be implemented in respect of this debt. Also, Committal action
can only be taken against an individual and not, for example, a limited company.

COUNCIL HOUSING RENT RECOVERY PROCEDURE

Where arrears occur the Revenues Income Recovery section will take the following
action with flexibility allowed for individual circumstances. At each stage, the tenant
is encouraged to contact the office to make arrangements to pay, or to advise if there
are any reasons why the payment cannot or should not be paid.
1.  Where arrears reach the equivalent of two weeks rent due, a reminder letter will
 be sent.
2. If the tenant fails to clear the arrears or contact the Council within one week of
 this reminder, an attempt to contact the tenant will be made by visit, telephone or
 email.
3.  Where arrears have not reduced by a satisfactory amount during the period of a
 further week, a second reminder will be sent advising the consequences of failing
 to pay.
4.  Where arrears have not reduced by a satisfactory amount after a further two
 weeks then a Notice of Seeking Possession (NOSP) will be sent. This is
 replaced by a s128 Notice of Proceedings for Possession for introductory
 tenancies.
5.  If the tenant does not clear the arrears by the end of the notice period or come to
 an arrangement for payment of the arrears, then a Letter Before Action (LBA) will
 be sent. This warns that court proceedings will commence unless the balance is
 paid in full or a suitable arrangement made.
6.  If there is no response to the LBA, contact will be attempted by visit, telephone or
 email.
7.  If there is no contact from the tenant within 14 days, or if the payment
 arrangements are not kept up, court action will be pursued.
8.  A court hearing will take place at which the Council will request a Suspended
 Possession Order, Outright Possession Order or adjournment on terms.

206



8

9.  After the court hearing the tenant will be informed of the outcome in writing by the
 court including the terms of the order if appropriate.
10. If the tenant does not keep to the terms of a Suspended Possession Order or 

there is an Outright Possession Order in force and the tenant has not paid the total 
amount of arrears and costs owed within the time specified on the order, an 

 application will be made for a Warrant of Possession.
11. After a warrant has been issued the tenant may apply to the court to suspend the
 warrant (this may also be referred to as a Stay). If the court agrees to suspend the
 execution of the warrant it will impose conditions regarding the payment of the 
 arrears.
12. If a suspension is not applied for or granted then the eviction is carried out by the 

court appointed bailiff.

Introductory Tenancies

An introductory tenancy will last for 12 months after which time the tenancy will
become secure unless:

•  the Council is in the process of gaining possession of the property (where
 possession proceedings have started and the 12 month period for an
 introductory tenancy ends, the tenancy will remain an introductory tenancy
 until the proceedings are finally decided); or
•  the Council has served a notice on the tenant to extend the trial period for a
 further six months.

The eviction process for an introductory tenant is different to that of a secure tenant
in that no grounds for possession have to be proved to the court, but a tenant will
have the right to a review by the Council of any decision to evict or serve an
extension notice. Suspended Possession Orders which are commonly used for
secure tenants as a means of recovering rent arrears are not appropriate for
introductory tenancies. Applications to the court for possession must lead to eviction.

RECOVERY OF OTHER COUNCIL DEBTS

Where payments are due for other Council debts (e.g. sundry debtors/
overpayments), the following action will generally be taken:
•  an invoice will be issued stating the amount owed and methods of repayment
•  if no payment is made within 14 days, a reminder notice will be issued which
 requires the account to be paid up to date within 10 days
•  if no payment is received, a final reminder will be issued warning the debtor of
 the need to pay and warning that legal action may follow 

207



9

•  a further 7 days and an internal document is produced
•  the debt will be either be passed to our legal section for their attention or
 passed to external debtor collectors
•  during any stage of this process, arrangements for payments can be made which
 will result in proceedings being adjourned
•  payment will then be enforced using the most appropriate means. This may be
 one of the following:

- attachment of earnings
- warrant of execution
- charging order
- garnishee order
- overpayment of benefit

An invoice will be issued stating the amount owed and methods of repayment.
• if no payment is made within one month, a reminder notice will be issued which
 requires the account to be paid up to date within 10 days.
•  if no payment is received, a final reminder will be issued warning the debtor of
 the need to pay and warning that legal action may follow

During any stage of this process, arrangements for payments can be made which
will result in proceedings being adjourned.
•  payment will then be enforced using the most appropriate means. This may be
 one of the following:

• Direct Earnings Attachment (DEA)
• Debt collector
• DWP deductions
• Legal

MAKING ARRANGEMENTS FOR PEOPLE IN ARREARS
Our staff will:
•  make every reasonable effort to contact people at an early stage in  

the recovery process
•  expect priority debts (see Annex 1) to be given precedence over other debts.
 When a person makes contact a realistic agreement for payment will be made.  

If there is any doubt as to whether the agreement is realistic (either because it
 appears to be too high or too low), staff will help the individual to complete an
 income and expenditure form

208



10

It is important to remind the person to contact the Council if they anticipate problems
in meeting any instalment due date. They will be advised not to wait until they have
received a written response to their offer of payment, but to start to make the payments
which they have offered.

PAYMENT DATES

•  the payment date should take into account:
•  the date the person receives income
• the method and frequency of agreed payments

ARRANGEMENTS MADE BY ADVICE AGENCIES
•  where an arrangement is proposed by a recognised advice agency, an Income and 

Expenditure form will normally be provided. Their offers received will be treated in 
good faith, subject to approval

•  where a person appears to have complex benefit or money advice problems, staff 
will refer them to an appropriate agency

OBTAINING DETAILS

•  staff should try to get as much detail as possible of a person’s circumstances to 
enable us to make the best assessment of their ability to pay.

•  if a person refuses to divulge any information, this should not be used as a reason 
for refusing to make an arrangement. However, they will be advised that this could 
lead to a higher rate of payment being required than if their circumstances were fully 
assessed.

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE
•  in some cases it will be necessary to request documentary evidence to confirm  

particular details when arriving at a payment arrangement. People will not, however, 
be asked for documentary evidence unless it is absolutely necessary.

•  where it is necessary, the person will be told of the particular items that require 
confirming and be given a specified reasonable time limit within which they are 
required to provide the documents.

•  if it is easier for the person, arrangements will be made for the documents to be 
confirmed either by the Council or a recognised advice agency.

•  the person will be advised that if the evidence is not produced within the agreed 
time-scale, the offer of payment may be rejected and further action could be taken.

209



11

MONITORING PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

•  all payment arrangements will be closely monitored
•  further recovery action may be taken in respect of late or missed payments
•  the responsibility for making sure that payment reaches the account by the due
 date remains with the debtor
•  the person will be reminded that the date on which instalments are to be paid is
 the final date on which money should reach the account. This means that people 

must allow sufficient time for the payment to reach the Council by the due date

WHEN PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS ARE NOT MAINTAINED

• it is important to ensure that where arrangements have not been maintained, prompt 
action is taken by the person to try and bring the arrangement back up to date. If the 
person’s circumstances have changed, they will be encouraged to contact us to alter 
the agreement.

•  when a person defaults on an arrangement, we will send a written notice advising 
them of the need to take action. This will provide the person with the opportunity 
to bring the arrangement up to date or advise the Council of a change of 
circumstances.

•  although the Council will ideally require the original agreement to be brought 
up to date within a short time scale, if there has been a significant change in 
circumstances it will be possible to negotiate a new arrangement.

MAINTAINING CURRENT INSTALMENTS

When negotiating arrangements for payment, staff will ensure that current instalments 
and weekly rent are being maintained, i.e. the arrangement will be in addition to and
conditional on, the current council tax, weekly rent, business rates, or other Council
debt being paid. For council tax, current instalments will be the yearly council tax
divided by 52 in the case of weekly instalments or 12 in the case of monthly
instalments. This arrangement is available only on hardship grounds and is subject to
completion of an income/expenditure form.

TO CONTINUE TO DEVELOP THE STRATEGY WE WILL:
•  continue to build on the trust that has developed between the advice agencies  

and the Council
• forge stronger links with the Department for Works and Pensions, and Job Centre 

Plus, particularly in areas of Income Support Direct Deductions and notification of 
changes in benefits. 

210



12

•  continue to review all leaflets being forwarded by the Council in respect of debt 
collection and benefits

•  look at better targeting of information, particularly in relation to benefits
•  consider recommendations that could be made to national Government to amend
 appropriate legislation

211



13

ANNEX 1

DEFINITIONS

Throughout the document several words or phrases have been used that may have 
different meanings to different people. This section provides the Councils accepted 
definitions of some of those terms.

1. Poverty
The Council uses a relative definition of poverty, which is “the enforced lack of the 
resources needed to participate in society”

2. Minimum accepted standard of living

The means-tested benefits level is a simple and measurable indicator of how 
much someone needs to live on. However, it is generally accepted that this level is 
insufficient for a decent standard of living and it does not take account of individual 
circumstances. The Council therefore uses this level as a minimum whilst allowing a 
degree of flexibility for special costs or expenses that individuals or families may face.

3. Priority Debts

Priority debts are those debts that can result in loss of essential service, lose your
home or imprisonment

Housing
Council tax 
Mortgage
Rent

Utilities
Electricity
Gas
Telephone
Water

Other
Business rates
CSA deductions
Court fines
Hire purchase for
essential goods
Income tax
Maintenance
Arrears 
Secured loan
VAT

00857RT_6.15

212



 

COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH ENFORCEMENT 
The Taking Control of Goods (Fees) Regulations 2014 

 
 

With effect from 6th April 2014 the legislation governing the enforcement of unpaid 
council tax and business rates changed. Where a debt is passed to an enforcement agent 
the following fees will apply. These fees are set by legislation and are non-negotiable. 

 
Enforcement Stage 

 

 
Amount 

Enforcement Notice £75 
Enforcement agent visit to take control 
of goods 
 

£235 
If the debt is above £1,500 there is an 
additional 7.5% of the amount above £1,500 

Enforcement visit to remove goods 
 

£110 
If the debt is above £1,500 there is an 
additional 7.5% of the amount above £1,500 

Where removal and sale of the 
goods takes place 

 

Storage costs Actual costs 
Locksmith’s costs Actual costs 
Any relevant court application fees Actual fees 
Auctioneer’s costs where the sale is 
held on the auctioneer’s premises 

 
 

Auctioneer’s commission Not to exceed 15% of the sum realised 
Auctioneer’s out of pocket expenses Actual costs 
Reasonable advertising costs Actual costs 
Auctioneer’s costs where the sale is 
held on other premises 

 

Auctioneer’s commission Not to exceed 7.5% of the sum realised  
Auctioneer’s out of pocket expenses Actual costs 
Reasonable advertising costs Actual costs 
Internet auction costs Actual costs 
Exceptional costs that will apply As agreed by a court 
 

How to pay 
 

8	  

 
Payments can be made on the internet by credit or debit card, 24 hours a 
day, 7 days a week. Go to www.southkesteven.gov.uk and follow the 
instructions (American Express and Electron cards are not accepted). 
 

	  

(	  

 
You can make payment by telephone anytime, 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week, using a credit or debit card.  Please dial 0845 234 0038 and follow 
the instructions (American Express and Electron cards are not accepted). 
 

	  

	  

 
You can send a cheque made payable to South Kesteven District Council, 
with your name, address and account number written on the back to:  
Exchequer Services (Payments), Council Offices, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, 
Lincolnshire, NG31 6PZ 
 

 

213



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

CABINET MEMBER DECISION 

 
 
Decision:    
 

That approval is granted for the Fair Collection and Debt Recovery Policy to be 
re-instated with effect from August 2020. 

 
(1) Details of Decision 

 
 To review the currently suspended recovery action as part of the Covid-19 

Response and Recovery Plan and consider its re-introduction. 
 

(2) Considerations/Evidence 
 

 Since the start of the financial year there has been no formal recovery in 

place to support specific elements of the community during the pandemic 

period.  This temporary arrangement was put in place for a limited period to 

respond to the Covid-19 crisis. However, it is now considered timely to 

remove the recovery restriction in order to re-commence with ensuring 

residents and businesses meet their statutory obligations for payments of 

Council Tax, Business Rates and rents.  It is also important to ensure that 

customers do not incur large debts that prove difficult to repay in an 

affordable way.  Officers of the Council will continue to work with customers 

to ensure that any payment plans are affordable and enable any debts to be 

repaid over a mutually agreeable period. 

The recommendation has been developed alongside reviewing the evolving 
approaches other local authorities are undertaking so ensure consistency 
where possible although local factors are also taken into consideration. 
 

(3) Reasons for Decision: 
 

 The recommendation is required given the current economic context. The 

implications of on-going suspension can be damaging to the customer if they 

fail to keep up to date with any amounts due.  Therefore, recovery plays an 

important role in helping customers meet their statutory responsibilities.  In 

addition receipts from residents and businesses are a key element of the 

Council’s cash flow management and poor collection rates has a financial 

detrimental impact on the Council and ultimately on the delivery of its 

priorities. 

 

215



 

 
Conflicts of Interest 
 
(Any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet Member consulted in 
relation to the decision to be recorded). 
 
NONE 
 
Dispensations 
 
(Any dispensation granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of any declared 
conflict of interest to be noted). 
 
NONE 
 
Decision taken by: 
 
Name: Councillor Adam Stokes 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
 
Date of Decision: 18 August 2020 
 
Date of Publication of Record of Decision: 19 August 2020 
 
Date decision effective (i.e. 5 days after the date of publication of record of 
decision unless subject to call-in by the Chairman of an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or any 5 members of the Council from any political groups): 
 
27 August 2020  

216



 

 

 

Cabinet 

8 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Cabinet Forward Plan for the period 1 October 2020 to 
30 September 2021 

This report highlights matters on the Cabinet’s Forward Plan for the period 1 October 2020 to 30 
September 2021. 

 

 

Report Author 

Jo Toomey, Head of Governance 

 
01476 406152 

 j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Julie Edwards, Electoral Services Team Leader 20 August 2020 

Approved by: Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 28 August 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 28 August 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of this report. 

217

Agenda Item 11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

 
1.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 set out the minimum requirements for publicity in connection 

with Key Decisions. The Council meets these legislative requirements through the monthly 

publication of its Forward Plan. 

1.2 Cabinet may also receive reports on which it is asked to make recommendations to Council, 

or review the contents and take necessary action. These items are also listed on the 

Forward Plan. 

1.3 To help Cabinet understand what issues will be put before it in the longer-term, items for 

consideration during the proceeding year have been included in the Cabinet’s Forward Plan. 

The Forward Plan also includes details of items scheduled for each of the Council meetings 

due to be held within the plan period. 

1.4 The Forward Plan for 1 October 2020 to 30 September 2021 is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

 

218



 
 
 

 
 

CABINET FORWARD PLAN 
 Notice of decisions to be made by Cabinet  

1 October 2020 to 30 September 2021 
 

 
At its meetings, the Cabinet may make Key Decisions and Non-Key Decisions. It may also make recommendations to Council on 
matters relating to the Council’s budget or its policy framework. 
 
A Key Decision is a Cabinet decision that is likely: 
 

1. To result in the District Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to 
the District Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates (for these purposes, South Kesteven 
District Council has agreed £200,000 as the threshold at which a decision will be considered significant); or 

2. To be significant in terms of its effects on communities that live or work in an area comprising two or more wards. 
 
A Non-Key Decision is one that is not a Key Decision. 
 
The Forward Plan 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is a rolling, 12-month plan that will be updated on a regular basis. It includes those matters that are 
scheduled to be considered by Cabinet during the plan period. This plan also includes details of those decisions that are due to be 
made by the full Council. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 
The Forward Plan will be circulated to all Overview and Scrutiny Committees and considered at each meeting when Members set 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programmes. Members of the Scrutiny Committees will be able to pick those items from 
the Forward Plan that are relevant to their remit which they wish to scrutinise. 
 
  

219

A
ppendix 1



Notice of future Cabinet decisions and recommendations to Council  
 
Summary Date Action Contact 

 
Council – 1 October 2020  

 

South Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan (Policy Framework Proposal) 

To consider the Cabinet’s 
recommendations in respect of a new 
Corporate Plan for South Kesteven District 
Council 
 

1 Oct 
2020 

To approve a new 
Corporate Plan for South 
Kesteven District Council 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council 
 

Chief Executive 
Tel: 01476 40 60 80  
E-mail: karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Organisational Restructure (Policy Framework Proposal) 

To consider proposals relating to the 
organisational structure of the Council 

1 Oct 
2020 

To approve the updated 
organisational structure for 
South Kesteven District 
Council 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council 
 

Chief Executive 
Tel: 01476 40 60 80  
E-mail: karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 
Cabinet – 13 October 2020 

 

Contract for the Maintenance of the Telecare System and Digitalisation of Sheltered Housing (Key Decision) 

To consider awarding the maintenance 
contract and the transformation of the 
telecare equipment in preparation for 
digitalisation  

13 Oct 
2020 

To approve the award of the 
contract  

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning  
 
Senior Housing and Policy Strategy Officer 
Tel: 01476 40 60 80  
E-mail: c.bown@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 
Rectory Farm - Supplementary Planning Document (Key Decision) 

To consider the Rectory Farm 
Supplementary Planning Document 
following consultation on a draft document 
 

13 Oct 
2020 

To approve a 
Supplementary Planning 
Document in respect of 
Rectory Farm 
 

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning  
 
Special Projects Manager 
Tel: 01476 40 61 64 
E-mail: p.moore@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

220

mailto:karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:karen.bradford@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:c.bown@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.moore@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Contact 

St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham – Public Realm Improvements (Key Decision) 

To consider a report on St. Peter's Hill, 
Grantham - public realm improvements 
 

13 Oct 
2020 

To approve the proposals 
and budget 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council 
 
Strategic Director, Commercial and 
Operational 
Tel: 01476 40 63 44 
E-mail: gary.smith@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Statement of Community Involvement – Review (Key Decision) 

To review the document to take account of 
statutory changes and to consider 
opportunities for greater flexibility in 
undertaking consultation, particularly in 
light of Covid-19 

13 Oct 
2020  

To approve changes to 
document 

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning  
 
Head of Planning Policy  
Tel: 01476 40 64 38 
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document – Approval of Consultation Draft (Key Decision) 

The document will provide guidance to 
applicants and decision makers in order to 
improve the design quality of new 
development proposals as a supplement 
to the Local Plan policies 

13 Oct 
2020 

To approve the 
Supplementary Planning 
Document for consultation 
 

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 
 
Head of Planning Policy  
Tel: 01476 40 64 38 
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Proposed Development Brief for Land at Stamford North (Key Decision) 

To consider the proposed development 
brief for land at Stamford North prior to 
consultation 
 

13 Oct 
2020 

To approve the draft 
Supplementary Planning 
Document in respect of land 
at Stamford North for 
consultation 
 

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 
 
Head of Planning Policy  
Tel: 01476 40 64 38 
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Leisure Centre Proposals (Key Decision) 

To consider the acquisition of a leasehold 
site to complement investment proposals 
for leisure facilities within the district 
 

13 Oct 
2020 

To agree the approach to 
enter into a leasehold 
arrangement 
 

Councillor Barry Dobson, the Deputy Leader of 
the Council  
 
Strategic Director, Growth  
Tel: 01476 40 63 75 
E-mail: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

221

mailto:gary.smith@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Contact 

Review of Public Space Protection Orders (Key Decision) 

To consider extending the existing Public 
Space Protection Orders for a further 
period of 3 years and to consider 
implementing a new Public Space 
Protection Order 

13 Oct 
2020 

To approve any extension 
to the existing orders and 
the implementation of a new 
Public Space Protection 
Order 

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member 
for Commercial and Operations 
 
Head of Environmental 
Tel: 01476 40 63 19 
E-mail: a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 
Cabinet – 3 November 2020 

 
Asset Management Strategy (Key Decision)  

To consider the draft Asset Management 
Strategy 
 

3 Nov 
2020 

To adopt an Asset 
Management Strategy 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council 
 
Strategic Director, Growth 
Tel: 01476 40 61 77 
E-mail: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy (Key Decision) 

To consider any proposed changes 
following consultation 
 

3 Nov 
2020 

To approve the policy 
 

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member 
for Commercial and Operations 
 
Head of Environmental  
Tel: 01476 40 63 19 
E-mail: a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 
Cabinet – 1 December 2020 

 
Housing Allocation Policy 2021 to Include Choice Based Lettings (Key Decision) 

To consider the policy and 
recommendations from the Rural and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

1 Dec 
2020 

To adopt a refreshed 
Housing Allocation Policy 
incorporating a Choice 
Based Lettings Scheme 
 

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 
 

Interim Assistant Director, Housing  
E-mail: chris.stratford@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 
 
 

222

mailto:a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:chris.stratford@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Contact 

Housing Asset Management Strategy 2021-2026 (Key Decision) 

To consider the draft Housing Asset 
Management Strategy 2021-2026  
 

1 Dec 
2020 

To adopt a Housing Asset 
Management Strategy 
 

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 
 
Interim Assistant Director, Housing  
E-mail: chris.stratford@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Council Tax Base 2021/22 (Budget Framework) 

To determine the Council Tax base for 
2021/22, which will form the basis of the 
Budget proposals for the year 

1 Dec 
2020 

To determine the Council 
Tax base to form the basis 
of the 2021/22 Budget 
proposals to be 
recommended to Council 

Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

Interim Director of Finance 
Tel: 01476 40 62 10 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Draft Budget Proposals 2021/22 (Budget Framework) 

To consider the draft Budget proposals for 
2021/22 

1 Dec 
2020 

To agree the draft Budget 
proposals for 2021/22 for 
consultation  

Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

Interim Director of Finance 
Tel: 01476 40 62 10 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document - Final (Key Decision) 

To consider the Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document 
following public consultation 
 

1 Dec 
2020 

To approve the Design 
Guide Supplementary 
Planning Document 
 

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 
 
 

Head of Planning Policy  
Tel: 01476 40 64 38 
E-mail: r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

 
Cabinet – 19 January 2021 

 

Budget Proposals 2021/22 (Budget Framework) 

To agree the Budget proposals for 
2021/22 

19 Jan 
2021 
 

To recommend the Budget 
proposals 2021/22 to 
Council 

Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 
Interim Director of Finance 
Tel: 01476 40 62 10 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 

223

mailto:chris.stratford@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:r.ranson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk


Summary Date Action Contact 

 
Council – 1 March 2021 

 
Budget 2021/22 (Budget Framework) 

To consider the Cabinet’s Budget 
proposals 

1 Mar 
2021 

To agree the Budget for 
2021/22 

Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 
 

Interim Director of Finance 
Tel: 01476 40 62 10 
E-mail: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Pay Policy Statement (Legislative) 

To receive recommendations from the 
Employment Committee on the Council’s 
Pay Policy Statement 2021/22 

1 Mar 
2021 

To approve the Council’s 
Pay Policy Statement 
2021/22 for publication 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council 
 

Head of Organisational Development and 
Change 
Tel: 01476 40 61 32 
E-mail: e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk 
  

 
Other Items – dates pending 

 
Strategic Regeneration Acquisitions (Key Decision) 

To make strategic regeneration acquisitions   Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the 
Council  
 
Strategic Director, Growth 
Tel: 01476 40 63 75 
E-mail: p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Information relating to this decision is exempt under 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 as amended because it contains information 
which relates to the financial or business affairs of an 
individual or organisation 

 

224

mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Exempt minute 130: Leisure Service

	4 South Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan
	Appendix A - Corporate Plan
	Appendix B - Equality Impact

	5 Amended Budget 2020/21
	Appendix A - Potential of Financial Impact on Income Budgets
	Appendix B Directorate summary tables
	Appendix C - Finance Risk Register
	Appendix D MTFP Summary
	Appendix E capital programmes

	6 Cultural Strategy
	Appendix 1 - draft cultural strategy
	Appendix 2 - equality analysis

	7 Area Offices Customer Consultation
	Appendix 1 - Market Deeping Survey 2
	Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping July 2020
	Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping July 2020
	Question Title
	1. Have you contacted SKDC's Customer Services€since lockdown began on 23 March?

	Question Title
	2. Please tell us how you contacted SKDC. Please tick one only.

	Question Title
	3. We would like to know if your chosen method of contact has changed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Is this the way you would normally choose to contact us?


	Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping July 2020
	Question Title
	4. Why did you contact SKDC? Please tick all that apply

	Question Title
	5. How satisfied were you with the way in which your enquiry was dealt with?


	Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping July 2020
	Question Title
	6. To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? Please tick one only.

	Question Title
	7. Please use the space below to tell us why you have chosen to respond in this way.

	Question Title
	8. The council wants to understand and be aware of any impacts closing the office in Market Deeping may have on you. Please use the space below to tell us about them.


	Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping July 2020
	Question Title
	9. What is your gender? Please tick one only.

	Question Title
	10. Which of the following age bands do you belong to? Please tick one only.

	Question Title
	11. Do you consider yourself to have a disability? Please tick one only.


	Customer Services Survey - Market Deeping July 2020
	Question Title
	12. If you have any questions or would like to comment on anything included in this survey, please use the space below:

	Question Title
	13. If you would like a response to your query, please give us your contact details. They will only be used to contact you in relation to this query and will not be used for any other purpose or passed onto anyone else.



	Appendix 2 - Consultation Output report - Market Deeping - Survey 2
	Appendix 3 - Market Deeping Consultation responses - Survey 2
	Appendix 4 - Stamford Survey 2
	Customer Services Survey - Stamford July 2020
	Customer Services Survey - Stamford July 2020
	Question Title
	1. Have you contacted SKDC 's customer services section since lockdown began on 23 March?

	Question Title
	2. Please tell us how you contacted SKDC. Please tick one only.

	Question Title
	3. We would like to know if€your chosen method of contact€has changed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Is this the way you would normally choose to contact us?


	Customer Services Survey - Stamford July 2020
	Question Title
	4. Why did you contact SKDC? Please tick all that apply

	Question Title
	5. How satisfied were you with the way in which your enquiry was dealt with?


	Customer Services Survey - Stamford July 2020
	Question Title
	6. To what extent do you agree or disagree with this proposal? Please tick one only.

	Question Title
	7. Please use the space below to tell us why you have chosen to respond in this way.

	Question Title
	8. The council wants to understand and be aware of any impacts closing the customer services centre and relocating the new service provision in Stamford may have on you. Please use the space below to tell us about them.


	Customer Services Survey - Stamford July 2020
	Question Title
	9. What is your gender? Please tick one only.

	Question Title
	10. Which of the following age bands do you belong to? Please tick one only.

	Question Title
	11. Do you consider yourself to have a disability? Please tick one only.


	Customer Services Survey - Stamford July 2020
	Question Title
	12. If you have any questions or would like to comment on anything included in this survey, please use the space below:

	Question Title
	13. If you would like a response to your query, please give us your contact details. They will only be used to contact you in relation to this query and will not be used for any other purpose or passed onto anyone else.



	Appendix 5 - Stamford Consultation Output report - Survey 2
	Appendix 6 - Stamford Consultation responses - Survey 2
	Appendix 7 - Equalities Analysis August 2020
	Appendix 8 - Comparison Tables - Survey 2 - draft

	8 Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview and Scrutiny Committees
	9 Key and Non Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers
	Reintroduction of recovery action - report
	Fair Collection and Debt Recovery Policy 2015
	Reintroduction of recovery action - decision notice

	11 Cabinet Forward Plan 1 October 2020 to 30 September 2021
	Appendix1: Forward Plan (1 October 2020 to 30 September 2021)




